ALBERTA BEACH '
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING
BEING HELD ELECTRONICALLY VIA ZOOM MEETING
JANUARY 18,2022 AT 7:00 P.M.

AGENDA

CALL TO ORDER

AGENDA ADDITIONS

ADOPTION OF AGENDA

CONFIDENTIAL ~ CLOSED MEETING SESSION

ADOPTION OF PREVIOUS MINUTES

a.

Regular Council Meeting of December 21, 2021

DELEGATIONS

PUBLIC HEARINGS

MUNIC

IPAL PLANNING COMMISSION

OLD BUSINESS & CAO REPORT ACTION LIST

FINANCIAL REPORTS

BYLAWS & POLICIES

a.
b.

Bylaw 287-22 The Fees & Rates Bylaw
General Village Policy #G.3.5 Snow & Tce Control Policy

COUNCIL, COMMITTEES & STAFF REPORTS

CORRE

o

NS KESETPnOoD o ~mAT TR M0 Ao o

I
o

CORRE

SPONDENCE - INFORMATION ITEMS

Alberta Community & Social Services — FCSS Surplus Policy

Alberta Counsel - At a Glance January 7, 2022

Alberta Counsel — The News January 11, 2022

Alberta Environment — 2022 Alberta Fisheries Management Engagement
Alberta Health Operations — Covid-19 Municipal Update December 15, 2021
Alberta Health Operations — Covid-19 Municipal Update December 22, 2021
Alberta Health Operations — Covid-19 Municipal Update January 12, 2022
Alberta Health Services ~ Covid-19 Community Update December 20, 2021
Alberta Health Services — Covid-19 Community Update January 4, 2022
Alberta Health Services - Covid-19 Community Update January 10, 2022
Alberta Municipalities — Alberta Municipalities Year End Review

Alberta Municipalities — Alberta Municipalities Villages West Update

Alberta Municipalities - Alberta Municipalities Re-assignments to RMA Pembina District #3

Alberta Municipalities — The Weekly December 22, 2021

Alberta Municipalities — The Weekly January 12, 2022

Alberta Municipalities - New FireSmart Program Offering

Brownlee LLP ~ Emerging Trends in Municipal Law Seminar

Communities Choose Well — The Choose Letter January 2022

Communities in Bloom — Scotts Canada 2022 Gro for Good Grants Initiative
Community Futures Yellowhead East — Digital Economy Program
Federation of Canadian Municipalities — FCM Voice News January 10, 2022
Fortis Alberta — 2022 Fortis Alberta Approved Rates

Municipality of Crowsnest Pass — Letter in Support for Streamlining Foreign Physician Assessments
National Police Federation — KeepAlbertaRCMP Community Engagement Tour on Proposed APPS

Town of Tofield — Rural Alberta Adolescent Vaccine Provision
Wild Water Commission — Notice of Orthophosphate Additives in the Epcor System
Alberta Municipalities — Alberta Provincial Police Service (APPS) Webinar

SPONDENCE - ACTION ITEMS

NEW BUSINESS

QUESTION PERIOD

ADJOURNMENT



#191-21

#192-21

#193-21

#194-21

#195-21

#196-21

=
MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF COUNCIL e
OF ALBERTA BEACH IN THE PROVINCE OF ALBERTA
HELD ELECTRONICALLY VIA ZOOM MEETING
DECEMBER 21, 2021 AT 7:00 P.M.

PRESENT:

Deputy Mayor .................... Angela Duncan

Councillor ......................... Debbie Durocher

Councillor «eev...nnTara Elwood

Councillor .... «vernoDaryl Weber

CAO ...l e Kathy Skwarchuk

Asst. CAO ... Cathy McCartney (Zoom Administrator)
ABSENT:

Mayor..... ..., Bud Love
CALL TO ORDER:

Deputy Mayor Duncan called the meeting to order at 7:02 P.M.
AGENDA ADDITIONS: None.

ADOPTION OF AGENDA:
MOVED BY Councillor Weber that the agenda be adopted as presented.
CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY

CONFIDENTIAL ~ CLOSED MEETING SESSION:
No closed meeting session was held.

ADOPTION OF PREVIOUS MINUTES:

REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING OF NOVEMBER 16, 2021:

MOVED BY Councillor Durocher that the minutes of the Regular Council Meeting of November 16, 2021
be adopted as presented.

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY

DELEGATIONS: None.

PUBLIC HEARINGS: None.

MUNICIPAL PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING: None. -
(;LD BUSINESS & CAO REPORT ACTION LIST:

LAC STE. ANNE COUNTY - ACP GRANT PARTNERSHIP TO CONDUCT STUDIES RELATED TO
OLD NUISANCE GROUNDS:
MOVED BY Councillor Weber that Council approve the request to participate in the Lac Ste. Anne County
ACP Grant Partnership to conduct studies related to old nuisance grounds.

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY

SUMMER VILLAGE OF SUNSET POINT — ACP GRANT PARTNERSHIP FOR A REGIONAL
RECREATION TRAIL MASTER PLAN STUDY:
MOVED BY Councillor Elwood that Council approve to participate in the Summer Village of Sunset Point
ACP Grant Partnership for a regional recreation trail master plan study.

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY

CHRISTMAS LIGHT UP CONTEST:

Councillor Weber reported that the 1% place winner in this years’ Christmas Light Up Contest was Bud &
Barb Love, 2™ place winner was Stuart & Lorraine Craig and the 3™ place winner was Richard & Laurie
Demers.

Deputy Mayor Duncan congratulated the winners and thanked all the residents who participated in this
years’” Christmas light-up contest, she also expressed a special thank you to Donovan Boggs, Ken Anderson
and Councillor Weber for judging the contest.

COUNCIL ELECTRONIC DEVICES:
MOVED BY Councilor Durocher that Council approve the reimbursement to a maximum of $750.00 per
Councillor every four year term for the purchase of an electronic device to be used specifically for Council
business with the funding to come from the 2021 or 2022 Council budget and further that administration
draft a policy for the purchase and use of Council electronic devices.

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY

FINANCIAL REPORTS:

2022 INTERIM BUDGET:
MOVED BY Councillor Weber that the 2021 Budget be accepted as a 2022 Interim Budget.
CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY

BYLAWS & POLICIES: None.




#197-21

#198-21

MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF COUNCIL
OF ALBERTA BEACH IN THE PROVINCE OF ALBERTA
HELD ELECTRONICALLY VIA ZOOM MEETING
DECEMBER 21, 2021 AT 7:00 P.M.

COUNCIL, COMMITTEES & STAFF REPORTS:

COUNCILLOR DUROCHER:

Councillor Durocher gave a brief report on the following meetings:

Alberta Beach & District Museum & Archives meeting of December 7, 2021.
1 Watershed Action Group meeting of December 13, 2021.

COUNCILLOR ELWOOD:
Councillor Elwood gave a brief report on the following meetings:
Yellowhead Regional Library Board trustee overview meeting of December 2, 2021 and board orientation
meeting of December 6, 2021 Councillor Elwood also reported she has been elected to the executive board.

COUNCILLOR WEBER:

Councillor Weber reviewed and submitted reports on the following meetings:
Alberta Beach Christmas Light Up Contest judging of December 18, 2021.
Community Futures Yellowhead East meetings of December 2 & 21, 2021.
Lac Ste. Anne East End Bus Committee meeting of December 13, 2021.

Lac Ste. Anne Foundation meeting of November 24, 2021.

DEPUTY MAYOR DUNCAN:

Deputy Mayor Duncan reviewed and submitted reports on the following meetings:

FCSS Trivillage Committee meeting of November 23,2021.

Rogers/Shaw Broadband meeting of November 24,2021.

Provincial Broadband Update meeting held on December 16, 2021.

Regional Rural Economic Development Stakeholders Engagement meeting of November 24, 2021,
Alberta Beach Ag Society Agliplex Operations Commitee meeting of December 2, 2021.

West Inter-lake District (WILD) Water Commission meeting of December 3, 2021,

Sturgeon River Watershed Alliance meeting of November 22,2021.

NORTH SASKATCHEWAN WATERSHED ALLIANCE REQUEST FOR LETTER OF SUPPORT FOR
A INTERMUNICIPAL REGIONAL LAKE ACTION PLAN:

MOVED BY Deputy Mayor Duncan that Alberta Beach approve the request from the North Saskatchewan
Watershed Alliance to provide a letter of support for the application from the Summer Village of Seba
Beach for an Alberta Community Partnership Grant in the amount of $200,000.00 to fund an
Intermunicipal Regional Lake Action Plan to support collaborative work on lake education and restoration
projects for Lac Ste. Anne, Lake Isle and Wabamun Lake.

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY

DEVELOPMENT PERMIT REPORT:
The administration department submitted a report for information on the 2021 Development Permits issued
to date.

ACCEPTANCE OF COUNCIL, COMMITTEE AND STAFF REPORTS:
MOVED BY Councillor Weber that the Council, committee and staff reports be accepted for information.
CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY

CORRESPONDENCE - INFORMATION ITEMS:

ALBERTA COMMUNITY & SOCIAL SERVICES — FCSS REGULATION REVIEW:

Correspondence was received from Alberta Community & Social Services regarding the amendments to the
Family & Community Social Services (FCSS) Regulation which took effect on July 1, 2021, also enclosed
was a Q & A document and the Order in Council.

ALBERTA COUNSEL —~ NEWSLETTERS:
At a Glance newsletters of November 19 & 26, 2021 as well as the November 24 & December 7, 2021
issues of The News was received from Alberta Counsel.

ALBERTA EDUCATION - PROVINCIAL EDUCATION REQUISITION CREDIT PROGRAM:
Correspondence was received from Alberta Education regarding the Provincial Education Requisition
Credit Program which was recently restored in the Municipal Government Act to relieve the burden on
municipalities of unpaid taxes from oil & gas companies while pursuing special liens on the companies.

ALBERTA INVASIVE SPECIES COUNCIL — AISC QUARTERLY UPDATE
The AISC Quarterly Update of December 3, 2021 was received from the Alberta Invasive Species Council.

ALBERTA HEALTH OPERATIONS - COVID-19 MUNICIPAL UPDATES:
Covid-19 Municipal Updates of November 17, 24, December 1 & 8, 2021 was received from Alberta
Health Operations.

ALBERTA HEALTH SERVICES ~ COVID-19 COMMUNITY UPDATES: -
Covid-19 Community Updates of November 15, 22, December 6 & 13, 2021 was received from Alberta
IHealth Services.




#199-21

MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF COUNCIL
OF ALBERTA BEACH IN THE PROVINCE OF ALBERTA
HELD ELECTRONICALLY VIA ZOOM MEETING
DECEMBER 21, 2021 AT 7:00 P.M.

ALBERTA MUNICIPALITIES - DIRECTOR INTRODUCTION & NEW NAME:

An introductory letter was received from Angela Duncan, Alberta Municipalities Director of Villages West
and Vice President of Villages and Summer Villages, the letter also included information on the rebranding
from Alberta Urban Municipalities Association to Alberta Municipalities.

ALBERTA MUNICIPALITIES - THE WEEKLY NEWSLETTERS:
The Weekly Newsletters of November 25, December 1, 8 & 15, 2021 was received from Alberta
Municipalities.

ALBERTA RECREATION & PARKS — CONGRATULATIONS & INTRODUCTORY LETTER:
A congratulations & introductory letter was received from Alberta Recreation & Parks Association.

ALBERTA TREASURY BOARD & FINANCE — LOANS PRICING ANNOUNCEMENT:
Correspondence was received from Alberta Treasury Board & Finance announcing that effective December
2021 the interest rates charged on new loans to local authorities will be revised to better reflect the market
cost of borrowing,

COMMUNITIES CHOOSE WELL — THE CHOOSE LETTER:
The Choose newsletter of November 2021 was received from Communities Choose Well.

COMMUNITY FUTURES YELLOWHEAD EAST — REGIONAL BUSINESS NEWS & EVENTS:
Correspondence was received from Community Futures Yellowhead East regarding regional business news
& events.

GRASMERE SCHOOL — THANK YOU CARD:
A thank you card was received from Grasmere School to thank Council for the donation and support.

HONOURABLE JASON KENNEY, PREMIER OF ALBERTA — CONGRATULATIONS LETTER:
A congratulations letter was received from Honourable Jason Kenney, Premier of Alberta.

HONOURABLE KAYCEE MADU, ALBERTA JUSTICE & SOLICITOR GENERAL - ALBERTA
PROVINCIAL POLICE SERVICE TRANSITION STUDY:

A letter was received from Honourable Kaycee Madu, Minister of Alberta Justice & Solicitor General
regarding the release of the Alberta Provincial Police Service Transition Study as well as an invitation to
participate in further engagement on the findings of the report.

HONOURABLE RIC MCIVER, ALBERTA MUNICIPAL AFFAIRS — CONGRATULATIONS
LETTER:

A congratulations letter was received from Honourable Ric Meclver, Minister of Alberta Municipal Affairs.

HONOURABLE SHANE GETSON, MLA — CONGRATULATIONS LETTER:
A congratulations letter was received from Honourable Shane Getson, MLA.

LIBRARY ASSOCIATION OF ALBERTA - CONGRATULATIONS & INTRODUCTORY LETTER:
A congratulations & introductory letter was received from the Library Association of Alberta.

NATIONAL POLICE FEDERATION - ALBERTA PROVINCIAL POLICE SERVICE TRANSITION
STUDY:

A letter was received from the National Police Federation regarding a recent survey and the Government of
Alberta’s release of the Alberta Provincial Police Service Transition Study.

NORTH SASKATCHEWAN WATERSHED ALLIANCE — IN STREAM NEWSLETTERS:
The November & December 2021 In Stream Newsletters were received from the North Saskatchewan
Watershed Alliance.

NORTH SASKATCHEWAN WATERSHED ALLIANCE — INTRODUCTION LETTER:
An introduction letter was received from the North Saskatchewan Watershed Alliance as well as NSWA
2022 calendars in appreciation of the support in their work towards a healthy and sustainable watershed.

YELLOWHEAD REGIONAL LIBRARY ~ NEW TRAINING RESOURCES FOR LIBRARY BOARDS
& MUNICIPALITIES:

Correspondence was received from Yellowhead Regional Library which included Alberta Municipal
Affairs new training resources for library boards & municipalities, appointments to boards and Municipal
Councils and Library Boards roles and responsibilities.

ACCEPTANCE OF CORRESPONDENCE INFORMATION ITEMS:
MOVED BY Councillor Durocher that the correspondence information items be accepted for information.
CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY

ICORRESPONDENCE — ACTION ITEMS:




#200-21

#201-21

#202-21

MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF COUNCIL
OF ALBERTA BEACH IN THE PROVINCE OF ALBERTA
HELD ELECTRONICALLY VIA ZOOM MEETING
DECEMBER 21, 2021 AT 7:00 P.M.

ALBERTA BEACH & DISTRICT LIONS CLUB — SNOMO DAYS 2022:

MOVED BY Councillor Weber that the Alberta Beach & District Lion’s Club be advised that Council has
approved that the village provide snow clearing on the ice for the drag race track, parking and ice park, the
building of a track for the OHV challenge subject to the ice conditions, as well a $300.00 contribution to
the washroom expense, the supply of.garbage cans, picnic tables, two fire pits at the ice park, one fire pit at
Beachwave Park, spectator stands at drag race track and barricades to direct traffic and further that Council
approve to permit a Fireworks Display to be set off from the Boat Launch on SnoMo Days provided that
the fireworks is conducted by a licensed Pyro-Technician carrying adequate property and liability
insurance. ’

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY

THE MARC GROUP - PARTNER WITH ALBERTA BEACH FARMERS MARKET ON
BAGVERTISING:
MOVED BY Councillor Durocher that the request from The MARC Group to partner with the Alberta
Beach Farmers Market in the launch of the new community program BagVertising be tabled to the January
meeting,

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY .

TOWN OF ONOWAY - FIRST RESPONDERS THANK YOU:
MOVED BY Councillor Elwood that Alberta Beach accept the challenge from the Town of Onoway to
show appreciation and to thank our first responders and Council will discuss appreciation ideas at the next
meeting.

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY

NEW BUSINESS: None.

QUESTION PERIOD:
A question was asked regarding notification on development permits issued for the demolition of a cabin,

Deputy Mayor Duncan confirmed that as it is a permitted use, there is no requirement to notify adjacent
properties.

ADJOURNMENT:
The meeting adjourned at 8:08 P.M.

P

Mayor — Bud Love

C.A.O. — Kathy Skwarchuk




CAO REPORT — ACTION LIST DECEMBER 2021

COUNCIL:
COUNCIL COMMITTEE REPORTS — TO BE SUBMITTED IN WRITING FOR ATTACHMENT TO THE MINUTES.

ALBERTA BEACH AGRICULTURAL SOCIETY — PURCHASE OF ALBERTA BEACH AGLIPLEX:

May 18/21 MOVED BY Mayor Benedict that the letter from the Alberta Beach & District Agricultural Society regarding
their interest in the purchase of the Alberta Beach Agliplex be accepted for further review and development of a potential
purchase agreement on the condition that the land remain the property of Alberta Beach and further that Council authorize a
meeting between the Mayor and Ag Society President to review details of the proposal.

June 15/21 Letter was sent to Ag Society to advise on Council’s motion.

ADMINISTRATION:

TVRSSC — REQUEST ROAD & SIDEWALK REPAIR:

Aug.17/21 MOVED BY Councillor Love that a letter be forwarded to the TVRSSC to request that they repair the road and
sidewalk along 50™ Avenue between 47 Street and 46 Street, further advising that due to a previous sewer break the water is
pooling on the road & the sidewalk is cracking & sinking.

Sept. 21/21Letter was sent to TVRSSC.

Oct.19/21 Sidewalk repair has been completed.
Nov.16/21Road has been repaired, however TVRSSC has been made aware of the deficiency that the water is now pooling

in the centre of the road which they will have the contractor finish the asphalt compaction in the spring. It was also brought
to TVRSSC attention that there is a gap next to the sidewalk which they will work to repair.

SCHEDULE OF FEES & RATES BYLAW:
Sept.21/21 MOVED BY Councillor Love that Council approve the recommendation from the Alberta Beach Campground

Advisory Committee to approve the 2022 Schedule of Fees for the Alberta Beach Family RV Park and Campground and
further direct administration to amend the rates and prepare a new Schedule of Fees and Rates Bylaw.

Oct.19/21 Schedule of Fees & Rates Bylaw has been drafted, Council will need to review bylaw for any further changes.
Nov.16/21 CAO has requested that the Development Officer review the rates in the bylaw pertaining to development and
has asked for comments on implementing additional fees for variance, changes in application or change of scope.

Dec.21\21 Development Officer has suggested to implement a fee of $100.00 for a major variance and a fee of $100.00 for
change in application or change in scope. Administration will prepare the bylaw for next meeting,

PARKING OF OVERWEIGHT VEHICLES IN RESIDENTIAL:

Nov.16/21 CAO has requested comments from the Development Officer regarding the complaint of parking overweight
vehicles (semi tractor trucks) in residential zones, whether to restrict the overweight vehicles through the implementation of
a parking bylaw or through the traffic bylaw. Also discussed the issue of camping overnight in the commercial parking lots.
(The D.O. is also aware that we are waiting for comments on a parking bylaw from Patriot Law as well)

Dec.21/21 Development Officer is preparing comments and will submit by next meeting.

LAC STE. ANNE COUNTY — ACP GRANT TO CONDUCT STUDIES RELATED TO OLD NUISANCE GROUNDS:
Oct.19/21 MOVED BY Councillor Durocher that Council direct the CAO to request further information from Lac Ste. Anne
County regarding their request for participation in an ACP Grant Partnership to conduct studies related to old nuisance

grounds.
Dec.21/21 MOVED BY Councillor Weber that Council approve the request to participate in the Lac Ste. Anne County ACP

Grant Partnership to conduct studies related to old nuisance grounds.

SV OF SUNSET POINT — ACP GRANT PARTNERSHIP FOR A REGIONAL RECREATION TRAIL MASTER PLAN:
Oct.19/21 MOVED BY Deputy Mayor Duncan that Council direct the CAO to follow up and request further information
from the Summer Village of Sunset Point regarding their request for participation in an ACP Grant Partnership to develop a

Recreation/Trail Master Plan.
Dec.21/21 MOVED BY Councillor Elwood that Council approve to participate in the Summer Village of Sunset Point ACP

Grant Partnership for a regional recreation trail master plan study.

COMMUNITY POLICING ADVISORY COMMITTEE (CPAC):

Nov.16/21 MOVED BY Deputy Mayor Duncan that Council direct administration to seek further information on the
Community Policing Advisory Committee (CPAC) and report back to Council.

Dec.21/21 CAO has requested information from OIC of Parkland RCMP, Insp. Mike Lokken.



CAO REPORT — ACTION LIST DECEMBER 2021

ALBERTA BEACH MUSEUM & ARCHIVES SOCIETY —- MUSEUM HERITAGE VILLAGE PARK LEASE:

Nov.16/21 MOVED BY Deputy Mayor Duncan that Council enter into negotiations to renew the lease of the Heritage
Village Park with the Alberta Beach & District Museum and Archives Society and further that Council appoint Councillor
Durocher and the CAO to be the lead in the negotiations as per Council’s direction and further they be advised that Council

will take their requests into consideration.

COUNCIL ELECTRONIC DEVICES:
Dec.21/21 MOVED BY Councilor Durocher that Council approve the reimbursement to a maximum of $750.00 per

Councillor every four year term for the purchase of an electronic device to be used specifically for Council business with
the funding to come from the 2021 or 2022 Council budget and further that administration draft a policy for the purchase

and use of Council electronic devices.

NSWA REQUEST FOR LETTER OF SUPPORT FOR A INTERMUNICIPAL REGIONAL LAKE ACTION PLAN:
Dec.21/21 MOVED BY Deputy Mayor Duncan that Alberta Beach approve the request from the North Saskatchewan
Watershed Alliance to provide a letter of support for the application from the Summer Village of Seba Beach for an Alberta
Community Partnership Grant in the amount of $200,000.00 to fund an Intermunicipal Regional Lake Action Plan to
support collaborative work on lake education and restoration projects for Lac Ste. Anne, Lake Isle and Wabamun Lake.

ALBERTA BEACH & DISTRICT LIONS CLUB — SNOMO DAYS 2022

Dec.21/21 MOVED BY Councillor Weber that the Alberta Beach & District Lion’s Club be advised that Council has
approved that the village provide snow clearing on the ice for the drag race track, parking and ice park, the building of a
track for the OHV challenge subject to the ice conditions, as well a $300.00 contribution to the washroom expense, the
supply of garbage cans, picnic tables, two fire pits at the ice park, one fire pit at Beachwave Park, spectator stands at drag
race track and barricades to direct traffic and further that Council approve to permit a Fireworks Display to be set off from
the Boat Launch on SnoMo Days provided that the fireworks is conducted by a licensed Pyro-Technician carrying adequate

property and liability insurance.

THE MARC GROUP - PARTNER WITH ALBERTA BEACH FARMERS MARKET ON BAGVERTISING:
Dec.21/21 MOVED BY Councillor Durocher that the request from The MARC Group to partner with the Alberta Beach
Farmers Market in the launch of the new community program BagVertising be tabled to the January meeting.

TOWN OF ONOWAY — FIRST RESPONDERS THANK YOU:

Dec.21/21 MOVED BY Councillor Elwood that Alberta Beach accept the challenge from the Town of Onoway to show
appreciation and to thank our first responders and Council will discuss appreciation ideas at the next meeting.

PUBLIC WORKS:

MUNICIPAL STIMULUS PROGRAM - ALBERTA BEACH STORM OUTFALL PROJECT:

Jan.19/21 Bolson Engineering reported that 3 tenders were received for the Alberta Beach Storm Outfall Project as follows:
Rockhill Contracting $101,430.00; Roadbridge Services $167,755.35; and TCL Construction $352,800.00.

MOVED BY Councillor Weber that Council approve to award the Alberta Beach Storm Outfall Project to the low bidder,
Rockhill Contracting in the amount of $101,430.00 including gst to be funded through the Municipal Stimulus Program.
Feb.16/21 Project started today. Admin is posting information on project & road closures or detours.

Mar.16/21 Project nearing completion, installing catch basins.
May 18/21 Request for financial assistance was sent to LSA County, which was approved for a $25,000.00 contribution.

June 15/21 Sidewalk & pavement rehab is complete, sod company rescheduled to next week, then area needs to be fenced.
July 20/21 P.W. is still watering the grass, still need to install the fence.
Oct.19/21 Fence has been completed & minor work is still to be completed.

DEVELOPMENT:

DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT - LOT 3, BLOCK 9, PLAN 3321BQ:

Aug. 14/18 Development Agreement Deposit has been received. (D.O. was advised)

Sept.18/18 Sidewalks/ramp was completed/admin will invoice or deduct from deposit.(Invoice was deducted from deposit)
June 18/19 Development Agreement has been forwarded to D.O. (Development is ongoing)

Dec. 15/20 Development Officer is following up on the development.

Feb.16/21 Development Officer provided an update on outstanding items scheduled for completion by Aug. 2021.
Sept.21/21 Development Officer has advised that the property owner has requested more time to complete outstanding items
which include: parking stalls & identification of parking stalls; garbage containers; and landscaping.



I«

ALBERTA BEACH
BYLAW NO. 287-22
PAGE 1 of 4

A BYLAW OF ALBERTA BEACH, IN THE PROVINCE OF ALBERTA TO ESTABLISH
A SCHEDULE OF FEES AND RATES FOR THE MUNICIPALITY.

WHEREAS, the Municipal Government Act, Chapter M26, Revised Statutes of Alberta 2000, authorizes a
municipality to have the authority to establish fees and rates for the provision of goods and services; and
WHEREAS, Alberta Beach wishes to establish, in a bylaw, a schedule of fees and rates;

NOW THEREFORE under the authority of the Municipal Government Act, the Council of Alberta Beach,
in the Province of Alberta, duly assembled, enacts as follows:

1. That this Bylaw may be cited as the “the Fees and Rates Bylaw”.

2. That Alberta Beach shall charge fees and rates as established in Schedule A, “The Fees and
Rates Schedule”, attached hereto.

3. That this Bylaw shall be reviewed by Councit annually.
4. That Bylaw #277-20 is hereby rescinded.
5. That this Bylaw shall come into force and effect upon the third and final reading and signing of
this bylaw.
Read a first time this ____ day of , 2022
Read a second time this _____ day of , 2022,
Read a third time and passed this ____day of , 2022,

SIGNED by the Mayor and C.A.O. this day of 2022.

’
—_—

Mayor, Bud Love

C.A.O., Kathy Skwarchuk



ALBERTA BEACH
BYLAW NO. 287-22
PAGE 2 of 4

SCHEDULE “A”
THE FEES & RATES SCHEDULE

ADMINISTRATIVE FEES:
Photocopies for public at large:

8% x 11 $0.25/copy
8% x14 $0.25/copy
11x17 $0.50/copy
Colour Photocopies for public at large:
8% x11 $0.50/copy
8% x14 $0.50/copy
11x17 $1.00/copy
Photocopies for Non-Profit Groups:
8% x 11 $0.10/copy
8%x14 $0.15/copy
11 x17 $0.25/copy
Colour Photocopies for Non-Profit Groups:
8% x 11 $0.15/copy
8% x14 $0.20/copy
11x17 $0.50/copy
Laminating Fees:
8% x11 $1.00/copy
8%x14 $1.50/copy
11x17 $2.00/copy
Copies of Village documents As per copy rates above
Fax (Sending & Receiving) $1.00/page
Fax Long Distance (extra) $1.00
Returned Cheque Fees $35.00
NSF Fees (Non Sufficient Funds) $35.00
Tax Certificates $50.00
Land Title Search / Certificate of Title $25.00
Tax Notification Fee $55.00
Tax Notification Fee - each additional named interest on Title $5.00
Land Use Bylaw $25.00
Municipal Development Plan $10.00
County Maps $10.00
Sand Bags (not filled) (if available) - per Bag Sold at Cost
Blue Bags (if available) - per Bag Sold at Cost
Souvenirs / Promotional Products Sold at Cost + 5%
Overdue Account Penalties (not property taxes) 2% per Month

PROPERTY TAX PENALTIES:

Property Tax Penalties as per Penalty on Unpaid Taxes Bylaw per Bylaw
DOG TAGS:

Neutered/Spayed $10.00
Unaltered $20.00
Vicious $250.00
Replacement Tag $5.00
SKUNK TRAPS:

Deposit (Refundable on Return) $65.00

3 Day Rental (Alberta Beach Residents) No Charge
Additional per Day Rental (Alberta Beach Residents) $5.00

3 Day Rental (Non-Residents) $25.00
Additional per Day Rental (Non-Residents) $10.00
Cleaning $20.00
BUILDING RENTAL:

Council Chambers - Full Day $100.00
Council Chambers - Half Day $50.00
Council Chambers — Not For Profit-Local Community Groups No Charge
FOOD VENDORS:

Resident Food Vendor - per Calendar Year $35.00
Non-Resident Food Vendor - per Day $35.00
Non-Resident Food Vendor - per Calendar Year $350.00
FREE - Food Truck Fridays - No day rate charged No Charge
MOBILE SALES VENDORS:

Resident Mobile Sales - per Calendar Year $35.00
Non-Resident Mobile Sales - per Day $35.00

Non-Resident Mobile Sales - per Calendar Year $350.00



ALBERTA BEACH
BYLAW NO. 287-22
PAGE 3 of 4

AMUSEMENT VENDOR;:
Amusement Vendor - per Day
Amusement Vendor - per Calendar Year

HAWKER PEDDLER FEES:
Hawker Peddier - per Day
Hawker Peddler - per Calendar Year

BUSKER:
Buskers must be registered with the Village Office

SPECIAL EVENT:
Special Event License (as approved by Council)

DEVELOPMENT PERMIT FEES:

Residential — Permitted

Residential — Discretionary

Additions and Accessory Buildings

Secondary Suite (Garage & Garden Suite) — Permitted
Secondary Suite (Garage & Garden Suite) — Discretionary
Commercial/Light Industrial — Permitted
Commercial/Light Industrial — Discretionary

Home Based Business — Home Occupations

Home Office Letter

Signs — Permanent or Temporary

Deck, Shed, Fence, Gazebo, Fabric Shelter

Retaining Wall, Culverts, Driveway Access

Holding Tank, Cistern, Well

Development Permit - Time Extension

Development Permit - Amendment

Development Permit - Request for Major Variance
Development Permit - Change in Scope

Demolition Permit

Emergency Municipal Planning Commission Meeting
Security Deposit for Relocated or Moved-in Dwelling (Refundable)
Failure to Apply for Development Permit

$35.00
$350.00

$35.00
$350.00

by donation

as per Council

$300.00
$500.00
$150.00
$300.00
$500.00
$300.00
$500.00
$150.00
$50.00
$50.00
$50.00
$50.00
$50.00
$50.00
$100.00
$100.00
$100.00
$50.00
$500.00 (in addition to permit fee)
$5,000.00
Double

(Permit fees double if construction starts prior to approval of development permit)

BYLAW AMENDMENTS APPLICATION FEES:
(Application fees do not guarantee approval)

Plan Cancellation Bylaw (Lot Consolidation)

Land Use Re-Districting Application

Amendment to Land Use Bylaw

Amendment to Municipal Development Plan
Amendment to Intermunicipal Development Pian
Amendment to Area Structure or Redevelopment Plan

LETTER OF COMPLIANCE:
Standard
Rush (Less than 72 hours)

LETTER OF CONCURRENCE:
Celllinternet/Communication Tower

AGREEMENTS:
Encroachment Agreement
Letter of Consent
Developer's Agreement
Other Leases

SUBDIVSION FEES:

Subdivision Application Fee

Additional Lots (per lot)

Endorsement &/or Condo Plan Endorsement Fees (per lot or unit)

APPEAL FEES:

Assessment Appeal Fee (residential)(refundable if successful)
Assessment Appeal Fee (non-residential)(refundable if successful)
Development Permit Appeal Fee

Subdivision Appeal Fee

Food Vendor, Mobile Sales Vendor, Amusement Vendor Appeal Fee
Hawker, Peddler or Busker Appeal Fee

Enforcement Appeal Fee

$400.00

$500.00 + all associated costs
$500.00 + all associated costs
$500.00 + all associated costs
$500.00 + all associated costs
$500.00 + all associated costs

$100.00
$200.00

As per Council

$400.00
$50.00

As per Council
As per Council

$400.00
$200.00
$50.00

$50.00
$150.00
$150.00
$150.00
$25.00
$25.00
$150.00



ALBERTA BEACH
BYLAW NO. 287-22

PAGE 4 of 4
SAFETY CODES PERMITS:
Permits for Building, Electrical, Gas, Plumbing, Demolition) As per inspection agency
SOLID WASTE & ORGANIC CARTS:
Additional Residential Solid Waste Cart Deposit (Refundable) $100.00
Additional Residential Organic Waste Cart Deposit (Refundable) $100.00
MUNICIPAL PUBLIC WORKS LABOUR & EQUIPMENT:
Grader - per Hour (includes Operator) - $173.00
Skid Steer - per Hour (includes Operator) $109.00
Backhoe - per Hour (Includes Operator) $114.00
Gravel Truck - per Hour (includes Operator) $111.00
Plow Truck - per Hour (includes Operator) $176.00
Garbage Truck - per Hour (includes Operator) $125.00
Mower - per Hour $75.00
Steamer c/w Tank - per Hour $65.00
¥ Ton Truck - per Hour $24.00
Labourer - per Hour $70.00
Management Consultant - per Hour $80.00
MUNICIPAL RV PARK & CAMPGROUND:
Season Rate:  Full Service Site Paid by May 31° $3,000.00
Full Service Site Paid after June 1% $3,300.00
Monthly Rate: Full Service Site $1,000.00
Weekly Rates: Full Service Site $300.00
Power & Water Site $250.00
No Services Site $200.00
Daily Rates:  Full Service Site $50.00
Power & Water Site $45.00
No Services Site $40.00
Cabin: Weekly (if available) $ 600.00
Extra Person: Above rates based on 2 adults & 2 Dependent Children
Extra Person(s) per person \ per night $5.00
Visitor Over Night Fee - Extra Tent Nightly Fee $15.00
Seasonal Sites Additional Charges:
Extra Fridge - Monthly Fee $10.00
Extra Freezer - Monthly Fee $10.00
Winter Storage/Reserve Site (Due by Sept.15" of current year) $ 300.00
Winter Storage/Reserve Site (After Sept. 15" of current year) $ 400.00
Boat Storage - Winter Storage $100.00

BEACHWAVE PARK:
Fees may be waived by Council or C.A.O.
Fees not applicable to Alberta Beach Minor Ball or ABADASA

Ball Diamond - per Day per Diamond $50.00

Concession - per Day $150.00

Open Shelter/Washroom - per Day $75.00

Rink - per Day $100.00

Damage Deposit (Refundable) $250.00

FIRE RATES: As per Fire Bylaw

FOIP - ACCESS TO INFORMATION:

Reports generated by Alberta Beach $20.00 plus copy rates above
Reports adopted by Council $20.00 plus copy rates above
Minutes, Bylaws, Correspondence As per copy rates above
Administrative Fee - per Hour for search of information exceeding 1 hr)  $35.00 (in addition to above fees)
Third Party Costs to Access Information $alf costs (in addition to above fees)
GST:

Gst will be charged in addition to above fees where applicable. As applicable



i b

ALBERTA BEACH
VILLAGE POLICIES

POLICY: G.3.5 SNOW & ICE CONTROL POLICY ]

Policy Statement:
Alberta Beach Council will provide direction to standardize the priority and procedure for snow

and ice control on municipal roadways and sidewalks.

Purpose:
To establish standards, procedures, and priorities to effectively and efficiently manage the

process of snow and ice control on municipal roadways and sidewalks.

Principles:

a) To ensure public safety;

b) To set a policy to provide staff direction for snow and ice control priorities and procedures
on roadways and sidewalks; and

¢) To provide a policy to the public for the awareness of village policy for snow and ice control
priorities and procedures on roadways and sidewalks.

Definitions:

a) Accumulation - means the total amount:of snow that has fallen and remained undisturbed
in place, measured from the roadway surface.

b) Alley - means a narrow highway, lane, street, or roadway intended mainly to give access to
the rear of buildings and parcels of land.

¢) Boulevard - means the part of a road allowance that is not roadway and is not specifically
adapted to the use of or ordinarily used by pedestrians.

d) CAO - means the person appointed as the Chief Administrative Officer of Alberta Beach.

e) Council - the municipal Council of Alberta Beach, in the Province of Alberta.

f) Public Works Department - means the Public Works Department of Alberta Beach.

g) Roadway - means the part of a road allowance intended for use by vehicular traffic.

h) Sanding -means the application of de-icing materials to roadways to improve vehicle
traction and promote safe traffic flow.

i) Sidewalk - means the part of the road allowance that is not for the use of vehicle traffic, is
specifically for the use of pedestrian traffic, cyclist, or handicap wheeled conveyances and
maybe gravel or hard-surfaced.

j)  Snow drifting -means the deposit of windblown snow on roadways or lanes which makes
the passage of vehicular traffic extremely difficult.

k) Snowplowing -means pushing accumulated snow from the roadway surface either to the
sides of the roadway or the center of the roadway to ensure travel lanes are passable to
traffic.

) Street - means any public thoroughfare for movement of vehicles and pedestrians.

m) Street Storage -means the on-street storage of plowed snow.

n) Truck Route - means the highway or roadway so designated for heavy truck traffic.

o) Village -means the municipal corporation of Alberta Beach.

p) Windrow -means a continuous ridge of snow running parallel to the road, created from
snowplowing operations.

Page 10f 4



ALBERTA BEACH
VILLAGE POLICIES

POLICY: G.3.5 SNOW & ICE CONTROL POLICY —I

Guidelines:

a)

b)

c)

d)

e)
f)

g)

Alberta Beach will take full advantage of the snow storage capacity of roadways and
boulevards to minimize the expenditures associated with snow removal.

Although this policy sets out the priorities and procedures for snow and ice control, public
works staff may be directed to work in areas requiring immediate attention due to
emergency conditions or localized drifting.

The snow and ice control policy aims to provide reasonable winter driving conditions for
vehicles that are:

i) adequately equipped for winter driving; and

ii) are operated in a manner consistent with good driving habits.

It is expected that there will be situations that arise where the immediate demand for snow
and ice control services will exceed the available resources. In these situations, accessibility
for emergency vehicles will be deemed the greatest priority.

This policy must be kept flexible and should serve as a guideline for snow and ice control
within the Village.

Alberta Beach may adjust/alter any section within this policy when an emergency situation
and/or when severe weather situations occur.

The Village will consistently endeavor to accomplish the tasks laid out within this policy in
the most cost-effective and safe manner, while still maintaining a high level of service.

Service Levels:
Level of service standards is established for municipal controlled roadways according to their

priority ranking.

a)

b)

d)

f)

g)

Snow plowing and ice operations will begin after accumulations of at least 10.16
centimeters (four inches) of snow or when drifting snow significantly impedes traffic flow.
Should the Public Works Manager consider the road surface unsafe for the traveling public
the appropriate action shall be taken as deemed necessary, including the hiring of casual
staff or contractors as required.

Snow and ice control operations are primarily conducted Monday through Friday. If deemed
necessary by the CAO and/or Public Works Manager due to weather conditions, snow and
ice control operations may commence on or continue into the weekend.

Private driveways will not be cleared by Village crews or equipment.

Roadway sanding will occur on the same priority basis as snow plowing.

Service Levels may be impacted by:

i) available resources;

ii) equipment failures;

iii) extreme weather conditions; and

iv) budget.

It is to be expected that there will be extreme winter situations where the immediate
demand for snow and ice control services will exceed the available resources.

The procedure for snow removal and ice control shall be as follows:

a)

Removal or plowing of as much snow or ice as possible shall be done with suitable plowing
equipment.

Page 2 of 4



ALBERTA BEACH
VILLAGE POLICIES

POLICY: G.3.5 SNOW & ICE CONTROL POLICY

10.

11.

12,

b) Treatment of remaining snow or ice with buckshot, sand,treated sand, or mixed

combinationshall be done to achieve good winter driving conditions. X
¢) Plowing and de-icing activities shall continue as weather and operational conditions permit.

Roadway Plowing Priority Ranking:

Priority for plowing of roads with heavy snowfall shall be as follows:
a) Emergency Services;

b) Truck routes;

c) Main arterial roads;

d) School Bus Route ( 46 St & 45 Ave);

e) Residential streets;

f) Alleys;

g) Municipal Parking lots;

h) Windrows.

Roadway Sanding:
Roadway sanding will occur on the same priority basis as snow plowing. Emphasis will be placed
on truck routes, emergency services, important intersections, and other known problem areas.

Snowfall Accumulation:
If a snowfall with an accumulation of 10.16 centimeters (4 inches) or more should occur during

snow and ice control operations, roadway plowing and sanding operations will start from the
beginning of the priority ranking list.

Sidewalk Snow & Ice Control:

Snow clearing of sidewalks shall be prioritized as follows:

a) It shall be the responsibility of the Public Works Department to provide snow and ice control
on the municipal sidewalks where there is no residential or commercial property adjacent to
the sidewalk.

b) The sidewalk ice control shall be by using an approved de-icing solution.

c) As per the Alberta Beach Traffic Bylaw, an owner of a property shall ensure the removal of
snow and ice on the sidewalk adjacent to the residential or commercial premises including

private driveway crossings.

Windrow Service:

The Public Works Department will endeavor to keep driveway accesses clear of windrows while

performing snow plow procedures however this is not always possible and the following will

apply:

a) Windrow service will only be provided in the priority as shown above under Roadway
Plowing Priority Ranking.

b) The windrow removal service intends to knock down the windrow and allow for vehicle
passage; it is not the intent of the service to provide full clearing and cleaning of the entire
width of a driveway, from edge to edge. An approximate depth of 10.16 centimeters (4
inches) of snow will be left to avoid damage to driveways.

Page 3 of 4



ALBERTA BEACH
VILLAGE POLICIES

POLICY: G.3.5 SNOW & ICE CONTROL POLICY

c) Service will be provided only when the windrow is an accumulated height of 30.48
centimeters (12 inches) or greater.

d) No windrow removal service will be provided to those property owners who push snow
from their driveways into the windrow for removal by the Village.

e) It is the intent that windrows will only be removed from driveways that have been
continuously cleared, however, service may be available in other situations.

f) Snow from the cleared windrows will be deposited on the road allowance adjacent to
driveways.

13. General:
a) Alberta Beach may if deemed necessary, build or place windrows of snow either in the

center of the roadway or on the sides of the roadway.

b) Boulevards may be utilized for snow storage and may result in damages to improvements
and trees within the Village boulevards. Care and atténtion will be taken to reduce potential
damage to trees and boulevards; however, it will not be the responsibility of the Village to
replant or reconstruct any damaged trees or boulevards.

¢) The Village is not responsible for any sand/gravel that may be left on boulevards after the
snow has melted. It is the responsibility of the property owner/occupier to remove the
sand/gravel from the boulevards.

d) Residents are strictly prohibited from depositing show on or pushing snow across any
roadway as per the Alberta Beach Traffic Bylaw as this could cause damage to snow removal
equipment and cause a safety liability problem should a vehicle hit this accumulation of
snow and lose control. Snow is not to be deposited on any Village property.

e) No vehicles, garbage waste containers, equipment, or other objects are to be left or parked
on the roadway during snow plowing or removal operations.

f) Damages to vehicles, garbage waste containers, equipment, and other objects left or parked
on road allowances will be the property owner's responsibility.

g) The Village accepts no responsibility for damage to or restoration of sod, sculptures, rock
gardens, concrete, stonework, and other landscaping on public property from the actions of
snow plowing or removal, sand, or a mixed combination thereof, the weight of snow, or any
other cases of damage.

h) Other than for emergency conditions, snow operations may be suspended at temperatures
below minus 30 degrees Celsius.

i) Residents are not to attempt to flag down equipment operators, and when approaching
snow equipment, a minimum distance of 10 meters (32 feet) is to be maintained.

DEPARTMENT:
ADOPTED AND APPROVED BY COUNCIL: , 2022

AMENDMENT DATE/RESOLUTION NO:

Page 4 of 4



(3.a

Alberta Beach Village Office 2o Shal Q‘fi

From: CSS FCSS Admin <CSS.FCSSAdmin@gov.ab.ca>
Sent: December 23, 2021 9:16 AM

To: Julie Skrepnek

Cc: Karen Wronko

Subject: FCSS Surplus Policy

Attachments: FCSS Surplus Policy.pdf

Sent on behalf of Julie Skrepnek:

Good afternoon,

I'am writing to provide an update about a surplus policy for the provincial FCSS program. As you may have heard in
Karen Wronko's presentation at the FCSSAA conference on December 3, a surplus policy for the provincial FCSS

program was recently approved.

Various FCSS grant program documents outlined options for addressing grant surpluses, but there was no overarching
written policy to support decision-making and approvals, so a surplus policy for the program was drafted and recently

approved.

The written policy is not expected to result in a-significant change in the use of FCSS surpluses but will provide better
options for addressing challenging and unique situations and will ensure transparency and accountability.

The surplus policy describes how surpluses will be dealt with, according to the FCSS grant agreement. Section 7 of the
FCSS grant agreement outlines four scenarios for addressing surpluses:

7. If the Minister determines there is unexpended funding ("Surplus") during the Term or at any time following
the expiry or termination of this Agreement, the Minister, in the Minister's sole discretion, may:

(a) demand repayment of all or part of the Surplus by the Municipality to the Government of Alberta within
ninety (90) days of the demand or the expiry or termination of this Agreement;

(b) adjust the total amount of Funding by withholding payment of any portion of Funding equal to the Surplus
amount, or by setting-off the Surplus amount against any future scheduled payments of Funding in the Term;

(c) authorize the Municipality to retain the Surplus and redistribute the Surplus amount across the remaining
year(s) of the Term; or

(d) apply the Surplus to any payment made by the Minister pursuant to a further funding agreement with the
Municipality for the same or similar purpose.

The FCSS Surplus Policy also outlines the process for receiving, evaluating and communicating decisions about requests,
and lists the factors that may be used to evaluate surplus retention requests. The delegated authority to approve a
surplus request will remain with the Executive Director of Civil Society and Community Initiatives.

The FCSS Surplus Policy has been posted on the GoA Open Government site. You can find the document here:
https://open.alberta.ca/publications/family-and-community-support-services-surplus-policy




I appreciate some local FCSS programs have had pending surplus requests for longer than we would like as the new
policy was finalized. We are working to review those requests and will have a decision to you soon and will be in direct
centact with you. As a note, surpluses from 2020 can be spent until the end of the current grant agreement term,
December 31, 2022 for Municipalities and March 31, 2023 for Metis Settlements. You are encouraged to closely monitor
budgets and identify surplus in advance of the end of your grant agreement to myself or the team ensure a smooth
transition to the new agreements for 2023. Please reach out to me if you have any questions or concerns.

Julie Skrepnek (she/her)

Director, Community Preventive Programs
Community and Social Services

Mobile 780 975 4347
Julie.skrepnek@gov.ab.ca

Aperton

Classification: Protected A



Family and
Community
Support Services
Surplus Policy

Classification: Public



This publication is issued under the Open Government Licence — Alberta (http://open.alberta.callicence).

Required

Family and Community Support Service Funding Program Surplus Policy | Community and Social Services
© 2021 Government of Alberta | December 20, 2021 | ISBN 978-1-4601-5297-3

FCSS Surplus Policy | November 2021
Classification: Public



Contents

Introduction S

Purpose of Surplus Program PONCY .......c.cccceemererrrrinsssesessssmssesessrsesersssssessassens

Whatis a sUrplus? .....cccevveeverreenencrcrenerenene
Four Mechanisms to address FCSS Funding Program Surpluses ...........c........
Occurrences of @ SUIPIUS......c.cvvrvcrirercsmimsesscssessensesesersesssssssssmssssnssssasassscavssnssenss

Surplus Decision Process...... Cttesasrramrsents s et s s e nr e e e e naen snenas

Delegation of Authority...........c.cccrnrerrmernseenees

FCSS Surplus Policy | November 2021
Classification: Public



Introduction

Since 1966, the Government of Alberta (GoA), together with participating municipalities and Metis Settiements, have partnered
to fund preventive social services for Albertans through the Family and Community Support Services (FCSS) Funding
Program. Through the FCSS Funding Program, partnering municipalities and Metis Settlements design and deliver preventive
social services to enhance the well-being of individuals, families, and communities. Services provided must be of a preventive
nature, delivered through promotion or intervention strategies provided at the earliest opportunity.

Participating municipalities and Metis Settlements enter into a funding agreement with the GoA, and set up FCSS programs in
their community (referred to as ‘local FCSS programs’ in this document). Each local FCSS program is a partnership between
the communities and the GoA. Participating municipalities and Metis Settlements are required to contribute one dollar for every
four dollars provided by the GoA.

The FCSS Funding Program funding formula determines the aliocation of provincial funding amongst participating
municipalities and Metis settlements. Each local FCSS program is required to fully expend the funding allocated from the
municipality or Metis settlement and the GoA funding each year.

Section 7 of the current funding agreement, January 1, 2020 to December 31; 2022 for municipalities and April 1, 2020 to
March 31, 2023 for Metis Settlements, outlines provisions the Minister may pursue to address unexpended funds. Section 7
reads as follows:

7. If the Minister determines there is unexpended funding ("Surplus”) during the Term or at any time following the
expiry or termination of this Agreement, the Minister, in the Minister's sole discretion, may:

(a) demand repayment of all or part of the Surplus by the Municipality to the Government of Alberta within ninety (90)
days of the demand or the expiry or termination of this Agreement;

(b) adjust the total amount of Funding by withholding payment of any portion of Funding equal to the Surplus amount,
or by setting-off the Surplus amount against any future scheduled payments of Funding in the Term;

(c) authorize the Municipality to retain the Surplus and redistribute the Surplus amount across the remaining year(s)
of the Term; or

(d) apply the Surplus to any payment made by the Minister pursuant to a further funding agreement with the
Municipality for the same or similar purpose.

Note: The Family and Community Support Services Act defines municipality in section 1(b)(i) as both a municipality
and a Metis Settlement.

Purpose of Surplus Program Policy

This document is intended to outline and clarify the process the FCSS Funding Program will employ related to section 7 of the
funding agreement to address surplus funds as reported by funding program recipients (local FCSS programs).

What is a surplus?

Each local FCSS program has an annual budget consisting of 80% provincial dollars and at least 20% matching contribution
by the municipal or Metis Settlement program. Local FCSS programs are required to provide annual reports consisting of
financial reporting of revenues and expenditures.

If a local FCSS program does not spend all its FCSS dollars budgeted within a fiscal year within the term of the agreement
and/or at the end of the agreement's term, the remaining funds result in a surplus. By convention through the history of the
FCSS Funding Program, every dollar spent by a local FCSS program spends at a rate of 80% provincial dollars and 20% local
program dollars. Therefore, surplus dollars at the end of the year are calculated proportionate to the amount the GoA and
municipality have contributed. If 2 municipality, through the submission of its annual report, demonstrates it has contributed
more than the required 20% of funding, consideration may be given in the determination of the surplus under section 7 of the
funding agreement.

FCSS Surplus Policy | November 2021 4
Classification: Public



&

Four Mechanisms to address FCSS Funding Program Surpluses

Based on the FCSS Funding agreement, the department (on behalf of the Minister of Community and Social Services) has
four mechanisms by which to address surpluses reported by local FCSS programs.

Occurrences of a Surplus

Local FCSS programs whose annual reports confirms a financial surplus will be engaged by the GoA to provide the reason
(rationale) and/or unique circumstances that resulted in the surplus. Efforts will be made by GoA FCSS Funding Program staff
to discuss individual circumstances of the surplus prior to determining which provision to exercise.

The provisions are:

1. Demand repayment of the surplus funds (section 7(a) of the FCSS Funding agreement).
« [f this option is pursued, a letter will be sent from the GoA to the local program indicating the amount of funding the local
FCSS program is owing to the GoA. Repayment of the surplus will be due ninety (90) days from the date the letter was
received by the local FCSS program.

2. Adjust the total amount of funding to the local program by withholding payment of any portion of funding equal to the surplus
amount or by setting-off the surplus amount against any future scheduled payments (section 7(b) of the FCSS funding
agreement). ’

« If this option is pursued, a letter will be sent from the GoA to the local FCSS program indicating the amount of FCSS
Funding dollars the local FCSS program will have withheld or set-off future payments to account for the surplus.

¢ Funding releases to the local FCSS program will be withheld or set-off until the GoA portion of the surplus is matched by
the funding release being withheld by the GoA.

¢ Amendments to the funding schedule within the funding agreement will be made to reflect the necessary changes.

3. Authorize a local FCSS program to retain and carryover a surplus into the following year of the term (section 7(c) of the

FCSS Funding agreement).

o If this option is pursued, an email from the local FCSS program authority to the GoA will be required stating the amount of
the surplus, what caused the surplus, and details explaining how the monies will be used to ensure zero surplus at the
end of the year following the surplus.

« If this option is pursued, a letter will be sent from the GoA to the local program indicating the amount the local FCSS
program has been approved to carry forward into the following year. The GoA surplus funds will be required to be spent in
the year with the required matching municipal contribution.

= Surpluses approved by the GoA will show as 80% of the total surplus request added to the next year's annual report. With
additional provincial funding added as a surplus carry over, the local FCSS program will need to match that amount to
complete the 80/20 provincial/municipal or Metis Settlement program split.

e This option will not be pursued if there is not sufficient time left within the funding agreement term.

Example
e Alocal FCSS program has a $100 surpius at the end of the year. The local FCSS program requests to carry over the full

surplus. 80% of that surplus is deemed GoA FCSS Funding and 20% is deemed municipal.
» The 80% or $80 is carried over into the following year of the term and requires the additional 20% matching local FCSS
program contribution.

4. Authorize the municipality or Metis Settleme_nt to use the surplus funding for another funding agreement with the same or
similar purpose (section 7(d) of the FCSS Funding agreement)
e This option would likely be authorized only in the last year of the funding agreement.
» If this option is pursued, a letter will be sent from the GoA to the local FCSS program indicating the amount of GoA dollars
the local FCSS program will be approved to transfer to a new FCSS Funding agreement. The new FCSS funding
agreement will reflect the surplus that is carried over in addition to any new funding.

FCSS Surplus Policy | November 2021
Classification: Public



Surplus Decision Process

Surplus decisions are determined on a case-by-case basis and cannot be appealed. The steps and factors used to evaluate a
grantee’s individual circumstance include, but are not limited to, the following. GoA Staff will:

* Review the FCSS annual report from the local FCSS program to determine the surplus amount.
« Engage and consuit with the local FCSS program to discuss the reason for the surplus.

« Assess the recipient's individual circumstances to inform which provision is the most suitable under section 7 of the funding
agreement. Assessment may include:
- The validity of the budget provided by the local FCSS program to the GoA to utilize the requested surplus funds in the
year following the surplus.
~ The amount of the surplus compared to their annual funding.
- How often the local FCSS program reports a surplus.
- The quality of the reporting from the local FCSS program.
— The rationale and circumstances for the surplus.
— The remaining term of the funding agreement.
¢ Make a recommendation to the responsible Executive Director and will subsequently endeavour to notify the recipient of
their decision within thirty days.

Delegation of Authority

The FCSS program is within the portfolio of the Minister of Community and Social Services. Each FCSS Funding agreement is
entered on behalf of the Minister of CSS. The Executive Director of FCSS within CSS will make all local FCSS program
funding surplus decisions on behalf of the Minister of CSS, unless otherwise delegated.

FCSS Surplus Policy | November 2021 6
Classification: Public



13.b

Alberta Beach Village Office (4 Cioranc, /
From: Alberta Counsel <news@albertacounsel.com>

Sent: January 7, 2022 2:23 PM

To: aboffice@albertabeach.com

Subject: At a Glance - January 7, 2022

Premier Says Absolutely No Mandatory Vaccinations in Alberta

Canada’s federal Health Minister Jean-Yves Duclos held a media briefing on Friday, January 7 to discuss
COVID-19 strategies heading into 2022. Duclos told reporters that while physical distancing, tests, and PPE
are important, the only thing that will bring the COVID-19 crisis to an end is vaccinations. Duclos stated that

mandatory vaccination is a “conversation” that the provinces and territories will need to have in the upcoming

weeks.

Premier Jason Kenney responded within an hour with a resounding declaration that mandatory vaccination
requirements will not happen in Alberta. The Premier’s tweet stated, “Alberta’s Legislature removed the power
of mandatory vaccination from the Public Health Act last year and will not revisit that decision, period”. Premier
Kenney followed up his statement by encouraging all who are eligible to get vaccinated while reiterating that

vaccination is a personal choice that individuals must make for themselves.

Alberta reports record-high COVID-19 cases

On January 6, Alberta reported a record 4,869 new COVID-19 cases bringing the provincial number up to
39,897 active cases. Edmonton and Calgary have the highest rates with 14,972 and 19,261 active cases
respectively. There are now 498 Albertans in hospitals with COVID-19 and 64 patients in the ICU. These rates

1



are consistent with physician warnings that the Omicron variant is vastly more contagious than previous

variants of COVID-19 with a chance of it leading to less severe side effects.

As the rate of infection grows, so does the number of Albertans who have received COVID-19 booster shots.
As of January 6, more than one million booster shots had been administered to Albertans. None of the current
COVID-19 hospital patients had received their third dose of the vaccine and Dr. Deena Hinshaw urged
Albertans in her Thursday news release to get the third dose of the vaccine to protect against infection and to

prevent the development of severe outcomes from the Omicron variant.

Back to school season has arrived in Alberta

The Alberta government has announced that Alberta’s K-12 students will return to in-person classes on
January 10, 2022. Experts in child development from across the world have continued to stress the important
of in-person learning to the overall health and wellbeing of children. During Minister Adriana LaGrange’s
January 5 news conference, she stated that “most children feel more connected, they learn better and
generally thrive when they are at school in person. This is why Alberta’s government has placed such a priority

on safe in-classroom instruction and on making sure that our schools have the tools that they need”.

Minister LaGrange defended the decision by citing COVID-19 poses a reduced risk for children and that the
mental health of children must be considered when making schooling decisions in the province. Dr. Hinshaw
has reiterated the importance of teachers and students remaining at home if they experience any symptoms of

illness. To support the return to in-person classes, the Alberta Government is providing schools with rapid test

kits and medical-grade masks.

Alberta Counsel, 800, 9707-110 Street NW, Edmonton, AB T8H1V9, Canada, 780-652-1311
Unsubscribe Manage preferences




Alberta Beach VillaEe Office

From: Alberta Counsel <news@albertacounsel.com>
Sent: January 11, 2022 10:42 AM

To: aboffice@albertabeach.com

Subject: The NEWS - January 11, 2022

Dear Friends of Alberta Counsel,

We are pleased to be sending you the latest edition of The NEWS from Alberta Counsel. You can check out

individual articles below!

In our feature article, we look at some of the major stories to come in 2022 for Alberta's government.

Aileen Burke continues her mini-series on Alberta's response to homelessness as we release part 4.

Finally, our Key Influencer in this issue is Brandy Cox, the Deputy Minister of Municipal Affairs.

And of course, the At a Glance section will fill you in on the important political news of the past two weeks.

This week only, we will not be able to provide a PDF copy of The NEWS. We will resume regular PDF

newsletter distribution when we release Issue 148 later this month.




Missed our webinars? Don't worry! We now have pre-recorded webinars for you to watch on-demand:

https://www.albertacounselnews.com/resources

v

Happy Reading,

Aaron Singleton

Alberta Counsel, 800, 9707-110 Street NW, Edmonton, AB T8H1V9, Canada, 780-652-1311

Unsubscribe Manage preferences




Be sure to check out cur resources! view previously recorded webinars on a variety of topics.

THE — The NEWS Political Events
| f O in signup

ALBERTA COUNSEL Resources Our Team

Jan 10 - Written By Alberta Counsel
At a Glance

Province Further Restricts Access to PCR Testing

On the day Alberta’s K-12 students and school staff returned to the classroom, Dr. Deena Hinshaw
shared that the province’s PCR testing resources have been overwhelmed. The Chief Medical
Officer of Health indicated that wait times to book a PCR test is nearly four days with an average
turn around time for results estimated to be about two days. While a full list can be found online,
Dr. Hinshaw explained that eligibility for PCR testing will be limited to those who live or work in
long-term care facilities and those who have a clinically high risk of severe outcomes.

“While we have been used to managing COVID through widespread PCR testing, that approach
is not possible with the Omicron variant. At this time, most people who have mild symptoms
don’t need a PCR test. For those without risk factors such as immunosuppression, they should
self-isolate and manage their symptoms at home, using a rapid test if they have one.”

Premier Says Absolutely No Mandatory Vaccinations in Alberta

Canada’s federal Health Minister Jean-Yves Duclos held a media briefing on Friday, January 7 to
discuss COVID-19 strategies heading into 2022. Duclos told reporters that while physical
distancing, tests, and PPE are important, the only thing that will bring the COVID-19 crisis to an
end is vaccinations. Duclos stated that mandatory vaccination is a “conversation” that the

provinces and territories will need to have in the upcoming weeks.

Premier Jason Kenney responded within an hour with a resounding declaration that mandatory
vaccination requirements will not happen in Alberta. The Premier's tweet stated, “Alberta’s
Legislature removed the power of mandatory vaccination from the Public Health Act last year
and will not revisit that decision, period”. Premier Kenney followed up his statement by
encouraging all who are eligible to get vaccinated while reiterating that vaccination is

personal choice that individuals must make for themselves.



FRIBS WS W F WIS WE SW I WwW e w SHIMJEE W W WIS IV WHWww

On January 6, Alberta reported a record 4,869 new COVID-19 cases bringing the provincial
number upto 39,897 active cases. Edmonton and Caigary have the highest rates with 14,972 and
19,261 dctive cases respectively. There are now 498 Albertans in hospitals with COVID-19 and 64
patients in the ICU. These rates are consistent with physician warnings that the Omicron variant
is vastly more contagious than previous variants of COVID-19 with a chance of it leading to less

severe side effects.

As the rate of infection grows, so does the number of Albertans who have received COVID-19
booster shots. As of January 6, more than one million booster shots had been administered to
Albertans. None of the current COVID-19 hospital patients had received their third dose of the
vaccine and Dr. Deena Hinshaw urged Albertans in her Thursday news release to get the third

dose of the vaccine to protect against infection and to prevent the development of severe

outcomes from the Omicron variant.
Back to school season has arrived in Alberta

The Alberta government has announced that Alberta’s K-12 students will return to in-person
classes on January 10, 2022. Experts in child development from across the world have continued
to stress the importance of in-person learning to the overall heaith and wellbeing of children.
During Minister Adriana LaGrange’s January 5 news conference, she stated that “most children
feel more connected, they learn better and generally thrive when they are at school in person.
This is why Alberta’s government has placed such a priority on safe in-classroom instruction and

on making sure that our schools have the tools that they need”.

Minister LaGrange defended the decision by citing COVID-19 poses a reduced risk for children
and that the mental health of children must be considered when making schooling decisions in
the province. Dr. Hinshaw has reiterated the importance of teachers and students remaining at

home if they experience any symptoms of iliness. To support the return to in-person classes, the
Alberta Government is providing schools with rapid test kits and medical-grade masks.

Alberta Counsel

Responsesto

I/AI. II“IIIAI‘A‘I‘ l IAIM"A‘AI“AA



pBranay Lox - veputy vilni-oeries Apout >

Minister of Municipal the Evolution of
Affairs Alberta’s Response -
Part Four

Subscribe to The NEWS
f v in

The NEWS by Alberta Counsel =20C =

(780) 652-1311

#800 9707 110 Street NW

Edmonton, AB T5K 2L9



12.d

Alberta Beach Village Office
=il

i d

From: AEP Outreach-Services <AEP.Outreach-Services@gov.ab.ca>
Sent: January 7, 2022 2:06 PM

Subject: 2022 Alberta Fisheries Management Engagement

Hello!

Alberta Environment and Parks (AEP) will be hosting a series of public engagement sessions this month regarding
fisheries management and proposed regulatory changes. Topics covered in this engagement will include:

management objectives and fishing regulation options for a number of waterbodies across Alberta;

* notification items on fishing regulations, which are necessary to achieve conservation management objectives;
and
* updates on items from previously conducted engagements, such as Alberta’s walleye stocking program, new

angling guide licensing, and the special harvest licence electronic-tag pilot, as well as describing options to address the
additional stress on stream fisheries from the combination of low flows, high temperatures, and high angler effort.

There will be webinars focusing on regional, waterbody-specific regulations proposed for 2022-23. Due to COVID-19
restrictions, these engagement sessions will be delivered as online webinars by AEP fisheries staff through Zoom. All
webinars will include a question and answer period. For those who can’t attend, a recording of the webinar will be
added to the Alberta Environment and Parks YouTube Page
<https://can01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.youtube.com%2Fc%2FAlbertaEnvironme
ntVideos%2Fvideos&data=04%7C01%7Cjanine.higgins%40gov.ab.ca%7Cd3b12efc7b2d49034b5208d9d21f4ef5%7C2bb5
1c06af9b42c58bf53¢c3b7b10850b%7C0%7C0%7C637771854165215548%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsh3d8ey)WljoiMCaw
LiAWMDAILCJQljoiV2luMzliLCIBTil61k1haWwiLCIXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000&sdata=ytVNHDUNSGgbt%2B7RMZcNziiWObFI

02gYziQxXLJ28B4%3D&reserved=0> the next day.

Together, these public webinars will provide background information that will help inform the feedback Albertans
provide on the 2022-23 Sportfishing Regulation survey, which will be available online on January 10 at 12:00pm.
Further information on these sessions can be found on the Fisheries Management Engagement homepage
<https://www.alberta.ca/2022-23-sportfishing-regulations-engagement.aspx> . Details on the engagement site include
webinar registration information, additional background materials, and a link to the online survey once it opens on
January 10. When individuals pre-register for the webinar, they can also submit a question which may be answered at

the beginning of the question and answer period.

As a valued stakeholder or partner in fisheries management, we would like to invite you to join these webinars and
complete the online survey. We would also appreciate your support in forwarding and posting fisheries engagement
information on your social media platforms — we will be sharing information on My Wild Alberta’s Facebook. -
<https://can01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.facebook.com%2FMyWildAlberta&data=
04%7C01%7Cjanine.higgins%40gov.ab.ca%7Cd3b12efc7b2d49034b5208d9d21f4ef5%7C2bb51c06af9h42c58bf53¢c3b7b
10850b%7C0%7C0%7C637771854165215548%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8ey)WljoiMCAwLjAwMDAILCIQljoivV2IuMz

1



liLCJBTil6Ik1haWwiLCIXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000&sdata= =wKmq9bEX12jyjzGSWO00MCcF8LigDT23utV%2FdWEpsKIY%3D&r
eserved=0> We have included the direct registration links of the webinars below for your convenience. All webinars will

take place from 7 p.m.to 8:30 p.m.

January 12 - South Region Sportfishing Regulation Changes
<https://goa.zoom.us/webinar/register/WN_3e9mDPsWSXWXf8LuGziumw>

January 13 ~ North Region Sportfishing Regulation Changes <https://goa.zoom.us/webinar/register/WN_I8sOYQBKRS-
QfPWFT5NucQ>

January 19 - Provincial Fisheries and Sportfishing Updates
<https://goa.zoom.us/webinar/register/WN_CV32rNj7ROSHvtqDIv801g>

With Kind Regards,

Travis Ripley, Executive Director

David Park, Director of Fish and Wildlife Policy

Resource Stewardship Division

Fish and Wildlife Stewardship

Alberta Environment and Parks

Classification: Protected A



aboffice Dalbertabeach.com

From: Curtis Horning <curtis.horning@gov.ab.ca>

Sent: December 16, 2021 2:18 PM

Subject: For Information - Municipal COVID-19 Update Slides from Dec 15
Attachments: 2021-12-15-Covid-19 Municipal Update.pdf

Hi all,

Please find attached a copy of the webinar slides from yesterday’s (Dec 15) COVID-19 municipal update. Please note
that the noted typos have been corrected, and a slide providing ICU data by age and vaccination status has been
added. The latter was not included in the presentation yesterday, but is being shared in response to the request for this

information.

Sorry not getting this out sooner. Just a reminder that our next municipal update is scheduled for Dec 22. Please watch
for your Outlook invitation to be sent out later this week.

Cvart Horning
Operations | Health Emergency Operations Centre | Government of Alberta
Cell: 587-785-1615 | email: curtis.horning@gov.ab.ca

Classification: Protected A



120Z ‘Gl Jequisdeq

aljuan mco;EmQO S_mm_._ AQuabiswz Japuewwon Juepiouj ‘euheq ueyrg
:_‘_mmI JO JSJIQ [BOIPBN JBIYD ‘MEeUSUIH BUBS( ._D




!

V P313910.d :uonedyisse)d
!&@x&:\w\ z

pajeurndcen Aling uonendod o 9

un pajeurdaen Ajjenied uogeindod jo g .
‘paziunwiwi

AlIny usaq aney %z zL pue
9SOP BUO 1Sed| Je panladal

Jusdley
dAeY SUBHIS|Y [|E 4O %L0°8L 5

UJ
08
08

‘paziunwiun AfIny usaq aney
%88°8 pue asop suo jsea| je
paAisda4 aney dn pue age jo
SIE3AZT suelniaq|y JO %LZ'68
*paziunwiwy Ajny usaq aney
%88°9/ pue 3s0p dSuo Ised| je
PaAiadaJ aney dn pue age Jo
SIE3A G suelaqly JO %0T €8

‘paJalsiuiwpe
S3S0p LYy9°0LT L

(1z0z e °20) gGRIBAOT) BUIDJEBA ereqly



iy V P9103104d :UOI1BIIHSS.D
& §& €

paleuiddeaun leled m 9319|dwio) =

%08°¢

%VET9
1%89°CS

. %8S
%CS vy

%

%00°2C

pazijelidsoy $3587) DAY uone|ndod |ejoy

(heoz 21 eaueea) gNRIG UOIIBUIDOBA \E alelgs Juasding



é&@\r pajeunoeaun lenied m  919dwo) m

sdnouo a8y
+08 SIA6L-0L sIA 69-09 sJA 65-09 sih 61-0p siA 6€-0¢€ sih6z-2T

- - l - | - p—— -
ot It 0% - 5T 19 B g CE gy reL, o
6T 0z
STz o
ov

v'0v
0s
6.5 09

28ejuadiad

0L

6'vL - 08
118 06
_ 9'/8
. . m.om
HNm HNm OOH

(1zoz ‘e 22a -1 6nv) dNOUD
abe pue snjels suiddeA >o_ NO| Ul sesed 61-QINOD s.euaq|y

V P1223044 Mco__umu:_mmm_u

v



l.é& | . V 312391044 :UO1IeIIHISS.|D .
W :

0 3U07 Yanos

8 3U07 Y1IoN
€T au0z uojuowpy
c 3U07 |eJlua)
LC auoz Aie3jen

(oS |e101) uosdiwp

"BHa(q|V Ul S9SED UOIOIWQ PaWIU0D (G ‘1202 ‘Sl Joquieosa Jo sy

(62G°L 1L Q) JueLieA uoIdIWQO



B ke i P P Y (— T — T T L I T E——

e — = ' x 1 v N
Y P212910.d :UOIBIISSE|D
-J%ﬂw\, 9

‘sainsesaw
Uieay oiignd Jsjous usne sonpodjul 0} Buirey Jo ysl 8 JeMO] ||im mou yoeoidde snopnes e Bupje] .

paJinbai ale salpn)s aio0w Inq ‘esessip alanss jsuiebe uoijosioid sonpul |jis Aew sesop om| -

"uoIOIWQO
SU} 8z|jesnau 0} pauinbal aq Aew aulooeA JO SBSOP 981U} SB)EDIPUl J8ZIld WOl Blep qe| Aleulwijeid

‘Buou)s se aq Jou ||IM uonosyul
snoinaid woudj uonosjold os ‘ejle uUeY) uoROB)UIBI JO MSH JayBly Sewi) g O] € B SMOYS UOIOIWQ -

"pajosyul sjdoad jo Jaquinu Jabie| 8y} 0] NP ‘POMO|S JOU SI UOISSILISUE) Ji B1eD
8)noe uo jJoedwi ue aAey |im peaids pides pue Ayjiqissiwsuel; ybiy ayy ‘posealoap S| AJlJOASS Jl UBAT -
"UMOUWY] 1A Jou sI AJIJIOASS [enjoe pue a|qISSIWSUE.) Aybiy s1 uosoiwQ e1eolpul spodal Aleg .

‘Aep
v 0} ¢ A1ane Bulignop si jueliea sy} pue ‘Jaybiy si ejel uonosyul ybnosypiesiq ay) ‘juelieA snoinaud
Aue uey} Jaybiy Ajleonewelp s| asu 8y} ‘Ajlejusioyip UCIDILQ YOBI} 0} S|GE 818 OUyMm SSlUNOD [lB U] .

UOIOIWQ UO 80UspIAg JUaLInNg Jo Alewwing



v umﬁﬁo#_.Eo_u{mu'__o,._mmm._u

L

‘Apoauip seoiyo suediskyd
bunedionied Jo saeuueyd Bunedioed ‘| Lg Bujjes Ag 10 ‘WBISAS Bupjoog

9UIDOBA BUQIY 8y} Buisn auljuo pe)0oq aq Ued Sasop p,¢ 10} sjuswyuioddy

'8S0P puZ JIBY) 9OUIS SYUOW Q Ji
9SOp pI¢ B X00Qq UED SIS}I0M 81D Y)|eay e pue ‘Iop|o pue SIesk (g suepady

11202 ‘Gl 998 bunelg

S9S0(] 49}S00g UOI1BUIDOBA JC UoISuBdXT]



— TV ——— e e e = —

V Pa13230.d (UOREdYISSe)

8

‘paainbai (NS spjoyasnoy usamiaq Buouesip |eoisAy4  ©
Snje)s uoijeuldoeA Jo sso|piebay o
'suosiad Qg Je paddes sutewsas sbuusyieb jeioos jooping .

‘SUBMa(|Y PSjeulddBAUN PUE Pa)JEUIDOBA USBM]S( UOIOUNSIP ON O

(g1>) uaupjiyo 0} Aldde Jou ssoq ©
(sseah +g8|) suosiad Qg xely ©
‘Spjoyasnoy g o} pajiwij Jebuoj ou Buusyjeb |eioos ajeald Joopu]

1120z ‘Gl 99Q buluuibeg

sSuoloLSay bulsyjes |e1oog



D e L Ty ——

¥ Pa12a30id :uonedlissep)

6

‘JUBAS
d3Y 8y} }e padiojus si Bulusalds pue ‘safiAloe JoulsIp asay)
JO saapusjie usamiaq Buljbuiw/deano ou si aiay) papiroid
'SaIIAIOB d3Y-UoU pue 434 usamiaq Jiys Aew sjooyss .
"SaljIAIIOE. Jojejoads Jenolunoeljxs jooyos-ul Bunsoy
10} 43y ul 8jedioiied 0) 8sooyd Aew sanoyine |ooyos .

01 99 92A110343

S|00Y0S Ul weibold uondwaxs suonoso



_< vmuumuoi .“_co_pmu_tmmm_m :
‘leAel) jeuoneuss)ul o
10 JlIsswop 1o} syjuswalinbai J9aw jou op sy iss) pidey .

'd3Y paidope aAey oym sanjioey o)
palidde aq jouued weiboid siy) ybnouy) papinoid sy 1s9) pidey .

‘swoldwAs jnoyym sjdoad oy papusjul aJe s)sa} pidey .
pouad yoem g Jod uosiad Jad s)sa) g Jo X0Q| ©
198Q pay pue ‘Alebje) ‘uojuowp3 ul seiewseyd 109|8s
Pue Sslis SHY Jo8|8s je dliqnd 0} 8|qejieAe s)y Bunss) pidel 9914
:L1 98 8Ald8yYs - dliqng
‘Shjels JJs|e, uo sjooyds 9- ||e 0} s|qejieAe mou s)iy 1s8) pidey  «
‘YL 99 8A1oaje - S|jooYdS

welibolid Buiss| pidey jo uoisuedx3

aqoa)y




T D i — e S . - —— — ——= = - e
V P913310.d :uoneayisse|d
-ng\\ L

Jeuiqem buunp passaippe
Jou suopsenb o} puodsau 0} (Bunesw-isod) spew aq [Im Hoyg .

‘safjijediolunw 0} }saJlsyul Jo soidoy
Ajyuspi o) Jeuigam 0y Joud y@em ul Jno Juss 9q |IIm Aeains Jjoug -

(wdog:zl — wepg:LL) Inoy | 1oy pajnpayos aq jlim SIeuiqap) -

‘21 uer Buluuibaq Apjeam
-Iq paINpayds 8q 0} senijedidiunw yum sayepdn gL-qQINOD -

:¢¢0¢ 10} uejd
‘Wepg:LL ‘gg 98 :bunesw xeN

¢Z0¢ ul sejepdn |ediolunyy Joy ue|y



inoA yuey |




aboffice@albertabeach.com

From: Khrystyna Rewa <Khrystyna.Rewa@gov.ab.ca>

Sent: December 22, 2021 3:47 PM

Ce: Curtis Horning

Subject: COVID Municipal Update Slides - December 22
Attachments: 2021-12-20 - Covid-19 Municipal Update (2021-12-22).pdf
Hello all,

Please find attached a copy of the slides from today’s COVID-19 municipal update.

Just a reminder that our next municipal update is scheduled for January 12', an invite will be sent out in the new year. A
survey will be sent out the first week of January to coliect topics of interest.

Have a safe holiday season,
Khrystyna
Khrystyna Rewa

Health Emergency Operations Centre
Government of Alberta

Get the latest Alberta.ca/covid19statistics

,A:’fb@rbﬁ]

Classification: Protected A



1202 ‘ZZ Jaquagag

9us) suoljesadQ HileeH Aouabiawg ‘Uspuewwon Jusplouj ‘audeg ueyig
HESHJO 49010 [BIIPSIA 81U ‘MBYSUIH BUSSA U

15— B O ‘

-QINOD EMeq|Y

P .




olepdn snieis 6L-AIAOD




‘paziunwuwi
AjIng uaaq aney %0t°ZL

_ocm mmo—o U0 Hmmm_ je _uw>_muw.h
o9AeY sueliaqly ||e JO %TE 8L

‘paziunwiwi Ajjny uaaq aney
%60°58 PUE 3SOP BUO 1SeI|

1e paAI@daJ aAey dn pue a8e Jo
SIE9A TT SueLsq|V JO %Z1°68

‘paziunwiwil Ajny usaq aney
%L0°LL PUE DSOP BUO 1SE|

1e paAIadal aAey dn pue ade
30 SJBdA G sueLIBq|V JO %9E'E€8

‘paJaisiujwpe
S9sOp ¥8¥TST'L

VW Pa19910.4 :UONEI}isse]

€
pajeuooen L)y uopendod jo o, an..ﬁ
pajeudIea Ajjened uogeindod jo o .
jusdsed
3 g 3 5 S
#0-00

>
@

... 6P O
. Fvs0Sa

- .. tve0e2
_...w@.m@d




V Pa1331044 :UOREdISSE)

14

pa31euUDIeAUN lelued m  939|dwo) «

%0C'19

__.Iﬁ Jf ¥ .._
c._. .\;.J.

%81 vE

%0¢°T¢

pazijeydsoy $9S87) DAY uonejndod |ejol

ez oz equea) §NJR1G UOIJBUIOOBA AQ 818G JUSLIND



V P913310.d :uonedi}iss
éﬂ@\» paljeuddeaun . |eled m  9wdwod
sdnouo a3y
+08 SIh6/-01 s4A 69-09 SJA 65-05 S4A 61-01 sJA 6€-0¢€ sihgz-21
—— T § A H ! [ N B s e : > i O
! - S == l =57
81 | “ _“ - 81 E g€ e Te Mw WA i ot
_ Pl 09 _ L8 €/
i _ 0°'ST | ; # 0¢
[ Al 4 B / e
i i | ¢
; | : % o7 &
Ty i A ﬁ “ _ o)
— 2 G : ﬁm
T'LS A M \ 09 o
o ! .
o s | 0L
VL v “ 08
608 580 ! !
€26 616 00T

(1zoz ‘0z 22a -0z 6nv) dNOUB
9be pue snjejs suoea Aq N} Ui S8SED B L-AINOD S eyaq|y

65—
G



e etal

Y po19310id ‘uonediyissey

9
‘suoloipsun( 1ayjo ui payodal 758 tHOT 22 2P J0 quiny
mc_mﬂ w_ ”_.msg cu_._>> mc__ :_ w_ w_ﬂ\_l_l . wmmmwm mmNm ,_“mfw«n.; mNWWWNwN Sseveeceie ommﬁ/mﬂ LT 9T ST va‘ MH:.N,H,,,: 0T 6 wN m S v w 1 .
0¢
'sAep ¢-z aq Aew swiny Buiignop "
Jeu) 1sebbns sasAjeue Areuiwis.d or 2
‘Janamoy ‘sejewiss 1snqod 5
10} MOj 00} suiewal payuspl ® 5
SOSEBO UOJOIWQ JO JBquinU 8y] o
08 o
U0 W) ssmamass ’
‘jueuen . L
ejod 8y} YlIm pasSau)m Sem e
ozt

leym ueyy saybiy Ajjenueisgns
S! 9)el ymmodb ssed uoloiwp s

S8Sed Bla(|y — UoIOIWQ



- 5 e

—

S ——— o 'V P91391014 (UORE3SSe)
m@%&é@\ L

"Buiddoup useq
Sey NDi-uou s|iym g/ punole psulewsl

v e e ol i o o ™ Y
DEIERRRYNEI NG EE RS L e
Sey suonezieydsoy NO| JusND Jo SeeiBLEESEE8SSs888s8
- NN NN N NN MoON NN NN MON NN NN
lequinu ay] "ybiy urews. ng Buisesasosp SESSSBSSESESSRERBRERE m S 8
usaq aAey suofezijejdsoy [ejo] . C WE W W TRRER RN P ETH B 0
. | | EEEEEERERERE g I B
1seybly aie sased uoloiwQ i .__ﬁ_ bl R i BRI Iy ol | ; N o
| _ B & @8 & B _E N B = - i
alaym (%99} Ananisod jusosad) o B | il & L [ ‘ o B | f s
auoz Auebje) ay) ul sejes ased Buisea.oul m v _m j __ e L, Ty oe g
= . | Q
Aq Ajebie| usnup ale sesesioul osay| T, | ooy 2
: = i 005 =
(0z 03 91 99Q) shep eny isnf s | g
Ul %L1 0} %/ G wouj paseasour AjAsod 5 8 i 009 =
= | W
- . _ OON “y
Airep :Buiquuio osje si Ayaisod usoiey o L §
'0Z Joquieoe( UO S8SBD Mau QL g | 008
0} Jaqwisoa( Auea uj Aep Jad gze punole at : 006

wouy pasesasoul Asy) :Ajpides Buisesiou si
B8]y Ul sesed Mau Ajiep Jo Jaquuinu ay| .

(1202 ‘0z Jequisoa( 40 sy)

SNjejs Jueling (euedy Ui sesen



L B RS N M IR Rl B i B LD e W e

|

e i =

T e - ] rr<vmuuwu_\_&mEo_pmu:_wmim,_d_i
copoqy ;

"BUID0BA J8Zlld 8y} palayo aq ||IM 6Z 0} 8} 9|doad "uoiosjold jo jaas| ybiy e Jayo
BUISPOI\ pue Jazijd yjog ‘NoA 0} s|qelieA. auiodeA YNYW 1Sl 8Y] 93] :SUIDdep

'9AJIBSAJ UO 9|gejieAR OS|e SOIul|D) "991)j0
SueloisAyd e 1oejuoo 1o ‘|1g jled [OINd SHY JO Aoewieyd) auljuo %00g :%00q 0) MO}

"9SOP PUODSS JB)e SUYJUOW G }SBS| 1B Y00g UBD +Q| SUOAIBAT

11202 ‘L Joquisoeq buers

S8S0(] J81SC0g UsIjeUIdoeA Jo uoisuedx=



Sainses|\ yjleaH 2liqnd pajepdn




ih . - 3

e e e L Bl

I — _ . _ <_uwu_u.w,;woi”mo_umu_u__mmm_u.
éﬁWs ol

‘Aenuep ul
BuiuuiBaq yyuow Jad syssy uoljjiw QL 0} uolNqulSsIp 8seaJoul 0} uonuajuj o

weliboid bunsa) pidey sy) poddns
0} S1S9) Jeuonippe uoyjiw 0| 0} dn jo sseyoind Joauip Buinsind epaqy  ©

‘Upuow sty Jsie| BulaLLe (SP) 000°00Z) SISS) [euOlIppe uoljiw | ©
Buiwos ul peynquisip aq 0} puey-uo (sHy 000‘00Y) SISe} BIoL co__mwmm O
| :psemuoy Bulony .
‘PaAIadal si Ajddns se Appoinb se paysiusjdel aq |im senusd
SHV pue ssidewleyd je uoiinqu}sIp PSNURUOD J0J )Y }SO| pidey .
'SUOl}eO0| SHY pue sejdewleyd 108j8s ybnouyl paingisip sy
1S3} 000°006S 40 uonNQLISIP [eRIul Yyum /| 98 payoune; weiborq -«

weibold 1y 1se pidey




SERGIRE TSRO =SS B S T

VD pumuoi coc.muc_mmm_u

‘weQge:ZlL Ag b
o< o_o pue ‘wdQQ: |1 Je 99IAI8S |OYOO[e SSED 0} SBINI|I0R) POSUSDIT  «

(aigelieae |ns siA 038
'SpJeljjiq 4o Butouep ou “6°9) Juswulepslus BAIOEISIUI UO SUOIOISY ©

o|qe) Jod a|doad (| 0} paliwi| Sieq pue SJUBINE)SSY .
'suonouysal Ajoedeo enusn abiej Aq peioedwi sBumes
Sdualpne psjess ui papiwiad Jsbuo| ou uopRdWNSUOD JULIP/POO]  «

'00G> Ajloeded yym senusa o) 1oedwi O  ©
-00G 1e paddeo Ayoeded uosiad QOQg‘L - 00S Uum sonuap ©
‘%0G 0} paonpau Ajoedes uosiad +000° L YlIIM Sonusp  ©

SONUBA 43y uodn suoyouysal Aloede .
Y2 1oquIada(] BA0BY T

SSINSE’IN Ul|esH Oljqnd |euoiippy



e
| '

B IIIRAR——— —— : i v paideioid uonestisse
§§ 4!

Jeuigam Bulnp passaippe
Jou suonssnb o} puodsail o0} (Bunesw-}sod) spew aq Im Yoy .

‘saljijediolunwu 0} }sais}ul Jo soido)
Ajuspi 0} Jeuigem o} Jold Yeem Ul INc Juss aq M ABAInS Jaug

(wdogizl — weQg:LL) JNoy | 10j paNpayos eq [IM SIBUIGOAN

‘APjoam
-19 paInpayos aq 0} sailjedioiunw yum sajepdn gL-qiAOD -

-¢¢0¢ 10} ueld
'220C ‘Z| uer :Bunesw jxeN

220z ul sajepdn) [ediounipy oy ue|d



.g.....,. b ...+
L N -
QA e

inoA yuey |




( aboffice@albertabeach.com

From: Khrystyna Rewa <Khrystyna.Rewa@gov.ab.ca>
Sent: January 13, 2022 12:20 PM

Subject: COVID 19 Municipal Update - Slides
Attachments: Covid-19 Update (2022-01-12).pdf

Hello,

For your reference, please see the slide deck from yesterday’s Municipal call attached. We are working on a Q&A
document for the questions that were not answered during the call, and will be sending that out shortly.

Thanks,
Khrystyna

Classification: Protected A



g e ..'__r

-19

_ ,;..,.U

Dr. Deena Hinshaw, Chief Medical Officer of Healthk
Ethan Bayne, Incident Commander, Emergengcy Health Operations Centre

January 12, 2022




Alberta Vaccine Coverage by Age Group

(as of January 06, 2022)

Percent

- % of population with 1 dose
% of population with 2 doses

E % of population with 3 doses

PSS T T WA RTINS 0§ N M W e WA

100

7,825,022 doses
have been
administered

79.51% of all

Albertans have

received one dose,
73.05% have
received two doses,
and 24.60% have
received three doses

Mberboos



1

Alberta’s Current State by Vaccination Status

(as of January 09, 2022)

Active Cases

Total Population

17.31% %

Hospitalized

1.20% .
40.16%
.54.90%
81.43% 4.88% |
& Complete = Partial - Unvaccinated
3 &%w%

_Classification: Protected A o - : - e
=% T e — P> S IS D £ e,




Alberta’s COVID-19 cases in iCU by vaccine status (sesos, 2021 - sar

09, 2022)

100

89.6
90 87.8 855 88.3

80 79.3

71.8
70

60

63.6

i
50 .

Percentage

LS
o

30

20

9.9
10 4.7

9.5
mm_wﬂ
0 E= ]

12-29 yrs 30-39 yrs 40-49 yrs 50-59 yrs 60-69 yrs

Age Groups

4 i Complete ® Partial Unvaccinated
n_mmm.mn_wm_.@:” Protected A

it - . BT s e TT T T——
O S T T o Lo U i asie o g & z el S e o




Cases in Alberta: current status (as of January 9, 2021)

45
£000 {3 New daily cases
o 40
—====DPercent positivity
5000 3s
3¢
g g
o
a 35 B
Mrlw £ Hch
= k=
] 3
@
T 000 .nn..v
i 0 g
2 I
U
o

15
10 7 .
5
[s]
m .
_._Classification: Protected A o
=it TN R SRR e ST B A T S Tl O e T ; z ! B R e e i T iR A e R e s

B e 2 LT T S W VOV P VDU ] B e U WU S




=== .

Changes to COVID-19 Testing Eligibility

Effective January 10, 2022

*  Due to rising demand for PCR tests, Alberta is changing the eligibility for these tests
to focus on those who most need them.

* PCR testing eligibility will now be focused on those who have clinicai risk factors for
severe outcomes and those who live and work in high-risk settings.

— (Click here for detailed information on eligibility criteria)

° AHS has updated the online COVID-19 assessment tool to help Albertans determine
whether they need a PCR test, what type of care to seek based on their symptoms
and how to take care of symptoms at home with appropriate support.

6 §
Classification: Protected A e

- - e e e e
S el S i = ot ad B e L ot e ol Aottt s ks R i s e T SR S



Changes to Isoiation Period

Order 02-2022 (replaces Order 01-2022) - effective January 10, 2022

* Isolation period for fully vaccinated individuals reduced to 5 days or
until person’s COVID-19 symptoms resolve (whichever is longer).

* Must remain masked in public or in company of others until day 10.

* Isolation period for not-fully vaccinated individuals remains 10 days or
until person’s COVID-19 symptoms resolve (whichever is longer).

* Isolation period for residents of healthcare facility remains 10 days or
until person’s COVID-19 symptoms resolve (whichever is longer).

7 (\Afg
Classification: Protected A ) _ T . -

R - R
b PR

&
£

R e



Updated Public Health Measures




Recent Public Health Measures

Order 59-2021 - effective December 24, 2021

+ Capacity restrictions upon REP venues
o Venues with 1,000+ person capacity reduced to 50%:
o Venues with 500 - 999 person capacity capped at 500;
o No impact to venues with capacity <499.

* Food/drink consumption no longer permitted in seated audience
settings impacted by large venue capacity restrictions.

* Restaurants and bars limited to 10 people per tabie

o Restrictions on interactive entertainment (e.g., no dancing or billiards, etc.
VLTs still available).

* Licensed facilities to cease alcohol service at 11 :00pm, and close by
12:30am.

9 . A\A\ﬁ

n_mmm_mnmzm:w Protected A —— T T

oot Tt b R i

SRR WT gy e mey e -~ ey s s TTTHEATI s e e i g
3 R L= S et A o A B et it SR



Order 02-2022 - Continued
Critical Worker Eligibility:

The only workers eligible for the isolation exception are those critical workers who are required to be
on-site, in-person for critical work duties.

This exception is only permitted when:

(a) services provided by the business or entity are critical for the ongoing operation of
services that impact the public interest:
(b) any substantive service disruption will be detrimental to the public interest;

(c) the person otherwise required to be in isolation are asymptomatic or mildly symptomatic:
and

(d) all other means of staffing critical worker positions have been exhausted.

10 §§
Classification: vqoﬁmnﬁma >

P e e - - RO — v " = — T e e e wo— o o PR e - B e e
BT o s SR S > : W o L . . 2! SR ’ - "

e b e i st s



Rapid Testing Program

General

* Demand increasing for access to rapid tests.
* Supply chain uncertainty also increasing.

*  GoA continues to pursue procurement of tests to supplement allocation
from federal government.

Employee Testing Program

* AH continues to review a high volume of new applications to the
program and requests for additional tests.

* Inlight of supply and demand, Alberta Health is considering options for
prioritization with the employer and service provider program.

1 éw@.g
n_mmm_:nmﬁ_o: vqoﬁmnﬁma A ‘

i

. - et e S e
L e LIRS AN o Lt e e o e S e - e LA L A L N ks 8 v i e MRS



Thank you!

T

e e T e R S N A S L 5 5 RIS T e I Tt = sl B vt S SR A




AN

g

aboffice@albertabeach.com e Leoiine
From: Alberta Health Services <community.engagement@ahs.ca>

Sent: December 20, 2021 5:07 PM

To: aboffice@albertabeach.com

Subject: AHS Together4Health Headlines - COVID Community Update

View this email in your browser

:i: Alberta Health
B Services

« HEALTH NEWS YOU CAN USE

Welcome to Together4Health Headlines, a weekly newsletter keeping you informed about key public
health information and opportunities to connect with AHS. We are committed to ensuring our partners and
stakeholders receive the information they need to help protect their families, colleagues and staff.

If someone else would benefit from this information, please invite them to subscribe. Also, please respond
to this short survey to let us know if this e-newsletter format is working to deliver the information you need.

Today's Update:

e COVID-19 Status

o
o]
o]
o]
o}

Omicron Variant: What We Know

ICU Capacity Update

New and Active Cases

Variants of Concern

COVID-19 Testing for Healthcare Workers

¢ COVID-19 Immunizations

o]
o
(o]
o

One Year Anniversary of First COVID-19 Vaccines in Alberta
Third doses available for additional Albertans

Vaccine Rollout to Children 5 to 11 Continues

Vaccine Availability

e Things You Need to Know

O0000000O0

Influenza Immunization Update: Spread Joy, Not Germs

AHS Immunization Policy

Government of Canada Advises Against Non-Essential International Travel
New Social Gathering Restrictions

Free Rapid Testing Kits Available

AHS recruits two family physicians for Grande Cache

Manning Outpatient clinics resume normal weekend hours

No doctors in Barrhead ED for 12 hours on three days




o Verna's Weekly Video Message: An interview with Gregory Turnbull, AHS Board Chair
o Operation Ho Ho: Santa visits the Stollery
¢ Join the Conversation
o 2022 Health and Provincial Advisory Council Meetings
¢ Be Well - Be Kind
o Foundation Good News
o Ponoka Adopt-a-Grandparent
o Managing Seasonal Stress during COVID-19
o Gratitude from Albertans

COVID-19 Status

Omicron Variant: What We Know

Today we're beginning with some information and context on the Omicron variant. As you've likely read,
the COVID-19 Variant of Concern Omicron was first detected in Alberta on November 30. As of Friday,
December 17 there were 323 cases, including 302 confirmed, 15 suspect and six probable. 56 per cent of
Alberta’s Omicron cases are in the Calgary zone, and all but 50 cases are in those under the age of 60.

78 per cent of Omicron variant-positive Albertans have been fully immunized; and seven per cent have
additional doses. As of Friday there are no hospitalizations, ICU admissions or deaths as a result of the
Omicron variant.

Overall, COVID-19 cases in Alberta hit 500 last Thursday for the first time since Nov. 5. The positivity rate
is likewise increasing, and is at 6.4 per cent today, compared to 4.5 per cent two days ago. There is an
expectation that positive cases are going to continue to grow in the days ahead, and we have once again
started planning for higher case numbers in the community, and for Albertans potentially needing hospital
care. For those involved in that planning and preparation, we thank you.

There are some early lessons from other jurisdictions. Ontario has seen rapid growth in the variant and it
is predicted that Omicron will become the dominant variant this week. Ontario has not reported any
hospitalizations or deaths among the Omicron cases, and the early outbreaks have tended to be among a
young adult population. It is too soon to tell the degree to which Omicron can cause serious illness. In the
U.K. Omicron cases are increasing and on Thursday, the U.K. reported its highest daily COVID-19 case
count since the beginning of the pandemic. The U.K. is seeing limited hospitalization to date and has
reported one death as a result of the Omicron variant.

Globally it's being reported that Omicron spreads more easily than other variants and is more likely to
evade immunity. Compared with other variants Omicron is more likely to cause re-infection in people who
have been infected before and to cause symptomatic infection among people who are fully vaccinated.
Early studies demonstrate that vaccine efficacy among those who are fully immunized is better at reducing
hospitalizations, but not at reducing the risk of infection. Vaccine effectiveness increases with the third
booster of an mRNA vaccine.

Data sources include: U.K. Healih Security Agency, Center for Infectious Disease Research and Policy
and Science Table: COVID-19 Advisory for Ontario.

ICU Capacity Update

AHS continues to do all it can to ensure we have enough ICU capacity to meet patient demand. We will
ensure that we maintain ICU capacity above daily demand to a planned maximum of 380 beds as long as
staff and physician availability allows, and will readjust our plans as needed if COVID-19 cases rise again.

We currently have 228 general adult ICU beds open in Alberta, including 55 additional spaces above our
baseline of 173 general adult ICU beds. There are currently 184 patients in ICU.

Provincially, ICU capacity (including additional surge beds) is at 81 per cent. Without the additional surge
spaces, provincial ICU capacity would be at 106 per cent.

Learn more at AHS Facilities: ICU Updates & Temporary Space Reductions.

New and Active Cases



For the seven-day period ending on Dec. 15, there was an average of 333 new cases of COVID-19 per
day, compared to 300 cases per day the previous week (Dec. 2 to Dec. 8), an 11.0 per cent increase.
Most zones reported an increase in the number of new cases per day, ranging from a 3.6 per cent
increase in North Zone to a 23.0 per cent increase in Calgary Zone, compared to the previous week.
Central Zone was the only zone to report a decrease in the number of new cases per day with a 10.0 per
cent decrease. South Zone reported no change in the number of new case per day compared to the
previous week. Calgary Zone reported the highest total number of new cases with 1,088 (an average of

155 new cases per day).

As of the Dec. 17 report there are 4,431 active cases in Alberta, an 8.2 per cent increase compared to our
last update on Dec. 8. Most zones reported a decrease in active cases. The zone with the largest reported
decrease was North Zone. Edmonton Zone and Calgary Zone both reported an increase in active cases
compared to Dec. 8. For the eleventh week in a row, Calgary Zone reported the most active cases with

2,069.

o= fotal ~ Artive em=o Recovered e Cied

350k

200k

250K

19 cases (0}
Dy
8

v 150k

[a}

§ 100k
S0k
fi=

2 e = e 2 g e

z g z ¥ g

Date
Hospitalizations

A total of 282 individuals were in non-ICU hospital beds for COVID-19 on Dec. 15, compared to 304
individuals in non-ICU hospital beds on Dec. 8, a 7.2 per cent decrease. The breakdown of
hospitalizations by zone as of Dec. 15, is as follows:

114 hospitalizations with 20 of those in ICUs in Calgary Zone
106 hospitalizations with 35 of those in ICUs in Edmonton Zone
68 hospitalizations with 9 of those in ICUs in Central Zone

41 hospitalizations with 3 of those in ICUs in North Zone

23 hospitalizations with 3 of those in ICUs in South Zone



s Hon Y P 0

”
£
#
1992 f "1
. H
{! i 2

»
&

Herpibllred casez (p)
o
3

4o
n
o N
.

: g I
1 b i
¥ ] 8 { 2]
y
e /\ A L. 2
o~ ,_:1 L »
Vo s et ,-n/ T d
D - 1
e R e T b S P SR R W WN EAL
© & < 3 3] @ ©
- > put > - ¥ port
- @ 3 3 = z
g 3 L & 2 ¥ >
Date

Cases By Age Group

As of Dec. 12, children aged five to 11 had the highest seven-day rolling average of new daily COVID-19
cases, with 15.86 cases per 100,000 children. Albertans aged 30 to 59 had the second-highest rate with
8.0 cases per 100,000 people. Trends in cases in Alberta by age group are shown below.

;c\ s 0-4 years b 12-19 years »—- 20-29 years
‘g 30-59 years - 5-11 years 60-72 years
= 80+ vears
a
o
a
o 60
]
Q.
[=)
[
i
&
a8 40
w
w
v
[£2]
(&)
o 20
—t
1
(]
3
vt
s o il Sk

uer 10
INCT0

Date reported to Alberta Health

As of Dec. 17, 3,286 individuals have passed away from COVID-19 including 15 deaths since the last
report. We extend our condolences to the families of these individuals, and to all who have lost loved ones
from any cause during this time.

Variants of Concern

For variants of concern, from Dec. 7 fo Dec. 13, the average percent of positive samples that were strain-
typed was 89 per cent. Of those strain-typed, the seven-day rolling average was 93.5 per cent Delta
variant, 5.1 per cent Omicron variant, and 1.4 per cent wild type or presumptive variant. Strain-typing
takes a number of days and these numbers may change as lab data becomes available.

Other Notable COVID-19 Related Information:

e Asof Dec. 15, a total of 341,023 cases of COVID-19 have been detected in Alberta and a total of
15,361 individuals have ever been hospitalized, which amounts to 4.5 individuals for every 100



cases. In all, 333,306 Albertans have recovered from COVID-19, meaning they are no longer
considered contagious.

e From Dec. 9 to Dec. 15, 56,110 COVID-19 tests were completed, an average of 8,016 tests per
day. During this period, the daily positivity ranged from 3.72 per cent to 4.98 per cent. As of Dec.
15, a total of 6,258,563 tests have been conducted and 2,613,777 individuals have ever been
tested.

¢ The R value, also known as the reproduction number, describes the ability of a disease to
spread. It tells us the average number of people that someone with COVID-19 will infect. An R
value of 1 means an infected person will infect one other person on average. Values below 1
mean transmission is decreasing; above 1, transmission is increasing. The R value is updated
every two weeks. From November 29 to Dec. 12, the provincewide R value was 0.96 and the
previously reported value was 0.88.

¢ Public reporting of outbreaks in schools continues and you can find more information, here.

COVID-19 Testing for Healthcare Workers
We continue to update the testing data for healthcare workers. These statistics provide the total number of

AHS and Alberta Precision Laboratories (APL) employees and physicians tested, including a breakdown
of the number of positive tests and those who have been confirmed to have been exposed in the

workplace.

As of Dec. 14:

e 87,325 employees (AHS and APL combined) have been tested for COVID-19 and, of those
tested, 9,112 (or 10.43 per cent) have tested positive.

e Of the 6,794 employees who have tested positive and whose source of infection has been
determined, 686 (or 10.10 per cent) acquired their infection through a workplace exposure. An
additional 2,318 employees who have tested positive are still under investigation as to the source
of infection.

e 6,143 physicians (AHS and APL combined) have been tested for COVID-19 and, of those tested,
385 (or 6.27 per cent) have tested positive.

e Of the 282 physicians who have tested positive and whose source of infection has been
determined, 24 (or 8.51 per cent) acquired their infection through a workplace exposure. An
additional 103 physicians who have tested positive are still under investigation as to the source
of infection.

COVID-19 immunizations

One Year Anniversary of First COVID-19 Vaccines in Alberta

On Dec. 15, 2020, registered respiratory therapist, Sahra Kaahiye, and registered nurse, Tanya Harvey,
became the first and second Albertans to receive the COVID-19 vaccine.

“The timing of it being the first didn't really matter. The fact that we got the vaccine mattered,” says
Kaahiye. “The fact that it was in Alberta and we were eligible for getting it. It felt like it was a big step

forward in the pandemic.”

Harvey agrees. “We could begin the process of putting our lives back together, putting the economy back
together, putting our workplaces back together.”

The COVID-19 vaccine has been a major step forward in the battle against the virus, Kaahiye adds. ‘I look
forward to where the future is going to take us.”

Since Dec. 15, 2020, more than 7.2 million doses of the COVID-19 vaccine have been administered
across the province. More than 85 per cent of eligible Albertans aged 12 and older have received both of
their recommended doses and more than 89 per cent of Albertans aged 12 and older have received at

least one dose.



Third doses available for additional Albertans

As announced by Alberta Health earlier this week, third doses of COVID-19 vaccine are now available to
additional Albertans, including:

e Healthcare workers (regardless of the spacing between their first two doses)
e  Adults aged 50 and older

These individuals are eligible for a booster dose at least six months after their primary series (i.e. two
doses of any combination of AstraZeneca, Pfizer and Moderna OR one dose of Janssen). Booking is
based on the honour system and appointments can be made through the online booking tool or by calling
Health Link at 811. Many pharmacies are aiso accepting walk-ins.

In addition to these groups, those previously eligible for an additional dose continue to be eligible. For a
full list, visit alberta.ca/vaccine.

Vaccine Rollout to Children 5 to 11 Continues

More than 98,400 pediatric vaccines have been administered to children aged five to 11 — 25% of
Albertans aged 5-11 have now received one does of the COVID vaccine. Appointments continue to be
available for this age group at AHS immunization clinics and select pharmacies.

Appointments can be booked online or by calling Health Link at 811 and are only available at AHS sites.
In the rural Zones, walk-in are available at some sites. Check ahs.ca/vaccine for more information.
Children who live on a First Nations reserve can access doses through the nursing stations or public
health clinics on-reserve.

Alberta Health has recommended that the interval between first and second doses should be at least eight
weeks. It is recommended, but not required, to wait for a period of at least 14 days before and after the
administration of the COVID-19 pediatric vaccine and the administration of another vaccine. Routine
school immunizations can be administered regardiess of spacing from the COVID-19 vaccine.

Vaccine Availability

AstraZeneca - AHS has received an additional 1,900 doses of the AstraZeneca vaccine. individuals
requiring second doses of AstraZeneca should call Health Link to book an appointment. For those who
received the AstraZeneca vaccine as a first dose, followed by a two-dose mRNA vaccine series (Pfizer or
Modema), a booster dose is not recommended or required at this time.

Janssen (Johnson and Johnson) - As announced by Alberta Health on Dec. 15, the province is
expected to receive 5,000 doses of the Janssen vaccine this week. This is in addition to the initial 5,000
dose shipment, of which 80 per cent has been used.

Please call Health Link at 811 to get on a wait list for notification when the vaccine has arrived.

The Janssen vaccine is available for Albertans 18 years of age and older who have not had any COVID-
19 vaccines previously and is administered at AHS clinics in select locations across the province.

The Janssen vaccine is also available for individuals with a contraindication to currently available COVID-
19 vaccines. This includes people who have had a dose of COVID-19 vaccine previously and had a



serious adverse reaction. A minimum of 28 days from any previously received COVID-19 vaccine is
required. Only one dose of the Janssen vaccine is needed to be fully immunized.

mRNA Vaccines - These vaccines continue to be recommended as the most safe and effective vaccine
choice, for all those who are able to receive them. Individuals without a contraindication to an mRNA
vaccine, who have been immunized with a single dose of Janssen as their only vaccine, are
recommended to have a booster dose of MRNA vaccine after six months.

Things You Need to Know

Influenza Immunization Update: Spread Joy, Not Germs

As of Dec. 11, 1,044,623 doses of influenza vaccine have been administered, which is about 23.6 per cent
of the population. Eleven additiona! influenza cases were identified this past week, bringing the total to 17
confirmed cases of influenza so far this season.

To ensure a happy and healthy holiday season for you and your loved ones we encourage you to get
immunized against influenza, as soon as possible. Influenza is serious and immunization works to lower

your risk of influenza infection.

It is safe to get the influenza and COVID-19 vaccine at the same time. We have substantial data regarding
the safety of COVID-19 vaccines and currently, there are no known safety concerns with administering
both vaccines at the same time.

For more information on influenza, visit ahs.ca/influenza. Interactive aggregate data is available onlfine at
Alberta influenza statistics.

AHS Immunization Policy

The Immunization of Workers for COVID-19 policy was developed and implemented for one main reason
— to keep our patients and staff from getting COVID-19 while in our care or working at our sites.

Those who are unimmunized are more likely to contract COVID-19, and their risk of acquiring and passing
an infection onto others is much higher. Unimmunized are at higher risk of severe iliness. This is why we
will continue to strive for a fully immunized active workforce.

It is crucial our patients know they are coming into an environment where those who care for them are
doing everything they can to protect them, including getting immunized and we must keep our healthcare
teams healthy as you are essential to keeping our healthcare system available for all Albertans.

We are extremely grateful to the vast majority of our workforce — 97.4 per cent of full-time and part-time
staff, and 99.8 per cent of physicians who are now fully immunized.

Our Immunization of Workers for COVID-19 Policy is more necessary than ever, as we must continue to
do everything we can to protect vulnerable Albertans and keep our healthcare system strong against the

highly-transmissible Omicron variant.

Government of Canada Advises Against Non-Essential International Travel

In response to the spread of Omicron, the Government of Canada has impiemented enhanced border
measures. Effective Dec. 15, the Public Health Agency of Canada is advising travellers, regardless of their
vaccination status, to avoid non-essential travel internationally.

The Omicron variant is present in all continents, with community transmission reported in some countries.
This variant has a large number of concerning mutations, with preliminary evidence suggesting a growth
advantage over the Delta variant and a potential decrease in vaccine protection against infection.

If you must travel internationally, monitor and review Canada's entry requirements before and during your
travel as arrival to Canada following international travel could be severely restricted.

Fully vaccinated travellers who have been in any country other than Canada and the United States in the
14 days prior to entry to Canada may be selected for arrival testing. The Government of Canada is



increasing the number of fully vaccinated travellers being selected for testing to reach 100 per cent of
vaccinated travellers in the coming weeks.

Travellers must quarantine in a suitable place until they receive a negative test result. Requirements for
unvaccinated travellers remain unchanged.

New Social Gathering Restrictions

Effective Dec. 15, indoor private social gatherings are no longer limited to two households. The maximum
number of individuals 18 years and older is limited to 10. In addition, there is no distinction between
vaccinated and unvaccinated Albertans. Outdoor social gathering capacity remains at 20 people,
regardless of vaccination status.

All other current public health restrictions continue to remain in effect, including mandatory masking in
indoor public places, and physical distancing between households.

Free Rapid Testing Kits Available

Free COVID-19 rapid testing kits are available to Albertans at select AHS sites and pharmacies across the
province. More than 500,000 rapid antigen test kits will initially be available for at home use, helping with
early identification of infections in Albertans.

You may wonder why antigen tests and not PCR tests are being provided to Albertans. An antigen test
looks for a protein from the virus that causes COVID-19, and is a simple test that does not require
specialized equipment and can produce a result in as little as 15 minutes. A PCR test looks for the genetic
material of the virus that causes COVID-19. PCR tests can only be done in a lab, by an expert, and it can
take one to three days to generate a test result.

The antigen tests are intended for at-home personal use for regular screening in asymptomatic people.
Rapid tests are only for people without COVID-19 symptoms, or for those who may have had a recent
COVID-19 exposure.

Kits are available on a first-come first-served basis. There is a limit of one box (five tests per box) of tests
within a 14-day period per person. Unvaccinated individuals must continue to obtain a negative COVID-19
test at their own expense administered through a private vendor or pharmacy for both travel and the
Restriction Exemption Program. If an individual has COVID-19 symptoms, they should not use a rapid
test, but book a PCR test through AHS instead.

Albertans who screen positive on a rapid test, or who have COVID-19 symptoms, should book a
confirmatory PCR test through AHS, and must isolate for 10 days or until they receive a negative PCR test
result.

For more information on the Alberta Health rapid testing kit program, visit the Alberta Health website.

AHS recruits two family physicians for Grande Cache

AHS has recruited two family medicine physicians in the Grande Cache area to fill positions that will be
vacated early next year. The resignations of two current family medicine physicians are effective March 1,
2022. The two newly recruited physicians are required to go through the College of Physicians and
Surgeons of Alberta (CPSA) Practice Readiness Program prior to practicing in the community. The new
physicians may be ready to start seeing local patients next summer.

Manning Outpatient clinics resume normal weekend hours

The Manning Community Health Centre has resumed normal weekend operating hours. Weekend clinic
hours are 10:30 a.m. to 11:30 a.m. and 7:30 p.m. to 9 p.m. Regular weekday (Monday to Friday)
outpatient clinics remain open from 9 a.m. to 10:30 a.m., and from 7:30 p.m. to 9 p.m. The emergency
department remains open 24/7 for any urgent health concerns.

No doctors in Barrhead ED for 12 hours on three days

The Barrhead Healthcare Centre Emergency Department (ED} will be temporarily without on-site
physician coverage for 12 hours (from 8 p.m. to 8 a.m.) Monday, December 20, Tuesday, December 21,
Wednesday, December 22. During this time, nursing staff will remain on-site in the Emergency
Department providing urgent triage and assessments, and referring patients to alternate Emergency



Departments in neighbouring communities as needed. Patients are asked to cail 911 if they have a
medical emergency. EMS will be re-routed to the Westlock Healthcare Centre (41 km) or Whitecourt

Healthcare Centre (99 km).

Verna’s Weekly Video Message: An interview with Gregory Turnbull, AHS Board Chair

Last week Alberta Health appointed Gregory Tumnbull to the positon of AHS Board Chair for a three-year
term. As a former pariner with McCarthy Tétrault LLP, Greg has more than 35 years of experience in
corporate governance. Greg is no stranger to healthcare, as he is currently a member of the Advisory
Council at the School of Public Policy and the Dean’s Advisory Council at the Cumming School of

Medicine, University of Calgary.

He is also a long-term member of the Calgary Health Foundation, where he most recently served as the
Chair of the governance committee. This week | (Verna) sat down with Greg to learn a bit more about him
and how we can develop a shared vision for AHS.

Dr.Verna Yiu sits down with new AHS Board Chair Gregory Turnbull
to discuss building & shared vision for AHS

Operation Ho Ho - Santa visits the Stollery

With some help from the Royal Canadian Air Force (RCAF), 408 Tactical Helicopter Squadron, Santa was
flown by helicopter to the Stollery Children’s Hospital to visit with patients. His visit looked a bit different
than in years past, as staff made sure all COVID-19 safety protocols were followed. Watch the video
recap of Santa's visit: Operation Ho Ho - Santa visits the Stollery

Join the Conversation

2022 Health and Provincial Advisory Council Meetings

Council meetings will resume in the new year, beginning with Palliser Triangle Health Advisory Council on
January 17. Visit toaetherdhealth.albertahealthservices.ca to find upcoming Council meetings and events.
Please note, you must register in advance to attend the virtual meetings.

Be Well - Be Kind

Foundation Good News

Through donor support, our philanthropic partners fund enhancements to healthcare delivery including
equipment, programs, renovations, research and education across the province and in your community.

Learn more here.



Medicine Hat Tigers deliver teddy bears to the @ L FamvAasm 1T am
Medicine Hat Regional Hospital @& £ ¥ ICINE T Ews

The Medicine Hat Tigers made their annual trip to
Medicine Hat Regional Hospital on December 10 to deliver
a portion of the 1,235 stuffed animals collected from the
Teddy Bear toss game to the Medicine Hat and District
Health Foundation.

The Tigers leadership weren't able to enter the hospital
due to COVID-19 regulations, but brought some bears
from the Teddy Bear Toss to the hospital doors. Heather
Bach, executive director of the Medicine Hat and District
Health Foundation, says it's a fun time of year for them.

!

“The best part is watching the seniors and the children’s
eyes light up when they show up in uniform. It's kind of sad
that they can't come in and visit everybody but it's still
exciting because those teddy bears are so meaningful,”
Bach said. “They reduce so much stress and they glve the me *“ ;;,,,,r,,i
kids someone to hug, so it's really a nice time of year.” ’ FER ) #9‘ T

Ponoka Adopt-a-Grandparent

Ponoka General Hospital Long Term Care residents,
including Marilyn Lane, pictured, will scon receive their
annual Christmas gift from the Adopt-A-Grandparent
program. Six-year-old Steele Bodin inspired the program
so that no grandparents went without a present at
Christmas.

The Bodin family and other members of the community

items such as a sweater, slippers, hand iotion, crossword |
puzzles and cookies. After receiving her gift from the BodinjiSi
family last year for her first Christmas at Ponoka LTC,
Lane made a blanket for Steele to thank him for his
kindness. Lane says crocheting blankets, which she has
done since she was 12, helps keep her grounded during
the COVID-19 pandemic.

Managing Seasonal Stress during COVID-19

Navigating the holidays while facing the ongoing
challenges COVID-19 can bring additional stress. There
are many other ways we can support you through these
challenging times no matter what your situation. See the
Help in Tough Times website for a comprehensive list of health and wellness supports avallable to
Albertans.

Gratitude from Albertans

Thank you to all of the Albertans who have taken the time to recognize the work of healthcare providers
and physicians. Messages of gratitude keep pouring in from across the province and beyond during the
COVID-19 pandemic. We want to share a few recent messages of thanks with you — and you can see

others on our Sharing the Love webpage.

As I walked out of the hospital (UAH) and out to the parkade yesterday, | was struck at how much work
our facilities crews have done to remove the orange visitor stickers stuck to the beams, walls or posts, and
to pick up the masks that have not been discarded in the garbage. It was a stark contrast from our last
visit and | wanted to say thank you for all of that tedjous work. It somehow reminded me of a time before
COVID whereas walking out and seeing the stickers was a constant reminder of how much has changed

10



and has been lost since March 2020. THANK YOU - for all of that work - and it is like a chain reaction - it
seems folks aren't adding them there when there is none in sight. | appreciate you and all of your work.

My small child lost all her bravery for her much awaited Covid vaccination (age 5 - 11 yrs) when it actually
came to sitting in the chair with the public health nurse, "Miranda”. She understood children well and was
just so incredibly adept with her listening, acknowledging and skills with children. Within minutes, my
daughter was feeling good again, surprised with how easy it was. Thank you, thank you, thank you. Your
skill and experience shows in your work! - W.F.

Wrapping Up - Happy Holidays from AHS

Many Albertans may be taking some much-needed time off over the next few weeks, however, we want to
ensure that you continue to have access to the information you require. We will therefore continue to
provide updates over the next two weeks to ensure you have all the latest information from across AHS

and the province.
There is no doubt that we are approaching this holiday season with worry and concern. Omicron is here,

and we are all concerned about the health and safety of our loved ones. We sincerely wish all of you a
happy holiday season, and for those celebrating, Merry Christmas. We will continue to care for Albertans

one day at a time.

With enduring gratitude and appreciation,

Dr. Verna Yiu
AHS President & CEO

Dr. Laura McDougall
Senior Medical Officer of Health

Copyright © 2021 Alberta Health Services, All rights reserved.

Our mailing address is:
10101 Southport Road SW, Calgary, AB, T2W 3N2

Want to change how you receive these emails?
You can update your preferences or unsubscribe from this list.

To be added {o this list, click here.

11



aboffice@albertabeach.com

I

From: Alberta Health Services <community.engagement@ahs.ca>
Sent: January 4, 2022 4:27 PM )

To: aboffice@albertabeach.com

Subject: AHS Together4Health Headlines - COVID Community Update

View this email in your browser

I'l Alberta Health
B Services

HEa0lNeSs

HEALTH NEWS YOU CAN USE ¢

Welcome to Together4Health Headlines, a weekly newsletter keeping you informed about key public
health information and opportunities to connect with AHS. We are committed to ensuring our partners and
stakeholders receive the information they need to help protect their families, colleagues and staff.

If someone else would benefit from this information, please invite them to subscribe. Also, please respond
to this short survey to let us know if this e-newsletter format is working to deliver the information you need.

Today's Update:

e COVID-19 Status

New and Active Cases

Variants of Concern

Changes to Isolation Requirements

Update on Omicron Variant Spread

Rapid vs. PCR testing

Temporary Site Access Limitations Enacted

e COVID-19 Immunizations
o Get Immunized
o COVID-19 infection and getting your vaccine
o Vaccine Rollout to Children 5 to 11 Continues
o Vaccine Availability

e Things You Need to Know
o Infant nutrition classes temporarily moving online
o AHS expands Text4Hope in multiple languages
o Verna's Video Message

e Join the Conversation
o Help name Calgary's new centre for child and adolescent mental health

o 2022 Health and Provincial Advisory Council Meetinas
e Be Well - Be Kind

0000O0OO0




o Foundation Good News
o Gratitude from Albertans

COVID-19 Status

New and Active Cases

This data was updated from the AHS email from December 29. As a result, this update extended the
usual seven day reporting range to a thirteen day range.

For the thirteen-day period ending on January 3, there was an average of 2,640 new cases of COVID-19
per day, compared to 769 cases per day the previous reporting period (Dec. 16-21), a 243.3 per cent
increase. All zones reported an increase in the number of new daily cases, ranging from a 189.7 per cent
increase in the Calgary Zone to a 378.0 per cent increase in the South Zone, compared to the previous
reporting period. The Calgary Zone reported the highest total number of new cases with 17,208 (a
thirteen-day average of 1,324 new cases per day).

As of Jan. 3, there are 34,276 active cases in Alberta, a 385 per cent increase compared to Dec. 21*.
400k e Total " Active ~ee-~ ReCOvVered e Died

350k

300k

N
w
[~
x

200k

COVID-19 cases (n)
jr
(=]
=

100k

50k

uer 10 k\-.,

o (=] [=} =] o o o

- [= - = = - =

> I3 © v F [=]
£ & £

B = A S5 Date g = a8

All zones reported an increase in active cases compared to the last report, as you can see in the table
below. Please note: Given Alberta Health announced last week that many people with a self-administered
positive rapid test do not need PCR testing, we know the data underestimates the number of people
infected with COVID-19 across the province.*Note the comparison range is wider than the usual seven
day range.

Mol el

e s THE A riTUD T acet

. ek s R 35 St Deseniber 1) Cimina
| Calgary 17,082 3,887 +339.5%
! Edmonton | 12,760 2,087 | +511.0% |
. North 1,219 406 +200.2%
 Central 1,602 454 | +253.0%
South 1,132 223 +408.0%
Unknown - 481 i 8 +5,913%

Variants of Concern



From Dec. 23-29, an average of 21 per cent of positive samples were strain-typed. Of those strain-typed,
the rolling average was 89.9 per cent Omicron variant, 7.7 per cent Delta variant, and 2.4 per cent wild
type or presumptive variant. As of Jan.3, 10,432 cases involving the Omicron variant have been detected.
Strain-typing takes several days and these numbers may change as lab data becomes available.

Other Notable COVID-19 Related Information:

e As of Dec. 28, a total of 357,623 cases of COVID-19 have been detected in Alberta and a total of
15,577 individuals have been hospitalized, which amounts to 4.4 individuals for every 100 cases.
In all, 336,917 Albertans have recovered from COVID-19, meaning they are no longer
considered contagious. The number of Albertans who have recovered from COVID-19 does not
reflect the recovery time from longer-lasting effects associated with a COVID-19 infection that
could persist beyond the time in which people are contagious.

e As of Dec. 28, 3,310 individuals have passed away from COVID-19, including 11 deaths since

_the last report. We extend our condolences to the families of these individuals, and to all who

have lost loved ones from any cause during this time.

e From Dec. 22 to Dec. 28, 62,115 COVID-19 tests were completed, a seven-day average of
10,353 tests per day. As of Dec. 28, a total of 6.37 million tests have been conducted and 2.63

million individuals have been tested.
e The R values were not updated this week.

Changes to Isolation Requirements

As announced by Alberta Health, effective January 3, 2022, the isolation period for fully immunized
individuals has been reduced from 10 days from the start of symptoms to five days, or until symptoms
resolve, whichever is longer. For asymptomatic people who are fully immunized, isolation has been
reduced from 10 days to 5 days from the day the swab was taken, assuming symptoms didn’t develop.

For those who are not fully immunized, isolation remains at 10 days from the start of symptoms or untit
they resolve, whichever is longer. For asymptomatic people who are not fully immunized, isolation
remains at 10 days from the day the swab was taken, assuming symptoms didn’t develop.

AHS has implemented this new Alberta Health guidance for staff and physicians. Staff who are fully
immunized and symptom free can return to work after five days.

Please note AHS will not be changing the isolation requirements for acute care patients with COVID-19.

Update on Omicron Variant Spread

The Omicron variant continues to rapidly spread across the province and has resuited in an exponential
growth in COVID-19 cases. On Dec. 29, the positivity rate was 33.3 per cent, the highest during the

pandemic.

At this time, hospitalizations remain relatively stable; however, we know from previous waves that
hospitalizations are a lagging indicator. We will not know the impact of Omicron on our acute care system

until later in January.

We can expect to see hospitalizations rise in the coming weeks. While there may be a lower risk of
serious iliness with Omicron, the substantial rise in cases could still have a significant impact on the

hospital system.

The actions we take now can help slow the spread of Omicron:

Stay home and away from others if you are sick.

Reduce your in-person social interactions and close contacts by 50 per cent.

Abide by all current public health measures and travel advice.

Get immunized — whatever dose you are eligible for and with the first available vaccine.

Rapid vs. PCR testing

To conserve testing capacity and reserve PCR testing for higher-risk groups, rapid tests are available for
at-home personal use to screen symptomatic and asymptomatic people.



Alberta Health recommends symptomatic people use at-home rapid tests, if they have access to one,
rather than getting a PCR test. People who have a positive rapid test, including children who have no
medical risk factors, do not need PCR confirmation.

The exceptions to this recommendation are if a person lives or works in a high-priority setting (such as
acute care, continuing care, congregate care, correctional facilities and shelters), or qualifies for
Sotrovimab treatment. These individuals should still get a PCR test if they test positive on a rapid test.

If you have symptoms and test positive on a rapid test, consider that as confirmation that you have
COVID-19, isolate immediately and notify any close contacts. If you have no symptoms and test
positive on a rapid test, isolate immediately and take a second rapid test in 24 hours. If the second result
is negative, your isolation can end unless you develop symptoms. If the second result is positive, continue
isolating for 10 days or until symptoms resolve, whichever is longer. If you have symptoms and test
negative on a rapid test, stay home and away from others until you feel better, even if you have multiple
negative rapid tests.

If you have not already picked up your at-home rapid test kit, visit alberta.ca/CovidRapidTests to find the
location nearest you.

PCR testing through AHS continues to be available for:

e People with symptoms of COVID-19 who do not have access to a positive rapid test result.
e  People who have been told by AHS Public Health to get a test.

Temporary Site Access Limitations Enacted

In response to the Omicron variant, AHS is proactively taking precautions to limit transmission of the virus.

Site access is now temporarily limited for designated support persons and visitors who are close contacts
of a confirmed or probable case of COVID-19. The limitation will pertain to all designated support persons
and visitors, even if they are fully immunized, until we have more information about the risks posed by
Omicron. This change went into effect Dec. 21.

Anyone who is a close contact of someone with COVID-19 or has a case of COVID-19 in their home,
cannot access continuing care or AHS acute care sites as a designated support person or visitor for 14
days from the date of their last exposure.

Given this additional limitation to access, front-line staff will work with patients and their designated
support persons to arrange for an alternate designated support person should the primary not be able to
access the site. We will also work with patients to arrange alternate communication options, such as video
chat and phone calls.

The COVID-19 Family Presence & Visitation Taskforce has updated the following to reflect precautions
taken for Omicron and the decision to screen out close contacts:

e Acute Care Directive: The COVID-19 Directive Designated Support and Visitor Access in Acute
Care, Ambulatory and Emergency
e Acute Care Guidance: The Provincial Designated Support Persons and Visitor Access
Guidance for all AHS Acute Care, Ambulatory, Urgent and Emergency Care sites
e Screening Forms:
o Designated Support Person and Visitor Screening Questionnaire for Acute Care,
Ambulatory, Emergency and Urgent Care Facilities
o COVID-19 Continuing Care Daily Checklist for Visitors and Volunteers
e Compassionate Exemption: Compassionate Exemption Application Process for End-of-Life
Visitation (Note: the federal process for international travellers has been updated to reflect recent
changes and there is a new process for asymptomatic close contacts to apply for the purposes of
an exemption for end-of-life visitation.)

This is a temporary limitation. The COVID-19 Family Presence & Visitation Taskforce will continue to
review and update the provincial guidance on a regular basis based on the current pandemic situation.
Learn more at ahs.ca/visitation.



COVID-19 Immunizations

Get Immunized - whatever dose you are eligible for and first available vaccine

One of the critical ways we can each help to slow Omicron’s spread is to get immunized — with whatever
dose we are eligible for, and whichever type of vaccine is available to us first.

Albertans aged 18 and older who received their second COVID-19 vaccine at least five months ago are
encouraged to book a third dose as soon as possible. Booster doses are not currently approved for those
12 to 17 years of age, unless they have an eligible immunocompromising condition.

Please take the first mRNA vaccine available to you for a third dose rather than waiting for your preferred
brand to be available. Both the Moderna and Pfizer vaccines offer a high level of protection against severe

outcomes from COVID-19.

The Modema vaccine is recommended for people ages 30 and up. We have ample Moderna supply
available across the province.

The Pfizer vaccine is being administered for people 12 to 29 years of age for booster purposes, as a
cautionary measure. While there is a slightly increased risk of myocarditis in younger people from
Modema, especially in males, individuals are much more likely to experience myocarditis from COVID-19
infection than the vaccine. The Pfizer vaccine will be available as supplies last. We anticipate additional

supply in the coming weeks.

Book appointments for third doses online with participating pharmacies or AHS by using the Alberta
vaccine booking system or by calling AHS at 811.

COVID-19 infection and getting your vaccine

If you have COVID-19 or have symptoms on the day you are scheduled for your vaccine, please
reschedule your appointment. Please wait until you have completed your required isolation period and are
feeling better before getting the vaccine, or your next dose.

Even if you are already infected with COVID-19 just before or just after getting the vaccine, being
immunized will still help lower your risk of becoming seriously ill and potentially needing to be in the
hospital. You are also less likely to spread the virus to others if you are immunized.

For more information, visit the COVID-19 Vaccine FAQ.

Vaccine rollout to ages 5 to 11 continues

As of Dec. 28, approximately 35.5 per cent of children aged five to 11 have received one dose of the
COVID-19 vaccine.

Appointments continue to be available and can be booked online or by calling Heaith Link at 811.
Appointments are only available at AHS sites. In the North, Central and South zones, walk-in
appointments are available at some sites. Children who live on a First Nations reserve can access doses
through the nursing stations or public health clinics on-reserve.

The interval between first and second doses should be at least eight weeks. It is recommended, but not
required, to wait for a period of at least 14 days before, and after, the administration of the COVID-19
pediatric vaccine and the administration of another vaccine. Routine school immunizations can be
administered regardless of spacing from the COVID-19 vaccine.

Vaccine Availability

AstraZeneca - If you received AstraZeneca for your first dose, you can choose either the AstraZeneca
vaccine or an mRNA vaccine (Pfizer/Moderna) for your second dose. Both options will provide additional
protection and count as completing your vaccine series in Canada. intemational jurisdictions may have
different standards for a complete immunization series. Call Health Link at 811 to book your second dose
of AstraZeneca. If you received two doses of AstraZeneca for your primary vaccine series, it is
recommended that you receive an mRNA vaccine as your booster dose at least six months after your
second dose. If you received the AstraZeneca vaccine as a first dose, followed by a two-dose mRNA



vaccine series, a booster dose is not recommended or required at this time.

Janssen (Johnson and Johnson) — The Janssen vaccine is available for people with a contraindication
to currently available COVID-19 vaccines. This includes people who have had a dose of COVID-19
vaccine previously and had a serious adverse reaction. A minimum of 28 days from any previously
received COVID-19 vaccine is required and only one dose of the Janssen vaccine is needed to be fully
immunized. The Janssen vaccine is available for Albertans 18 years of age and older and is administered
at AHS clinics in select locations across the province.

mRNA vaccines — These vaccines continue to be recommended as the most safe and effective vaccine
choice for those able to receive them. People without a contraindication to an mRNA vaccine, who have
been immunized with a single dose of Janssen as their only vaccine, are recommended to have a booster
dose of mMRNA vaccine after six months.

Things You Need to Know

Infant nutrition classes temporarily moving online

Parents who have questions about feeding their growing babies have access to a free, online infant
nutrition class offered by Alberta Health Services (AHS).

Led by a registered dietitian, the 90-minute workshop highlights why babies need to start on iron-rich
foods at six months, how to start introducing solid foods and why progressing to different food textures is
important.

AHS dietitians will answer questions and show parents how to make their own baby food using a variety of
kitchen tools they may already have at home. Parents will learn how to prepare vegetables, fruit, meat and
meat alternatives using a number of different tools, including hand mixers, food mills and food

processors.

The class is an online version of AHS' infant nutrition workshops, which are offered regularly in 29
communities across Central Zone. Online infant nutrition classes will be offered via Zoom on the following
dates:

e Jan. 12 and 26 from 10 a.m. to 11:30 a.m.
e Feb.9and23 from 10 a.m. to 11:30 a.m.

For more information and to register to attend, please call your local community health centre. You will
receive an email with your Zoom link one day before the workshop.

AHS expands Text4Hope in multiple languages

Text4Hope is now available in Arabic, French, Simplified Chinese and Punjabi to provide support for those
dealing with mental health-related issues. To subscribe, visit www.ahs.ca/texi4hope.

Text4Hope is an evidence-based tool that helps people identify and adjust the negative thoughts, feelings
and behaviours a pandemic might be expected to provoke. Through a set of daily messages, people
receive advice and encouragement helpful in developing healthy personal coping skills and resiliency.
Community members simply subscribe to receive ongoing supportive content at no cost. (Standard
message rates may apply.)

To date, more than 54,000 people have subscribed to the Text4Hope service.
Text4Hope is supported by the Mental Health Foundation, in partnership with Calgary Health Foundation,

the University Hospital Foundation, the Royal Alexandra Hospital Foundation, Alberta Cancer Foundation,
Alberta Children’s Hospital Foundation and the RBC Foundation.

Verna’s Video Message - The Importance of Recognition

If there’s been one constant throughout the history of AHS, it's the dedication, compassion and



professionalism of our people. This has been especially true during the pandemic.

You provide the very best care to patients across the province, and also do your very best to support one
another. Albertans see this every day, and share their appreciation on social media, on our Sharing the

Love webpage, and in their emaiis to us.

What's just as important is the recognition and appreciation we share with and for each other. Whether it's
a simple ‘thank you,’ a note in this weekly update, or a long-service recognition event, these things matter.

In fact, they are essential.

Our Recognition Services team supports these efforts across AHS, and here with me (Verna) today to talk
about their work, and the importance of recognition are:

e  Thora Eyford, Senior Lead, Talent Management Strategies.
o louise Poole, Senior Advisor, Talent Management Strategies.

Dr.Verna Yiu discusses the importance of recognition with
Thora Evford and Louise Poole

Join the Conversation

Help name Calgary’s new centre for child and adolescent mental health

Alberta Health Services has partnered with the Alberta Children's Hospital Foundation and our generous
community to build a new centre for child and adolescent mental health in northwest Calgary.

When it opens next fall it will be unlike any other centre in Canada, providing three crucial new services: a
dedicated walk-in clinic, an intensive treatment program and Calgary's first mental health day hospital — all
supporting youth and families in the Calgary area. The centre will be at the Child and Adolescent
Addiction, Mental Health and Psychiatry Program site.

We are inviting our entire community to help name the new building. Add your voice to the conversation
by taking a short survey. It takes less than 10 minutes to share your thoughts. And please share this
survey through your networks. While we are interested in hearing from all members of the community, we
are particularly eager to hear from youth and young adults who have sought support, or may in the future.




wie g e Coagieny

2022 Health and Provincial Advisory Council Meetings

Council meetings will resume soon. Visit together4health.albertahealthservices.ca to find upcoming
Council meetings and events. Please note, you must register in advance to attend the virtual meetings.
Visit ahs.ca/advisorycouncils to review the Annual Reports from each of AHS' 12 Health Advisory
Councils, four Provincial Advisory Councils, and Wisdom Council.

Be Well - Be Kind

Foundation Good News

Through donor support, our philanthropic partners fund enhancements to heaithcare delivery including
equipment, programs, renovations, research and education across the province and in your community.
Learn more here.

Canmore & Area Health Care Foundation announcing a new major gift

The Canmore & Area Health Care Foundation recently announced a new major gift from Pierre and Sylvie
Doyon, valued members of the community. This generous contribution will be used to renovate the staff
rooms at Canmore General Hospital starting with the main staff room.

L ]
N PR R o ,"'Ayw/:
health care foundation

“We are enormously grateful to the Doyon family,” said Kristen Pauch-Nolin, Executive Director of the
Foundation. “This gift is transformational and will help recognize and celebrate the hard-working staff at
Canmore General Hospital.”

Board Chair Steven Scott affirmed that “Pierre and Sylvie's gift demonstrates what the Foundation is
about —providing funds that support the needs of the hospital and its staff so that the incredible patient
care delivered at Canmore General Hospital can continue. The impact of this renovation will not only
achieve that goal but help celebrate the unwavering dedication and commitment of our healthcare
workers.”

Gratitude from Albertans

Thank you to all of the Albertans who have taken the time to recognize the work of healthcare providers
and physicians. Messages of gratitude keep pouring in from across the province and beyond during the
COVID-19 pandemic. We want to share a few recent messages of thanks with you — and you can see



others on our Sharing the Love webpage:

On this Christmas Day, thank you, Angels of AHS, for everything you do every day. Thank you for caring
for my beloved wife. Thank you for being the best of the best of the human soul.
— Paolo

Thank you for helping me to remain calm with my breathing issues and for your friendly attitude. What a
wonderful way to enter a hospital in a stressful situation. The whole team working on Boxing Day were just

wonderful.
— Anonymous

Wrapping Up - Looking back at 2021

2021 will be in the rearview mirror. No doubt, this year has been draining, physically and mentally.
However, as we look back on the past 12 months, let us not focus solely on our hardships and struggles.
Let us also allow ourselves the perspective to appreciate the resilience we've all shown in the face of
unprecedented pressure; to appreciate the many ways we’ve supported each other; and to give ourselves
credit for practicing self-care and seeking help when we needed it.

The pandemic tested us all in 2021 but we're still here, still caring for ourselves and each other.

With enduring gratitude and appreciation,

Dr. Verna Yiu
AHS President & CEO

Dr. Laura McDougall
Senior Medical Officer of Health

Copyright © 2022 Alberta Health Services, All rights reserved.

Our mailing address is:
10101 Southport Road SW, Calgary, AB, T2W 3N2

Want to change how you receive these emails?
You can update your preferences or unsubscribe from this list.

To be added to this list, click here.



b

aboffice@albertabeach.com (g Coingd
From: Alberta Health Services <community.engagement@ahs.ca>

Sent: January 10, 2022 2:08 PM

To: aboffice@albertabeach.com

Subject: AHS TogetherdHealth Headlines - COVID Community Update

View this email in yvour browser

l&l Alberta Health
Services

Together%Health |

« HEALTH NEWS YOU CAN USE

Welcome to TogetherdHealth Headlines, a weekly newsletter designed to keep you informed about key
public health information and opportunities for you to connect with AHS.

AHS is committed to ensuring our partners and stakeholders, like you, receive the information you need to
help protect yourself, your families, colleagues and staff. If you know of someone else who would benefit
from receiving this information directly from AHS, please invite them to subscribe by clicking here. And
respond to this short survey to let us know if you're receiving the information you need in a format that is

working for you.

You can unsubscribe from this e-newsletter by clicking the "Unsubscribe” button at the bottom.

Today's Update:

¢ COVID-19 Status

ICU Capacity Update
New and Active Cases
Cases by Age Group

Hospitalizations
Variant Screening
Further Changes to Case Investigation and Outbreak Management
¢ COVID-19 Immunizations
o Get Immunized
o Vaccine Rollout to Children 5 to 11 Continues
o Vaccine Availability
¢ Things You Need to Know
o Verna's Video Message
o Self-Care Resources help Albertans Manage COVID-19 Symptoms at Home
o AHS Policy for Staff Attending Work
o Update: Designated Support & Visitor Access Screening Questionnaires

000000




influenza Immunization Update

Fairview Health Complex sets specific outpatient service hours

Online aduit weight-management sessions

Online sessions help seniors stay healthy and socially connected

Making mealtimes happy times

Online prenatal classes offered

Mobile mammography to visit Rocky Mountain House

¢ Join the Conversation
o Help name Calgary's new centre for child and adolescent mental health
o Lakeland Communities HAC to learn about the Rural Mental Health Project
o Join David Thompson HAC Conversation on Palliative Health Services
o Volunteers wanted!

e Be Well - Be Kind
o Foundation Good News
o Gratitude from Albertans

0000000

COVID-19 Status

ICU Capacity Update
AHS continues to do all we can to ensure we have enough ICU capacity to meet patient demand. We will
ensure that we maintain ICU capacity above daily demand to a planned maximum of 380 beds as long as

staff and physician availability allows.

As of Friday, January 7 we have 242 generai adult ICU beds open in Alberta, including 69 additional
spaces above our baseline of 173 general adult ICU beds. There are 177 patients in ICU.

Provincially, ICU capacity (including additional surge beds) is at 73 per cent. Without the additional surge
spaces, provincial ICU capacity would be at 102 per cent.

e In Calgary Zone, we currently have 91 ICU beds, including 25 additional spaces. Calgary Zone
ICU is operating at 75 per cent of current capacity (including 26 COVID patients in ICU).

e In Edmonton Zone, we currently have 97 ICU beds, including 25 additional spaces. Edmonton
Zone is operating at 76 per cent of current capacity (including 30 COVID patients in ICU).

e In Central Zone, we currently have 18 ICU beds, including six additional spaces. Central Zone
ICU is operating at 61 per cent of current capacity (including six COVID patients in ICU).

e In South Zone, we currently have 24 ICU beds, including seven additional ICU spaces. South
Zone ICU is currently operating at 63 per cent capacity (including three COVID patients in ICU).

e In North Zone, we have 12 ICU spaces (split between Grande Prairie and Fort McMurray),
including six additional ICU spaces. North Zone ICU is currently operating at 75 per cent capacity
(including three COVID patients in ICU).

These numbers are updated daily; learn more at AHS Facilities: ICU Updates & Temporary Space
Reductions.

New and Active Cases

For the eight-day period ending on Jan. 5%, there was an average of 3,909 new cases of COVID-19 per
day, compared to 1,810 cases per day the previous reporting period (Dec. 22 to Dec. 28), a 116.0 per
cent increase. All zones reported an increase in the number of new cases per day, ranging from a 105.5
per cent increase in Edmonton Zone to a 210.0 per cent increase in South Zone, compared to the
previous reporting period. Calgary Zone reported the highest total number of new cases with 15,236 (an
eight-day average of 1,905 new cases per day).

*The reporting period was adjusted to accommodate the holidays.



e Fohal — Attive —— Recovered ——— Died

400k
50h.
360K
£
5 250K
3
S so0k
7
g 150K
[ %}
100k
sok
0 - —
[=] & (=3 k=1 L= o E=3 o
g 2 e 2 e 2 . 2
b p = = . =
g N R 5 ome & = i 3

As of Jan. 5 there were 39,897 active cases in Alberta, a 129.3 per cent increase compared to Dec. 28. All
zones reported an increase in active cases compared to the last report, as you can see in the table below.

Please note: given that many people with a self-administered positive rapid test do not need PCR testing,
we know the data greatly underestimates the number of people infected with COVID-19 across the
province.

T S Aot oefihi

| Calgary | _ : . +107.3%
Edmonton | 14,972 i | +141.0% |
North .~ 1,523 = +155.0% |
Central | 1993 ] | +239.5% |
South | 1545 ; . ¥228.0%

Unknown | 603 | | +357.0% |

Cases by Age Group

As of Jan. 2, Albertans aged 20 to 29 had the highest seven-day rolling average of new daily COVID-19
cases, with 145.71 cases per 100,000 people, the highest rate reported during the pandemic. Albertans
aged 30 to 59 had the second-highest rate with 104.43 cases per 100,000 people, followed by children
aged 12 to 19 with 85.43 cases per 100,000 people. Trends in cases in Alberta by age group are shown in

the graph below.



0-4 years e 12719 years - 20-29 ¥ears
20-59 years 5-11 years 60-78 years
150 80+ years

165

COVID-19 cases (per 100,000 population)
1%,
25

hed
3
Sy,
p#
|
il

Ing ot
LAy
InCIo
uer 10

=

Date reported to Alberta Health,

As of Jan. 5, 3,336 individuals have passed away from COVID-19 including 26 additional deaths since the
last report. We extend our condolences to the families of these individuals, and to all who have lost loved
ones from any cause during this time.

Hospitalizations

434 individuals were in non-ICU hospital beds for COVID-19 on Jan. 5, compared to 314 individuals in
non-ICU hospital beds on Dec. 28, a 38.2 per cent increase.

The breakdown of hospitalizations by zone as of Jan. 5 is as follows:

212 hospitalizations with 25 of those in ICUs in Calgary Zone,
136 hospitalizations with 25 of those in ICUs in Edmonton Zone,
77 hospitalizations with 7 of those in ICUs in Central Zone,

51 hospitalizations with 4 of those in ICUs in North Zone, and
22 hospitalizations with 3 of those in ICUs in South Zone.

o o © 2 @



wo Non JCU e 10U

1000

850

420

Haspitalized cases {n)

240

uer 19 |

EL) U 8

Date

f=] Q (=] o o o o = (=3 o
Licd b Ll Eod o Rl Ed I L F

o W i o e =
E £ b . g z z £ g E
- = z - = p4

Variant Screening

Targeted screening for variants of concern resumed on December 23, 2021. For variants of concern, from
Dec. 28 to Jan. 3, the average percent of positive samples that were strain-typed was 20 per cent. Of
those strain-typed, the rolling average was 93.4 per cent Omicron variant, 3.9 per cent Delta variant, and
2.7 per cent wild type or presumptive variant. Strain-typing takes a number of days and these numbers
may change as lab data becomes available.

Other notable COVID-19-related information:

e AsofJan. 5, 388,995 cases of COVID-19 have been detected in Alberta and 15,960 individuals
have ever been hospitalized, which amounts to 4.1 individuals for every 100 cases. In all,
345,762 Albertans have recovered from COVID-19, meaning they are no longer considered
contagious.

e From Dec. 29 to Jan. 5, 89,211 COVID-19 tests were completed, an eight-day average of 11,151
tests per day. During this period, the daily positivity ranged from 28.03 per cent to 39.05 per cent.
This is the highest percent positive reported during the pandemic. As of Jan. 5, 6,463,880 tests
have been conducted and 2,657,823 individuals have ever been tested.

e The R value, also known as the reproduction number, describes the ability of a disease to
spread. It tells us the average number of people that someone with COVID-19 will infect. An R
value of 1 means an infected person will infect one other person on average. Values below 1
mean transmission is decreasing; above 1, transmission is increasing. The R value is updated
every two weeks. From Dec. 27 to Jan. 2 the province-wide R value was 1.35 and the previously
reported value was 0.96.

e  Public reporting of schools continues and you can find more information here.

Further Changes to Case Investigation and Outbreak Management

In response to the continued rapid spread of the Omicron variant, AHS has made additional changes to
case investigation and outbreak management.

At this level of COVID-19 spread in our communities, and with multiple possible sources of infection for
each case, we have shifted.our approach in order to continue to mitigate COVID-19 spread in high-risk
settings, while also supporting other areas of the healthcare system in need.

We do not make these decisions lightly. As we have many times before, we must remain nimble to the
changing needs of the pandemic response.

Effective Dec. 31 AHS has paused investigation and outbreak management activities for children, schools
and daycares. With students returning to classrooms on Jan. 10, students and school staff will still be
notified of their test results by SMS text or autodialer, and may receive a call to ensure they are aware of




isolation requirements.

The team will continue to support investigation for:

Patients in hospital with COVID-19

Healthcare workers

Residents and staff of congregate care settings (including LTC, DSL, lodges, hospices)
Residents and staff of congregate living settings (corrections, shelters)

The team will continue to call people who have not consented to receive their test results by SMS text or
autodialer, complete routine case notification calls as capacity allows, and support reporting for adverse
events following immunization. People who have had a PCR test will continue to receive a SMS text
message or autodialer notification with their test resuit.

In addition, outbreak management is now focused on the following high priority settings only:
e  Acute care

e Congregate care {long term care, designated supportive living, lodges, hospices)
e Congregate living (corrections, shelters)

Outbreak management for all non-high priority settings has been paused. This includes schools and
daycares.

The outbreak team will no longer routinely declare new outbreaks in settings outside the high priority
ones. Community outbreaks with a surge in cases leading to severe outcomes will be addressed as

needed.

We expect to see COVID-19 cases connected to workplaces increase and our teams will continue to
support workplaces with recommendations to prevent further spread of the virus.

COVID-19 Immunizations

e ——

Get Inmunized - take the first mRNA vaccine available for your third dose

Please take the first mMRNA vaccine available to you for a third dose rather than waiting for your preferred
brand to be available. Both the Moderna and Pfizer vaccines offer a high level of protection against severe
outcomes from COVID-19.

Moderna is in good supply and we anticipate additional Pfizer supply in the coming weeks. The Modermna
vaccine is recommended for people ages 30 and up.

The Pfizer vaccine is recommended for people 12 to 29 years of age for booster purposes, as a
cautionary measure. While there is a slightly increased risk of myocarditis in younger people from
Modermna, especially in males, individuals are much more likely to experience myocarditis from COVID-19
infection than the vaccine.

Albertans aged 18 and older who received their second COVID-19 vaccine at least five months ago
shouid book a third dose as soon as possible.

Book appointments for third doses online with participating pharmacies, or AHS by using the Alberta
vaccine booking system, by calling or walking into your local pharmacy, or calling AHS at 811. In addition,
there are some family physicians offering vaccines in their clinics.

Vaccine rollout to ages 5 to 11 continues

As of Jan. 4, approximately 37.3 per cent of children aged five to 11 have received one dose of the
COVID-19 vaccine. Appointments can be booked online or by calling Health Link at 811 and are only
available at AHS sites. In the rural zones, walk-ins are available at some sites. Check ahs.ca/vaccine for
more information. Children who live on a First Nations reserve can access doses through the nursing
stations or public health clinics on-reserve.



In Canada, third doses are not currently recommended for children five to 11. They are also not currently
recommended for those 12 to 17 years of age, unless they have an eligible immunocompromising
condition. Evidence continues to be reviewed nationally and provincially.

This week, the U.S. Food and Drua Administration (FDA) authorized the use of a third dose of the Pfizer
vaccine for children between 12 and 15 years of age. They also shortened the time between the
completion of a primary vaccine series and a booster dose to at least five months, and authorized a third
dose for children aged five to 11 years who are immunocompromised.

Get immunized after COVID-19 infection

There is no mandatory waiting period between having COVID-19 disease and being immunized; however,
if you've had COVID-19, you must wait until you have completed your required isolation period and are
feeling better before getting the vaccine, or your next dose.

Some medicines can affect the way your immune system responds to vaccines. People who take
medicines that affect their immune system, or had medicine to treat their COVID-19 infection should check

with their doctor about when to get immunized.

For an overview of current evidence, general recommendations and clinical considerations see
Information on Immunization after COVID-19 Infection from Alberta’'s Chief Medical Officer of Health.

Vaccine Availability

mRNA Vaccines - These vaccines continue to be recommended as the most safe and effective vaccine
choice for those able to receive them. People without a contraindication to an mRNA vaccine, who have
been immunized with a single dose of Janssen as their only vaccine, are recommended to have a booster

dose of mRNA vaccine after five months.

AstraZeneca - If you received AstraZeneca for your first dose, you can choose either the AstraZeneca
vaccine or an mRNA vaccine (Pfizer/Moderna) for your second dose. Both options will provide additional
protection and count as completing your vaccine series in Canada. International jurisdictions may have
different standards for a complete immunization series. Call Health Link at 811 to book your second dose
of AstraZeneca. If you received two doses of AstraZeneca for your primary vaccine series, it is
recommended that you receive an mRNA vaccine as your booster dose at least five months after your
second dose. If you received the AstraZeneca vaccine as a first dose, followed by a two-dose mRNA
vaccine series, a booster dose is not recommended or required at this time.

Janssen (Johnson and Johnson) — The Janssen vaccine is available for people with a contraindication
to currently available COVID-19 vaccines. This includes people who have had a dose of COVID-19
vaccine previously and had a serious adverse reaction. A minimum of 28 days from any previously
received COVID-19 vaccine is required and only one dose of the Janssen vaccine is needed to be fully
immunized. The Janssen vaccine is available for Albertans 18 years of age and older and is administered

at AHS clinics in select locations across the province.

Things You Need to Know

Verna’s Video Message - The Omicron Variant

As you know, Omicron, the latest COVID-19 variant of concern, is spreading across the province.
Alberta’s positivity rate has been as high as 39 per cent this week. This is the highest positivity rate we
have ever had in this province, including all previous waves.

While we are still leaming about Omicron, we do know that it is highly transmissible. We expect we will
continue to see a considerable increase in cases over the coming weeks,

There are still many unknowns about this variant of concern. Joining me (Verna) on the vlog to discuss
what we have learned about Omicron and what it means for staff, patients and the healthcare system are:




e  Dr. Mark Joffe, Vice President and Medical Director, Cancer Care Alberta, Clinical Support
Services and Provincial Clinical Excellence
e Dr. Laura McDougall, Senior Medical Officer of Health

Dr.Verna Yiu asks Dr. Mark Joffe and Dr. Laura MeDougall what we
have learned about the omicron variant of concern.

Seif-Care Resources help Albertans Manage COVID-19 Symptoms at Home

Following the rapid spread of the Omicron variant throughout the province and the growth in COVID-19
cases, many Albertans calling Health Link 811 are unsure how to manage symptoms, or if they need to
seek care with a positive COVID-19 test result.

While COVID-19 can cause serious iliness, most people can recover without special treatment.

AHS has launched a new web resource to help Albertans manage mild COVID-19 symptoms at home. It
includes:

What to do when you have symptoms of COVID-19

How to provide effective self-care at home to yourself or a family member
When to test for COVID-19, and

How to manage prolonged COVID-19 symptoms.

o o o o

We need to ensure people who need immediate care in Urgent Care Centres, Emergency Departments
and hospitals are able to receive it, and that those who can manage mild COVID-19 symptoms can care
for themselves and their loved ones at home.

Albertans can visit the site at ahs.ca/covidselfcare.

AHS Policy for Staff Attending Work

AHS has updated the Atfending work with COVID-19 symptoms, positive test, or close contact directive to
align with public health measures announced on Dec. 31, which came into effect on Jan. 3. These
changes are necessary to balance the protection of our people and patients from the highly transmissible
Omicron variant, as well as to ensure we have the staffing necessary to maintain critical services.

Key changes to the directive include:

*  Shorter work restriction period for fully immunized healthcare workers who test positive for
COVID-19. This means fully immunized workers can return to work after day 5 as fong as
symptoms are improving and you've been without fever for 24 hours.

¢ New guidance for healthcare workers who are close contacts:



o Introduction of 10 days of rapid testing for close contacts who are fully immunized (note,
this differs from the temporary frequent testing option under the Immunization or Testing
of Workers for COVID-19 Policy). ,

o Fully immunized workers with a booster dose can remain at work if they are a close
contact, without any testing requirement, as long as it has been at least 14 days since
the booster dose.

o Workers who are not fully immunized will be restricted from work for 14 days if they

become a close contact.

Staff must continue to use the Online Fit for Work Screening Tool.

Update: Designated Support and Visitor Access Screening Questionnaires

As we continue to learn more about the Omicron variant of COVID-19 AHS is proactively taking
precautions to limit transmission of the virus. As such, AHS will continue to require that designated
support persons and visitors who test positive for COVID-19, whether asymptomatic or symptomatic, not
enter an acute care, ambulatory, urgent or emergency services site for a minimum of 10 days from the
positive test date or from the onset of COVID-19 symptoms, unless qualifying for a CMOH exemption as
the designated support person for minor chiidren or dependent adults in need of medical care. This is
regardless of immunization status. For those who are symptomatic, symptoms must have resolved and
they must be fever free for at least 24 hours before entry.

As healthcare settings are more vulnerable environments, maintaining the 10-day requirement will help us
to protect those in our care.

Please review the screening questionnaires to ensure you are using the latest version:
¢ Standard (Daily Designated Support Person & Visitor Screening Questionnaire For Acute Care,

Ambuiatory, Emergency & Urgent Care)
e  Visitors to continuing care

More information on designated support and visitor access is available at ahs.ca/visitation.

Influenza Immunization Update

As of Jan. 1, 1,104,224 doses of influenza vaccine have been administered, which is approximately 25 per
cent of the population. 17 influenza cases were identified over the holidays, bringing the total to 34
confirmed cases of influenza so far this season.

Influenza is serious and immunization works to lower your risk of influenza infection. It is safe to get the
influenza and COVID-19 vaccines at the same time. We have substantial data regarding the safety of
COVID-19 vaccines and currently, there are no known safety concerns with administering both vaccines
at the same time. For more information on influenza, visit ahs.ca/influenza. Interactive aggregate data is
available online at Alberta influenza statistics.

Fairview Health Complex sets specific outpatient service hours

The Fairview Health Complex has set specific hours for outpatient services. Outpatient services - for
patients seeking medical care for non-urgent issues, or minor ailments - will be available at the Fairview
Health Complex between 9 a.m. and 1 p.m., seven days a week. Patients must register at the emergency
department and will be assessed and triaged by nursing staff prior to being seen by a physician. The
emergency department remains open 24/7 for urgent medical needs.

Online adult weight-management sessions

Central Zone residents wanting to learn principles of effective weight management are invited to register
for workshops include Adult Weight Management Level 1, 2, 3 and Introduction to Bariatric Surgery. in
Level 1, participants will learn to manage calories and nutrition. Level 2 provides strategies to manage
thoughts and feelings that affect behaviour change, and in Level 3, participants will learn to maintain
positive habit changes. The last workshop offers general information about bariatric surgeries including
possible complications, and the steps clients can take to be successful.



Participants have to attend each level consecutively. Zoom workshops will be offered from Jan. 11.
Interested residents can call the Alberta Healthy Living Program at 1-877-314-6997 to register.

Online sessions help seniors stay healthy and socially connected

Central Zone seniors are invited to learn practical ways to remain heaithy and socially connected.
Workshops will be offered on Jan. 10, 24, Feb. 11 and 28 from 9 a.m. to 11:30 a.m. Participants can join
virtually with a computer, a tablet or a phone. Interested participants can call 1-877-314-6997 to register.

Making mealtimes happy times

Parents and guardians of young children in Central Zone are invited to free Goodbye Mealtime Struggles
workshops on Jan. 19 and Feb.. 17 via Zoom. The program is led by a registered dietitian and a pediatric
occupational therapist. The workshops help parents and guardians learn how to overcome mealtime
conflicts with children from one to five years of age. Participants can call their community health centre to
register, and they'll receive a Zoom link one day before the workshop.

Online prenatal classes offered

Central Zone residents who are pregnant or trying to become pregnant to free online prenatal classes on
Jan. 18 and Feb. 15, noon to 1:15 p.m. During the class led by registered dietitians, participants will learn
about meal and snack ideas, nutrients they need in pregnancy, safe foods to eat during pregnancy and
more. Dietitians will be available to answer questions, provide rescurces and handouts. Participants can
register on the Central Zone Eventbrite Page. They will receive an email with a Zoom link two days before
the workshop.

Mobile mammography to visit Rocky Mountain House

Women in Rocky Mountain House ages 50-74 - the group most at risk of developing breast cancer - will
have local access to mammography services when the AHS' Screen Test program visits their
community. The mobile mammography trailer will be stationed at Rocky Mountain House Health Centre,
5016 52 Ave. on Jan. 21, 22, 24-29, 31 and Feb. 1. Residents can book an appointment or learn more
about the program by calling toll-free 1-800-667-0604. Due to COVID-19, Screen Test is taking a number
of precautions to ensure the safety of clients and staff. Details will be shared when residents book an
appointment.

Join the Conversation

—— . = e

Help name Calgary's new centre for child and adolescent mental health

Alberta Health Services has partnered with the Alberta Children’s Hospital Foundation and our generous
community to build a new centre for child and adolescent mental health in northwest Calgary. When it
opens next fall it will be unlike any other centre in Canada, providing three crucial new services: a
dedicated walk-in clinic, an intensive treatment program and Calgary’s first mental health day hospital — all
supporting youth and families in the Calgary area. The centre will be at the Child and Adolescent
Addiction, Mental Health and Psychiatry Program site.

We are inviting our entire community to help name the new building. Add vour voice to the conversation
by taking a short survey. It will take less than 10 minutes to share your thoughts. Thank you for
participating!

Lakeland Communities HAC to learn about the Rural Mental Health Project

Join the Lakeland Health Advisory Council January 12 from 5-8 pm to learn about the Rural Mental Heaith
Project as presented by the Canadian Mental Health Association (CMHA). For the meeting link, contact
community.engagement@ahs.ca with ‘Lakeland’ in the subject line.

Join David Thompson HAC Conversation on Palliative Health Services
Join this virtual conversation on palliative care services in the Central Zone and learn about advance care

planning, including goals of care and personal directives. The event is on January 13, 6-7 pm.
Registration is required, via Eventbrite.

10



Volunteers wanted!

Recruitment continues to the Lesser Slave Lake and True North Health Advisory Councils. Health
Advisory Councils are comprised of members from communities across Alberta who bring diverse, local
perspectives to AHS on the healthcare system. Members are connected to their community and enjoy
participating in engagement activities that contribute to improving healthcare services.

Councils host public meetings and community events within their geographical area, and members
participate in community activities to hear from, and share information with community members.

Learn more about Advisory Councils at ahs.ca/advisorycouncils. To apply, please complete an Expression
of Interest form and submit to community.engagement@ahs.ca.

Be Well - Be Kind

Foundation Good News

Through donor support, our philanthropic partners fund enhancements to healthcare delivery including
equipment, programs, renovations, research and education across the province and in your community.

Learn more here.
University Hospital Foundation receives major donation toward kidney care
The University Hospital Foundation recently recognized Qualico for their generous donation of $750,000,

which will support the expansion of West Edmonton Kidney Care and the quality of life for Albertans who
are living with end-stage kidney disease.

With donor support, the foundation is moving closer toward its goal of expanding West Edmonton Kidney
Care’s home dialysis program and giving kidney patients more comfortable, accessibie care.

Art for Heart raises funds for Stollery Children’s Hospital

Some of Edmonton’s best artists competed against each other for a good cause. Four tattoo artists went
head-to-head against four of the city’s top comic illustrators in the Art for Heart competition to raise money

for the Stollery Children’s Hospital.

The groups of artists were given a theme and input from
the audience to craft unique pieces that were auctioned
off. David Tuff, the event organizer, said the idea behind
the event came from when he drew and auctioned off an
art piece while his daughter was in the Stollery for her first
heart surgery.

“Because of the time we spent at the Stollery, {my
daughter), she’s six now and she’s running around,” Tuff
said. “She was born with a rare heart defect so the Stollery
has been a second home to us. They've always been amazing and just so awesome. So | wanted to give

back in the best way | couid.”

Gratitude from Albertans

Thank you to all of the Albertans who have taken the time to recognize the work of heaithcare providers
and physicians. Messages of gratitude keep pouring in from across the province and beyond during the
COVID-19 pandemic. You can see messages we have received — and add your own - on our Sharing the

Love webpage.

Wrapping Up - 2022 Arrives with a Bang

11



Here we are, just over a week into 2022, and it certainly has started with a bang! We hope you found time
over the holiday break to rest and recharge as it seems she Omicron variant will not be giving us an easy
start to this New Year.

You can help support the health system by ensuring you have your third/booster dose of the COVID-19
vaccine and your influenza immunization, and please, stay home with any symptoms consistent with an
infectious illness.

We thank all those AHS staff, healthcare providers and physicians who continue to demonstrate their
commitment to the health of Albertans during this difficult season. We truly feel privileged to move into
2022 as part of this amazing team.

With enduring gratitude and appreciation,

Dr. Verna Yiu
AHS President & CEO

Dr. Laura McDougall
 Senior Medical Officer of Health

Copyright © 2022 Alberta Health Services, All rights reserved.

Our mailing address is:
10101 Southport Road SW, Calgary, AB, T2W 3N2

Want to change how you receive these emails?
You can update your preferences or unsubscribe from this list.

To be added to this list, click here.

12



13, K

Alberta Beach Village Office

e

From: Cathy Heron <president@abmunis.ca>
Sent: December 30, 2021 1:23 PM

To: Kathy Skwarchuk

Subject: Alberta Municipalities Year End Review

What a year 2021 has been!

With the year coming to an end, I'd like to take a few moments to reflect on the ‘year that was,’ and look ahead to
‘the year to come.’

Throughout 2021, we advocated tirelessly on your behalf to support you, Alberta’s community builders. Some of the
major highlights from this past year include:

¢ Our New Brand- After hosting focus groups and analyzing the results of a survey to which 416 members
responded, we proudly launched a new brand that reflects what our members told us:

o Asingle brand instead of AUMA and AMSC brands;

o It moves away from classifying municipalities as urban or rural. Many of our members do not relate
to the term ‘urban,’ nor do they wish to define themselves as being ‘urban’ or ‘rural’ at all, but as

municipalities and communities;
o The change to our brand and name is more unifying;

o We do not need to divide our members into urban and rural terms, we are all municipalities and
communities; and

o members felt the acronym AUMA does not hold a lot of meaning and many people do not know
that AUMA is an acronym for Alberta Urban Municipalities Association.

For those of you who missed the big unveiling at Convention, here is more information, including our launch video!
Our brand name, Alberta Municipalities, is how we now refer to ourselves. We will be bringing forward a resolution to
the next Convention to change our legal name as well.

« Policing and EMS- We made it known that municipalities cannot afford to pay the retroactive pay increase
for RCMP members - a position the provincial government supports. We questioned the need and
additional costs associated with the creation and operation of a provincial police service. And we made it
known that the current EMS system does not meet the needs of the communities our members serve.

e Downloading Costs- Throughout the year, we went to great lengths to ensure the Government of Alberta
knew that its continual downloading of services and expenses onto municipalities to balance the provincial

budget was unacceptable and blatantly unfair.
The Pledge- We championed democratic principles and values, telling the provincial government it was in
Alberta’s best interest to maintain codes of conduct for municipal governments because they improve

accountability. We also encouraged candidates to take the Local Democracy Pledge in the run-up to
October’s municipal elections. We were very happy with how many local candidates took the Pledge.

Extender Producer Responsibility (EPR)- We were pleased when the provincial government acted on EPR
in early December. We hope it will result in greater innovation, the creation of a plastics ‘circular economy,’
and new jobs.

Indigenous Relations- We increased our Indigenous relations efforts in 2021, following revelations of
unmarked graves near former residential school sites across Canada. Throughout the year, we set up



numerous Indigenous cultural training sessions for our members and provided a comprehensive online
toolkit.

No retraspective would be complete without acknowledging the superb leadership and guidance of Barry Morishita,
who stepped down as President in August after nearly four years at the helm to pursue his provincial political
asnirations, and Angela Duncan, for providing excellent interim leadership up to, and including, Convention. Thank

you, Barry and Angelal

Looking Ahead

Your newly elected President and Board of Directors are busy setting Alberta Municipalities’ priorities and agenda
for 2022 based on the resolutions that were passed at Convention.

One thing is certain: We'll continue to listen to you and advocate tirelessly on your behalf. It's what we've done for
more than 100 years, because we know there is Strength in Members.

| look forward to working with you and helping to support your community-building efforts in the year ahead.

Sincerely,

Cathy Heson | President

Mayor, City of St Albert

o recident@anmun N = Alberta

- president@abmunis.ca a

300-8616 51 Ave Edmonton, AB TEE 6E6 - Mun|C|paht|es
Strength

Toll Free: 310-MUNI | 877-421-6644 | www.abmunis.ca
In Members

This emad end eny files vansmitted with it sre confidential and intended solely for the use of the indhidual of entity 10 whom they are
eddrezsed. if you heve received this emel in enor please notify the sendes. This messege containg oonfidentis! informetion end is intended
anty for the indhidus! named. If you ere not the nemed addresses, you thould not disseminete, distribute or copy this email,

Atberta Municipalities is working to protect the health of its membetrs, partners, & employees.

Fully vaccinated & masked visitors are welcome at Alberta Municipalities’ office and events.
Piease contact us to make alternative arrangements if you are unable to meet these requirements.




(X}
—
\

aboffice@albertabeach.com cet Lovaald
From: angeladuncan@albertabeach.com

Sent: January 9, 2022 3:56 PM

To: angeladuncan@albertabeach.com

Subject: Alberta Municipalities Villages West Update

Hello Mayors, Councillors, and CAOs,

| hope that everyone had an excellent Christmas and New Years and that you all managed to stay warm!

First, | would like to thank everyone who applied to be on a committee. We had an overwhelming number of
applications, and it was especially wonderful to see so many applicants from small communities like ours. Letters were
sent out last week to let applicants know their outcome. Congratulations to those who were chosen. For those who
weren’t, please stay engaged with the association and make sure you apply again next year. |, personally, applied 3
times before | was chosen for a committee. | am excited to be Chairing the Small Communities Committee again this
year. A full list of the committees that I sit on can be found at the bottom of this email, for your information.

As always, there is lots going on within the province, our municipalities, and for Alberta Municipalities (AB Munis). | will
provide you an overview of a few of AB Munis key initiatives, but this is in no way comprehensive.

Policing
There are a few key issues with policing that AB Munis is working on; the Alberta Police Advisory Board, the new RCMP

union contract, and a potential transition to an AB Provincial Police Service (APPS).

The Interim Police Advisory Board has completed its mandate and provided its final report to the Minister of Justice and
Solicitor General. The intention had been for the board to recruit for and transition to a permanent board after the
municipal election and before the new year. Unfortunately, the Minister’s response to the report was not received until
a few days before Christmas so the transition has been delayed. The Interim Board will be meeting later this week to
discuss the Minister’s response and | will have more information after that.

The other part of the Interim Boards mandate was to provide input into the build up of rural police resources and
provincial policing priorities. | am very pleased to say that the board met numerous times with RCMP Deputy
Commissioner Zablocki and that he was very receptive to our feedback and recommendations. The Interim Board will be
sending out an update of the buildup and rollout out of resources soon, so keep your eyes open for that.

AB Munis is following the rollout of the new union contract between the federal government and the National Police
Federation closely. While we support the right of RCMP members to collective bargaining and believe they have a rlght
to equitable pay, municipalities were not at the negotiating table and are concerned about the implications of
significant back pay resulting from the agreement. We do not yet know what the impact of this will be on our
municipalities and we are working with the province and other provincial municipal associations to advocate to the

federal government to cover the significant back pay.

Finally, the province is moving forward on engagements with municipalities on a new Provincial Police Service (APPS).
This is an important issue and | hope that you are all following it closely, as it has the potential to significantly impact
service levels, governance, and costs associated with policing in Alberta. AB Munis has hired Global Consulting to review
and provide in depth feedback on the PwC report and associated documents that were released last fall. There are 3
sets of engagements/consultations that are occurring on this issue, simultaneously.
e AB Munis will be hosting a webinar, tentatively scheduled for Jan 19 at 6pm to inform our members about
what is happening, solicit feedback to help the board establish a position, and provide information and

1



questions that may be helpful for those that are attending the provincial engagements. Monitor your emails
for further information on this important event.

e The GoA is running engagement sessions specifically for municipal elected officials. This is your opportunity to

*  hear what the government has to say and let your voice be heard. The relevant reports and information on the
provincial engagement can be found at https://www.alberta.ca/provincial-police-service-engagement.aspx. This
is an extremely important issue and | strongly encourage you to attend a session near you. You should have
received an email with engagement details from the GoA.

e The National Police Federation is also holding a series of townhall style engagements. Having attended one of
these, | can say that they are very informative and may help provide some clarity on what is happening. More
information can be found at https://www.keepalbertarcmp.ca/communityengagementtour.

Local Government Fiscal Framework (LGFF)
The province is intending to replace MSI with the LGFF in 2024. While the LGFF is not perfect, it is a great achievement

for Alberta municipalities. For years we have been advocating for a predicable, sustainable, and adequate capital
funding model that will meet municipalities’ needs. By cementing our funding in legislation and tying it to provincial
revenues on a two-year cycle, Alberta is now one of three provinces with a funding model that is directly linked to
provincial revenues. The legislation will provide municipalities with predictable sustainable funding. However, there
continues to be room for improvement, and based on a motion at last years Municipal Leaders Caucus, AB Munis will

continue to advocate for:
* Removing the 50% limitation in the revenue index factor so that annual changes in LGFF will match annual

changes in provincial revenue,
e Increasing the starting amount of LGFF (it is currently set to start with a 36% reduction from historical MSI

levels), and
* Implement the program one year earlier in 2023.

Additionally, AB Munis will be working with the RMA on an allocation formula. To help inform these conversations, AB
Munis has formed a Municipal Financial Health Working Group which is set to present their findings to the Board in

February.

EOEP Courses
The Elected Official Education Program offers an excellent selection of courses to assist you in your work as a councillor,

regardless of if you are a new or returning councillor. If you have not yet taken it, | encourage everyone to take Munis
101. Information on courses and course availability can be found at https://eoep.ca/. | am also very excited to say that
EOEP has partnered with the University of Alberta Augustana Campus to offer a new Municipal Elected Leaders
Certificate. Visit the website for more information.

Other initiatives and programs

| cannot possibly update you on everything that we are working on, additional initiatives include (in no particular order):
Covid 19 advocacy

Provincial financial support for economic growth
Access to healthcare

Red Tape Reduction

Broadband

MGA Review

Extended Producer Responsibility (EPR)

Future of Municipal Government

Fostering a culture of respect

Welcoming and Inclusive Communities

Municipal Climate Change Action Center (MCCAC)
Clean Energy Improvement Program

Asset Management



Even this list is not comprehensive, so if you would like more information on these or anything else, please let me know.
I am looking forward to working with you and your municipalities. | encourage you to get in touch with me, via email,
phone, or text, if you would like to talk about the work AB Munis is doing or if you want to discuss something that is
happening in your community. | am also looking forward to visiting communities again this summer, please let me know

when will work for you and we will set it up.
Sincerely,

Angela Duncan

Deputy Mayor, Alberta Beach

Vice President, Villages & Summer Villages, Alberta Municipalities
(780) 868-5103

angeladuncan@albertabeach.com

Current AB Munis Committee Appointments

Small Communities Committee (Chair)

Interim Alberta Police Advisory Board

Rural Municipalities of Alberta (RMA) Zone 3 Representative/liaison
Rural Sustainability (in Primary Care) Task Force

FCSS Accountability Framework Steering Committee

Alberta Municipalities Business Board (Formerly AMSC)



('3, m

Adberta Beach Village Office

=S —
From: Anita Sookar <Anita@abmunis.ca>
Sent: January 11, 2022 11:26 AM
To: jburrows@RMAlberta.com
Cc: Angela Duncan ; Cathy Heron ; Kathy Skwarchuk; ayarmuch@stalbert.ca; Susan
Valentine; gerald@rmalberta.com
Subject: Alberta Municipalities re-assignments to RMA Pembina District #3
Attachments: RMA Pembina District 3 (Duncan and Heron) - 2022.pdf

Good morning,
Please see attached letter from Alberta Municipalities CEQO, Dan Rude.

If you have any questions, please do not hesitate to contact me.

Best Regards,

Anita Sookar MSc, NCSO, CPHR, GPC.D | Governance Coordinator, Corporate Govemance

ALBERTA MUNICIPALITIES
D: 780.989.7406 | E: Anita@abmunis.ca i} IA|be-rt-a ope
300, 8616 51 Ave NW Edmoniton, AB TEE 6E6 == = Municipalities
Toll Free: 310-MUNI | 877-421-6644 | wwrw abmunis.ca Strength

In Members

This emedl and eny files transmitted with it are confidentiel snd intended solely for the use of the individual or entity to whom they are
sddressed. if you have received this emeil in error plesse notify the sender. This messsge containg confidentisl inforration and is intended
onfy for the individug! named. If you sre not the nemed sddresses, you should not disseminste, distribute o¢ copy this email.

Aiberta Municipalities is working to protect the health of its members, partners, & employees.
Fully vaccinated & masked visitors are welcome at Alberta Municipalities’ office and events.

Please contact us to make alternative arrangements if you are unable to meet these requirements.




‘B _Alberta i
=  Municipalities
Strength
in Members

January 11, 2022

Councillor John Burrows
P.0. Box 60, #1 Woodlands Lane,
Whitecourt, ABT7S 1IN3

Dear Councillor Burrows:

Re: Alberta Municipalities re-assignments to RMA Pembina District #3

On behalf of the Alberta Municipalities Board, please note the following re-assignments of
Deputy Mayor Angela Duncan, Village of Alberta Beach (lead) and Mayor Cathy Heron, City of
St. Albert (backup), as Alberta Municipalities’ representatives on RMA Pembina District #3.

Please provide Deputy Mayor Duncan and Mayor Heron with any information on upcoming
meetings and events. Their contact information is as follows:

Deputy Mayor Angel ncan Mayor Cathy Heron
Phone Number: 780-868-5103 Phone Number: 780-459-1606

Email Address: angeladuncan®@albertabeach.com Email Address: mayorheron@stalbert.ca

If you have any questions, please do not hesitate to contact Anita Sookar at 780-989-7406
or Anita@abmunis.ca.

Yours truly,

T
an Rude

CEO, Alberta Municipalities

Cc: Deputy Mayor Angela Duncan
Her Worship Mayor Cathy Heron
Kathy Skwarchuk, CAO, Village of Alberta Beach
Gerald Rhodes, Executive Director, Rural Municipalities of Alberta

300, 8616 - 51 Avenue NW = Edmonton, AB, TGE 6E6 = abmunis.ca = hello@abmunis.ca
T780.433.4431 « F 780.433.4454 = AB Toll Free 310.MUNI



13.0n

aboffice(gialbertabeach.cgm _
From: Alberta Municipalities <communications@auma.ca>
Sent: December 22, 2021 1:31 PM
To: aboffice@albertabeach.com
Subject: THE WEEKLY - EPR Municipal Workshop
4 [ - e Alberta |
THE WEEKLY =|  Municipalities
Strength
In N\embers

DECEMBER 22, 2021

QUICK
LINKS

CASUAL LEGAL:
New Guidance on
SDAB Variance
Powers

EPR Municipai Workshop - Free
Webinar

o o @ e What would residential recycling look like under an EPR

program? What will the impacts be on household
hazardous waste programs?

Join us for an EPR workshop on January 5 at 10:30 a.m.
to find out.

ADVOCACY UPDATES




CASUAL LEGAL: New Guidance on SDAB Variance Powers

The Alberta Court of Appeal recently issued a decision that provides some important direction for
Subdivision and Development Appeal Boards (SDABs) when interpreting and applying their
variance powers under the Municipal Government Act.

GOOD TO KNOW

R

Reynolds Mirth Richards & Farmer LLP (RMRF) is hosting a virtual seminar on important
and trending topics in employment law. The agenda boasts a lineup of timely topics
focused on the legal landscape and how it relates to labour and employment in Alberta.
Leaders, managers, and human resources professionals will all benefit from participating
in this webinar. Please follow the link to learn more about the event and register.

Due tomorrow! Submit your

Expression of Interest for the ;Mi?"'cépag h
Municipal Energy Champions m:'ia e Change
Action Centre

Program.

Participation in the Municipal Energy Champions Program is FREE, but it can save your community
thousands of dollars.

The program helps small municipalities identify opportunities to reduce energy consumption and

save money. We will help your ‘champion’ understand energy use and management, better track
municipal energy consumption, and move forward in the energy planning process.

Your Expression of Interest is due tommorow!




= JOBS CONNECT

e Economic Development Officer

e Director of Finance

General Manager, Community & Infrastructure
Services

HR Manager

Recreation Program Coordinator

Legislative Advisor

Project Manager - Buildings

View more job postings here

EASY LINKS

Subscribe to our other valuable e-mail services

L)

@ & o o o

e Jobs Connect
e News Clippings
e Weekly Digest

o o @ 0 Alberta Municipalities
abmunis.ca
310-MUNI

AUMA | 300, 8616 51 Avenue, Edmonton, AB T6E 6E6 Canada

Unsubscribe aboffice@albertabeach.com

Update Profile | Constant Contact Data Notice

Sent by communications@auma.ca powered by

é\- Constant
Contact

Try email marketing for free today!



CASUAL LEGAL: NEW GUIDANCE ON SDAB
VARIANCE POWERS

Home / CASUAL LEGAL: New Guidance on SDAB Variance Powers

€ News

Dec 22

2021

BY
Anonymous (not
verified)

New Guidance on SDAB Variance Powers

By Sean Ward
Reynolds Mirth Richards Farmer LLP
Alberta Municipalities Casual Legal Service Provider

The Alberta Court of Appeal recently issued a decision that provides
some important direction for Subdivision and Development Appeal Boards
(SDABs) when interpreting and applying their variance powers under the
Municipal Government Act.

The decision dealt with the separation distance required between a
library and a cannabis retail sales development under the municipality’s
land use bylaw. The proposed cannabis development was less than the
required 200m from a public library, such that the initial application for a
development permit was denied. The decision was appealed to the SDAB,
where the Board allowed the appeal by granting a variance to the
separation distance requirement.

in its reasons, the SDAB accepted the Developer’s submission that
“unless the Board can articulate what harm can come from granting a
variance, then the variance should be granted. The Board must
reasonably demonstrate the negative effect the proposed variance would
have on the amenities of a neighbourhood and on the neighbouring
parcels of land.”

The Library Board appealed to the Court of Appeal for several reasons,
including on the basis that the SDAB had incorrectly interpreted and
applied the variance test in s 687(3)(d) of the MGA. Specifically, they
argued that a party seeking a variance from the requirements of the land
use bylaw should bear the onus and burden of proof to justify the

1/4



variance by establishing that it would not lead to any negative effects; as
opposed to the SDAB'’s approach in effectively requiring some proof that
the variance would be harmful before declining to approve a requested

variance.

The majority of the Court of Appeal, however, rejected that argument and
dismissed the appeal. They concluded that although the SDAB's use of
the word “harm” was unhelpful and best avoided, it should be understood
as referring to potential negative effects based on the proper test for
granting a variance as set out in section 687(3)(d) of the MGA. They
found the SDAB did identify proper reasons in its decision for concluding
a variance was appropriate, including that the library and development
were separated by a major roadway, and that possible nuisance concerns
were mitigated by the presence of a police station on the same site as
the proposed cannabis development. As such, the Board did not
improperly impose a burden of proof on the opponents of the variance,
and the Court of Appeal concluded it was acceptable for an SDAB to
observe that it had not been provided with any substantive planning
reasons to suggest negative effects would arise from granting the

_variance.

7o access Alberta Municipalities Casual Legal Helpline, Alberta
Municipalities members can call tollfree to 1-800-661-7673 or email
casuallegal@abmunis.ca and reach the municipal legal experts at
Reynolds Mirth Richards and Farmer LLR For more information on the
Casual Legal Service, please contact riskcontroi@abmunls.ca, or call
310-MUN! (6864) to speak to Alberta Municipalities Risk Management
staff. Any Regular or Associate member of Alberta Municipalities can

access the Casual Legal Service.

DISCLAIMER: This article is meant to provide information only and is not
intended to provide legal advice. You should seek the advice of legal
counsel to address your specific set of circumstances. Although every
effort has been made to provide current and accurate information,
changes to the law may cause the information in this article to be

outdated.

More Business Service News

2/14



(3,0

(4 Coin "i. g

.t

_a@"ffice@albertabeac_h.com

— ==
From: Alberta Municipalities <communications@auma.ca>
Sent: January 12, 2022 3:25 PM
To: aboffice@albertabeach.com
Subject: THE WEEKLY - Single-use Plastics Info Released

cl=z Alberta
| ¥ Municipalities
Strength
In Members

- THE WEEKLY

JANUARY 12, 2021

QUICK
LINKS

EPR Municipal
Workshop Recording
Available

Stormwater Ponds: 7
Unsafe for Recreational [ .
Use ll

]

Casual Legal: New Year,

New Work Single-use Plastics Prohibition
Q'i’;izgeme“ts’ New Regulations Published

Environment and Climate Change Canada published

the Single-Use Plastics Prohibition Regulations on Dec.
25, 2021, initiating a 70-day public comment period.

Workshops on Canada's History & the Municipal Role in
Reconciliation



Check out the eight virtual workshops exploring how past government policies have defined
today’s relationship between Indigenous and non-Indigenous peoples.

CASUAL LEGAL: New Year, New Work Arrangements, New Risks

The COVID-19 pandemic caused an unprecedented shift in working arrangements, with countless
employees transitioning to fully or partially working from home.

Recording Available: Jan. 5 EPR Municipal Workshop

The Extended Producer Responsibility (EPR) workshop hosted on January 5, 2022 is now available
to view on YouTube.

Submissions for Transportation Innovation Awards Due by Feb. 25

The Minister's Awards for Transportation Innovation (MATI) honour innovative transportation
projects completed in the last two years.

New FireSmart Program Open to Alberta lYiunicipalities

The Forest Resource Improvement Association of Alberta (FRIAA) is now accepting expressions of
interest (EOI) for its new FireSmart Program.

PRODUCTS & SERVICES

Stormwater Ponds: UNSAFE For Recreational Use

Stormwater ponds are working facilities that are unsafe for ALL forms of winter recreation.

*“‘\ Mundpai
| Climate Change
Action Centre

2 Billion Trees Commitment

Planting two billion trees is no small feat. It
takes a lot of planning, preparation and often
many years to get from a seed to planting a
tree in the ground, but the benefits last
decades!

The 2 Billion Trees (2BT) program aims to motivate and support new tree planting projects. Over
the next 10 years, up to $3.2 billion will be invested in tree planting efforts to support
communities plant 2 billion trees. The deadline to apply for this round of funding is February 17,

2022. Learn more here.

Communities like yours are making real change.
As part of the Action Centre’s Recreation Energy Conservation (REC) program, the City of
Lloydminster installed a REALice system at the Russ Robertson Arena. The REALice installation



resulted in a reduction of 18 tCO2/year and an energy cost saving of $3,789.77/year. Read more
about this project here. —

GOOD TO KNOW

¥e

Reynolds Mirth Richards & Farmer LLP (RMRF) is hosting a virtual seminar on important and
trending topics in employment law. The agenda boasts a lineup of timely topics focused on the
legal landscape and how it relates to labour and employment in Alberta. This amazing seminar
will be great for leaders, managers, and human resources professionals. Learn more & register.

The Edmonton-based Resiliency Project is hosting a FREE three-part webinar series on
understanding hate, case studies and prevention of violence, and reporting hate crimes and
incidents. The series offers guidance to any community that wants to reduce hate and become
more inclusive and is designed for front-line staff, social workers, educators, school
administrators, and youth program personnel.

Jan. 26, from 1 to 2:30 p.m. - Understanding Hate & Extremism

Feb. 2, from 1 to 2:30 p.m. - Local Context, Case Studies, & Prevention of Hate-Motivated
Violence

Feb. 9, from 1 to 2:30 p.m. - Understanding and Reporting Hate Crimes & Incident

Sign up before Wednesday, January 26.

The Alberta Seniors & Community Housing Association (ASCHA) will host a virtual information
session for municipal elected officials to strengthen their understanding of the housing continuum

in Alberta on February 17. We will explore the roles of municipalities and the potential impacts on
seniors housing and community housing embedded in the new provincial Affordable Housing
Strategy and government-led transformations in continuing care and home care.

Register for Housing 101 for Municipal Elected Officials: 9:00 to 10:30 a.m., Thursday, Feb. 17.

VALUABLE LINKS




JOBS CONNECT

¢ Chief Administrative Officer, MD of Fairview

¢ Chief Administrative Officer, Town of Redwater

¢ Economic Development Officer, Lac La Biche
County

e Chief Administrative Officer, Town of Milk River
& Village of Warner

EASY LINKS

Subscribe to our other valuable e-mail services

e Jobs Connect
¢ News Clippings
¢ Weekly Digest

Alberta Municipalities
abmunis.ca
310-MUNI

AUMA | 300, 8616 51 Avenue, Edmonton, AB T6E 6E6 Canada

Unsubscribe aboffice@albertabeach.com

Update Profile | Constant Contact Data Notice

Sent by communications@auma.ca powered by

0 . Constant
Contact

Try email marketing for free today!



aboffice@albertabeach.com

Exec. Assistant on behalf of Dan Rude <EA_DRude@abmunis.ca>

From:

Sent: January 12, 2022 4:34 PM

To: Kathy Skwarchuk

Subject: New FireSmart Program Offering — up to $200K in available funding
Hello,

The Forest Resource Improvement Association of Alberta (FRIAA) is now accepting expressions of interest (EQI) for
its new FireSmart Program.

Offering up to $200K in funding, the program is open to all municipalities and helps communities and residents
manage and reduce the threat of wildfire. ‘

The program is offered in alignment with the Provincial Government’s FireSmart Program. Eligible projects must be
related to one or more FireSmart disciplines.

The FRIAA is holding information sessions on January 25 and 31. If interested in attending, you are asked to send
an email to FRIAA with your name, title, and organization to admin@friaa.ab.ca to register.

EOI submissions are due February 18. For more information, please visit this webpage.



1/13/22, 3:16 PM FRIAA FireSmart Program - FOREST RESOURCE IMPROVEMENT ASSOCIATION OF ALBERTA

FRIAA is pleased to announce 1 current funding opportunities (/current-funding-opportunities/)

L,

N

o se™

FRIAA FIRESMART PROGRAM

Forests cover over 50 per cent of Alberta’s landscape, and communities across the province are
nested within or near the forest. This creates a wildland /urban interface - an area where
buildings and forested areas meet. Though beautiful, these communities are at increased risk
of wildfire. The FRIAA FireSmart Program helps communities and residents manage and reduce
the threat of wildfire. The program supports communities in carrying out activities aimed at

reducing the threat of wildfire.

FRIAA FireSmart Program projects can include activities related to any of the seven disciplines
that make up FireSmart:

« Planning (e.g. FireSmart community plan: wildfire preparedness guides and wildfire
mitigation strategies; resource-sharing and mutual-aid fire control agreements);

s Vegetation/Fuel management (e.g. fuel breaks, thinning and pruning, vegetation
removal /reduction and conversion to more fire-resistant species),
o Public education (e.g. increased awareness regarding wildfire threat and application of

FireSmart principles);
« Inter-agency cooperation and cross-training;

o Legislation and planning (e.g. review provincial and municipal legislation, land-use bylaws
and plans);
« Development (e.g. new subdivision development re: roadway access; water supply and

utilities placement); and

https://friaa.ab.cal/programs/friaa-firesmart/ 1/4



1/113/22, 3:16 PM FRIAA FireSmart Program - FOREST RESOURCE IMPROVEMENT ASSOCIATION OF ALBERTA

« Emlergency planning (e.g. develop or update procedures and response.plans, and
" upgrading existing developments to FireSmart standards).

Each activity funded through the FRIAA FireSmart Program aims to create safer communities.
Activities can range from modifying forest vegetation on the wildland /urban interface to
educating residents about steps they should take on their own property to reduce the wildfire
risk. Under planning, a wildfire preparedness guide (WPG)

(https: //open.alberta.ca/publications /9781460146095#summary)_can increase the situational

awareness of emergency responders, refer to the updated manual by Agriculture and Forestry,

Government of Alberta, January 2020.

FRIAA FireSmart endeavours to offer funding opportunities twice a year, typically in the
summer and winter, subject to funding availability. Funding opportunities are open to Alberta
communities and municipalities, First Nations, Metis Settlements and Locals and other eligible

organizations.

For more information on FireSmart principles and FireSmart Canada

(https: //www.firesmartcanada.ca/), please visit their website.

Link below to a sample of FRIAA funded projects:

FireSmart Wildfire Exposure Assessment (https: //firesmartcanada.ca/wp-
content/uploads/2019/10/FS_ExposureAssessment_Sept2018.pdf)- A planning tool for
identifying values at risk and prioritizing mitigation effort. (Dr. Jen Beverly, September 2018)

State-of-Practice of Water Delivery Systems (Sprinklers) Used In The Wildland-Urban Interface

(https: /friaa.ab.ca/wp-content/uploads /2020/03/10 Compendium-State-of-practice-
review-of-water-delivery-systems vl.pdf)- (Ray Ault and Chad Gardeski, FPInnovations, April
2019)

FFP DOCUMENTS

Some of the following forms may require Adobe Acrobat Reader to view. Download Adobe
Acrobat Reader here. (http: //get.adobe.com/reader/)

hitps:/friaa.ab.ca/programs/friaa-firesmart/ 2/4



113/22, 3:16 PM FRIAA FireSmart Program - FOREST RESOURCE IMPROVEMENT ASSOCIATION OF ALBERTA

FRIAA FireSmart Program Outline (https://friaa.ab.ca/wp-content/uploads/2021/01/FRIAA-FireSmart-Program-Program-Outline-for-
RFEDI-21-Jan-21.pdf)

Template — FireSmart Progress Report (Schedules A&B) (https://friaa.ab.ca/wp-content/uploads/2019/09/T emplate-Progress-Report-
Schedules-AB.docx)

Template — FireSmart Final Outcomes Report (Schedules A&B) (https://friaa.ab.ca/wp-content/uploads/2019/09/Template-Final-
Outcomes-Report-Schedules-AB.docx)

Wildland Hazardous Fuels Management Prescription Completion Guide (https://friaa.ab.ca/wp-content/uploads/2017/09/WILDLAND-
HAZARDOUS-FUELS-MGMT-PRESCRIPTION-HOW-TO-GUIDE.pdf)

Wildland Hazardous Fuels Management Prescription (https:/friaa.ab.ca/wp-
content/uploads/2017/09/Wildland_HazardousFuelsPrescription_20151008.docx)

Summary of Approved FireSmart Projects-June 2021 (https://friaa.ab.ca/wp-content/uploads/2021/09/Summary-of-Approved-
FireSmart-Projects_June2021_FINAL pdf)

Summary of Approved FireSmart Projects December 2020 (https://friaa.ab.ca/wp-content/uploads/2020/12/Summary-of-Approved-
FireSmart-Projects-December-2020.pdf)

Summary of Approved FireSmart Projects May 2020 (https://friaa.ab.ca/wp-content/uploads/2020/06/Summary-of-Approved-
FireSmart-Projects-May-2020.pdf)
Summary of Approved FireSmart Projects December 2019 ()

Summary of Approved FireSmart Projects May 2019 (https://friaa.ab.ca/wp-content/uploads/2019/06/Summary-of-Approved-FireSmart-
Projects-May-2019_Final.pdf)

Summary of Approved FireSmart Projects December 2018 (https://friaa.ab.ca/wp-content/uploads/2018/12/Summary-of-Approved-
FireSmart-Projects-December-2018.pdf)

Summary of Approved FireSmart Projects May 2018 (https://friaa.ab.ca/wp-content/uploads/2018/06/Summary-of-Approved-FireSmart-
Projects-May-2018_Final.pdf)

Summary of Approved FireSmart Projects December 2017 (https://friaa.ab.ca/wp-content/uploads/2017/12/Summary-of-Approved-
FireSmart-Projects-December-2017.pdf)

Summary of Approved FireSmart Projects — May 2017 (https://friaa.ab.ca/wp-content/uploads/2017/06/Summary-of-Approved-
FireSmart-Projects-May-2017.docx)

Contact FRIAA

. (780) 429-5873
B (780)429-4026
& admin@friaa.ab.ca (mailto:admin@friaa.ab.ca)

https:/ffriaa.ab.ca/programs/friaa-firesmart/ 3/4



1/13/22, 3:16 PM FRIAA FireSmart Program - FOREST RESOURCE IMPROVEMENT ASSOCIATION OF ALBERTA

*

Copyright © 2022 Forest Resource Improvement Association of Alberta FRIAA

Edmonton Web design by Holler Digital (https: //hollerdigital.com)

https:/ffriaa.ab.ca/programs/friaa-firesmart/ 4/4



(%, CL
AlbertaBeach Village Office _ _

From: Thompson, Prescilla <pthompson@brownleelaw.com>

Sent: January 7, 2022 9:28 AM

To: 'aboffice@albertabeach.com’

Subject: RSVP for our Emerging Trends in Municipal Law this February

| BROWNLEE LLP
. Berristers & Solicitors

MUN ICIPAL LAW

The trends you need to know
for your community to grow

Calgar}r I F.Ch['ilﬂl'}- ]0, 2022 VI'I“ILl-'.’ll OPUDJ'I

Edmonton I Bcbraary 17,2022 O soth Dates

Topics include:

- Employment Law in the Time of COVID - Municipal Tax Powers, Conflicting Fiduciary Obligations
« Privacy and Freedom to Information lsues - Case and Legislative Updates
+ How to Manage Legal Matters - (& A bear pit session where our Jawyers will answer your questions.

In-person Registration $185 + GST : P CLICK HERE
¥irtual Registration $83 + GST ik Ff‘ If: l‘r< :lf., ,Ew.v 2022 W 1o Regis rpf‘.-if;; feb .E,J > anyod
Evuut is by invitation only, oo

Brownleelaw.com

Dear Bud,

You are invited to join us this February for our annual Emerging Trends in Municipal Law
seminar featuring topics curated for our elected and administrative municipal clients.

Emerging Trends in Municipal Law will be held in-person in Calgary and Edmonton — and we will
also offer a live-stream option if you are unable to attend in person.

The following topics will be featured at both sessions: employment law in the time of COVID,
privacy and freedom to information issues, how to manage legal matters, municipal tax powers,
conflicting fiduciary obligations, case and legislative updates, and a Q&A bear pit session where

our lawyers will answer your questions.

In-person Registration $185 + GST
Virtual Registration $85 + GST



If we must switch to an entirely virtual event due to COVID, we will issue refunds or transfer in-person
registrations to virtual tickets and refund the difference.

Details:

Emerging Trends in Municipal Law - Calgary

Date: Thursday, February 10, 2022

Time: 8:30 am — 3:30 pm reception to follow

Location: Best Western Premier Calgary Plaza Hotel & Conference Centre
Address: 1316 - 33 St. NE, Calgary

- Register here: YYC

Discounted room rates are available at the Best Western Premier Calgary Plaza Hotel from $125 for

double occupancy, only available until January 10, 2022.
Call 1.403.248.8888 and quote Brownlee LLP-MAIN or click here to book.

Emerging Trends in Municipal Law - Edmonton
Date: Thursday, February 17, 2022

Time: 8:30 am — 3:30 pm reception to follow
Location: Edmonton Expo Centre

Address: 7515 - 118 Ave. NW, Edmonton

~* Register Here: YEG

Discounted room rates are available at the Sutton Place Hotel from $129 a night. Only available until
January 28, 2022. Call 1.800.SANDMAN and quote BROWNLEE2022 or click here to book.

If you have any questions please contact, Prescilla Thompson by email:
pthompson@brownieelaw.com

Event is by invitation only.
We hope you can join us!

Brownlee LLP

PRESCILLA THOMPSON | MARKETING ASSISTANT | BROWNLEE LLP

PRONOUNS: SHE/HER/HERS

MARKETING

m. 780-497-4800 | d. 780-970-5739 | f. 780-424-3254 | pthompson@brownleelaw.com
2200 COMMERCE PLACE | 10155 - 102 STREET | EDMONTON, AB T5] 4G8

Toll-Free. 800-661-9069 | www.brownleelaw.com

7o help limit the spread of the COVID-19, the Brownlee LLP Edmonton and Calgary offices are closed to the public. Email, telephone,

. and video conferencing, including Zoom and Skype are the primary channels of communication for our clients with their lawyer
instead of in-person meetings. Please refer to our COVID-19 resource page that features articles written by our lawyers that examine
how COVID-19 js affecting different industries and municipalities.



1/13/22, 8:53 AM Emerging Trends in Municipal Law - Edmonton - Brownlee LLP

I BROWNLEE LLP p =
Barristers & Solicitors -

« All Events

Emerging Trends in Municipal Law -
Edmonton

February 17

« Emerging Trends in Municipal Law -

Calgary

A Legal Educational Seminar for Municipal Elected Officials & Employees of Municipalities
Only.

Learn from the experienced Municipal Team at Brownlee.

Legal Topics Will Include: employment taw in the time of COVID, privacy and freedom of
information issues, how to manage legal matters, municipal tax powers, conflicting fiduciary
obligations, case and legislative updates, and a Q&A bear pit session where our lawyers will

answer your questions.

Date: Thursday, February 17, 2022
Time: 8:30am - 3:30pm reception to follow

Location: In-person and virtual options available

$185 + GST In-person Registration
$85 + GST Virtual Registration

https://brownleelaw.com/event/emerging-trends-in-municipal-law-3/ 13



113/22, 8:53 AM Emerging Trends in Municipal Law - Edmonton - Brownlee LLP

Discounted room rates are available at the Sutton Place Hotel from $129 a night. Only

available until January 28, 2022.
Call 1.800.SANDMAN and quote BROWNLEE2022 or click here to book via email.

*Emerging Trends is proud to be going green! We recommend you use the conference
materials which will be available online closer to the date. Please note, we will not have any

printed materials on-site.

Event is by invitation only.

+ GOOGLE CALENDAR + |CAL EXPORT

Details Organizer
Date: Brownlee LLP
February 17

Phone:

780-970-5739

Email:

pthompson@brownleelaw.com

« Emerging Trends in Municipal Law -
(Calgary

UPCOMING EVENTS
Emerging Trends in Municipal Law - Calgary

February 10

Emerging Trends in Municipal Law - Edmonton

February 17

View All Events

https://brownleelaw.com/event/emerging-trends-in-municipal-law-3/

2/3



1/13/22, 8:53 AM Emerging Trends in Municipal Law - Edmonton - Brownlee LLP

FIND A LAWYER
?SEMARCH‘-I;{I‘\}AMEI !”LOC“ATIOI\'I

PRACTICE AREA 1 SUBMIT

TERMS OFUSE  PRIVACY POLICY  LOGIN TO WEBMAIL

¥ in

© 2022 Brownlee LLP

https://brownleelaw.com/event/emerging-trends-in-municipal-law-3/ 313



kg

4
Alberta Beach Village Office
e e —
From: Communities ChooseWell <choosewell@arpaonline.ca>
Sent: January 11, 2022 10:01 AM
To: aboffice@albertabeach.com
Subject: The Chooseletter

communitios The Choosel etter
ciioosewell | January 2022

eat right, be active

A I—

2022

START

What's Happening at Communities ChooseWell

[

Welcome back everyone! We hope that you enjoyed the holidays and wish you all a happy,
and healthy start to 2022!

The Communities ChooseWell team is looking forward to ali the exciting events and
opportunities we're planning for this year. Let's start the new year with:

¢ Intentions and goal setting from Communities ChooseWell
Healthy Community Grants are open- apply today!
Save the Date: 2022 Alberta Healthy Communities Symposium
2021 Award Winner Spotlight




Intentions and Goal Setting:
What to expect in 2022!

Happy New Year! We hope that your holidays were full of good food, big laughs, and cherished
memories with loved ones. Our Communities ChooseWell Team is back in the office, and
looking forward to an amazing 2022. We're working on a lot of exciting projects that we can't
wait to share with you - but in the meantime, here’s a peek at what you can expect to see from

us in 2022:

Hosting another dynamic Alberta Healthy Communities Symposium this Spring —
keep an eye on our website and on your emails for updates in the coming weeks.
Featuring more experts and champions in our Healthy Communities Webinar
Series. Missed the first Healthy Communities Webinar? Click here to check out
the recording

Launching our 2022 Healthy Community Grants — be sure to get your
applications submitted, we can’t wait to hear about all the exciting projects in
your community.

... And much, much more!

Learning & Connecting




Save The Date!
Alberta Healthy
Communities Symposium

Virtual Symposium: March 8 -10, 2022
In-Person Symposium: March 17-19, 2022

Save the Date:
2022 Alberta Healthy Communities Symposium

Mark your calendars for the 2022 Alberta Healthy Communities Symposium which will take
place virtually March 8-10, 2022 and In-Person March 17-19, 2022 in Calgary, AB at the

Grey Eagle Resort & Casino.

We are inviting all Community ChooseWell Champions to join us for the virtual symposium, or
in-person symposium, OR BOTH!

Our theme this year is Communities HEAL Through Connection, with the focus on providing
opportunities to reconnect with yourself, enhance your capacity to connect with others, and
deepen your connection within your community.

This hybrid symposium will begin by introducing the Connection theme through keynote and

breakout sessions and then dive into content rich master classes during the in-person
symposium. You will gain a deeper understanding of the concepts related to healthy eating and

active living and community connection.

Visit our website to learn more and keep your eyes open for registration details in mid January!

Learn More!




ChooseWell Healthy Community Grants
Apply today!

The Healthy Community Grant application period is officially open for 2022! Grants of up to
$5,000 are available for community projects related to an active living and/or healthy eating

project in 2022. The deadline to apply is February 28, 2022. Here is everything you need to get
started:

e Application Guide
e Application Form (includes optional eligibilty quiz)

o Interview Application Form




ChooseWell Evaluation Survey Part 1

Communities ChooseWell is looking for your feedback! We want to know the impact our
program has had, both to improve the program in the future, and to report to our funder,

Alberta Health.

In the past, we have done one long survey each year. This year, we've streamlined the
process, both shortening the process and splitting it up into 3 parts. Parts 2 and 3 will be
sent out in February and March, respectively. Anyone who fills out all 3 parts of the
survey will be entered into a draw for a $100 gift card from a selection of retailers.
Additionally, for each individual part, there will be 3 draws for $25 gift cards from the
same list of retailers.

Take 5-10 minutes and let us know how you feel about the Communities ChooseWell

program. Thanks in advance!
Take the Survey!

Stay active this winter by ...
joining Winter Walk Day G IR Wednesday February 2, 2022

. N
i 3

Winter Walk Day encourages
people across Alberta to be active
outdoors in winter - with more
than 800 organizations and
100,000 Albertans taking part last
year!

Click here below to learn more and
get involved.

Resources




NEW RESOURCE:

Healthy Eating in Community Spaces
eModule |
Bring healthy options into all

recreatopn spaces

New Resource:
Healthy Eating in Community Spaces eModule

Check out the new resource developed by Communities ChooseWell and World Urban Parks
to support healthy options every place where communities recreate!

In this new addition to the Healthy Eating in Recreation Settings eCourse, we cover how you
can bring healthy food and drinks into public and cultural events, parks and open spaces.
Learn from local Albertan and international champions who have successfully implemented

changes.
Start Learning!

\ | |
. , N\, : y
WALKING WITH.INDIGENOUS CONMMUNITIES

Check out ARPA’s Indigenous Oral Knowledge Hub

Over the past year, many of you have reached out to us for resources related to reconciliation.
If your looking to continue your reconciliation journey this new year, we suggest that you take a
look at the ARPA Indigenous Oral Knowledge Hub.




In this Hub, we have gathered all of our resources, alongside some external guest additions, to
share with you. Our huge thanks go to the Elders and to our partners who have shared the gift

of these incredible stories and teachings.

Another friendly reminder to also check out ARPA's newest resource on reconciliation, our
Indigenous Awareness & Engagement Toolkit.

2021 Most Significant Change Award Winners Spotlight
Town of Vulcan

Vulcan has been taking major steps to enhance the options for outdoor recreation in the town
since the pandemic has begun. Last year, they were recognized for working with the local golf
course and library to provide snowshoeing options for the winter, and they are being
recognized again this year for their innovative use of local space to create places where
community members can gather safely. We're excited to recognize them again at our
Symposium in March, but, for now, enjoy their awards video from 2020:

Watch the Video!

AT e e ey ey e

| iy stotss o Ohwossoll Germdiites

et e

SRS FI M SPYRS R —t *ioale 3 e A




Funding

External Funding Opportunities

Looking for funding opportunities? Communities ChooseWell keeps a list of external funding
sources on our website. To add an ongoing opportunity to our list, please contact us at
choosewell@arpaonline.ca.

ARPA would like to acknowledge the First Nations, the Métis, and all of the people
across Alberta who share a history and a deep connection with this land. We dedicate
ourselves to moving forward in partnership with Indigenous communities in the spirit of
reconciliation and collaboration.

Did someone forward you this email?
Join Communities ChooseWell for FREE Here!

You wor't want to miss a2 beat!
Join us on cur social mediz channels:

i .4’«
{ i / - é“’,"“f ;{-f"‘r
i L &4 He
SN

e T

——— | TR AT Y

CON TR CHd ST

i

Looking for updates about the Alberta Recreation and Parks Association?
Find them here!

Communities ChooseWell is a partnership between the Alberta Recreation and Parks Association and the
Government of Alberta Ministry of Health.

communities —

choosewell

—eat right,be active




Alberta Recreation and Parks Association | 11759 Groat Road, Edmonton, Alberta T5M 3K6 Canada

Unsubscribe. aboffice@albertabeach.com

Update Profile | Constant Contact Data Notice

Sent by choosewell@arpaonline.ca powered by

O Constant
Contact

Try email marketing for free today!



13.S

Alberta Beach Village Office

— = === 3§
From: Communities in Bloom <info@cnla-acpp.ccsend.com> on behalf of Communities in
Bloom <communication@cib-cef.com>
Sent: January 12, 2022 8:15 AM
To: aboffice@albertabeach.com
Subject: Scotts Canada 2022 Gro for good grants initiave...apply now!
View as Webpage if images are not [oading properiy
Gro for Good.

Scotts Canada launches
2022 Gro for Good Grants [nitiative

IN SUPPORT OF COMMUNITY GARDENS & GREEN SPACES
ACROSS CANADA

Mississauga, ON (January 12, 2022) — Scotts Canada Limited proudly announces the
2022 edition of the Gro for Good program to keep the spirit of community and



connection to nature alive in Canada. The program provides grants to deserving
communities, schools and non-profit organizations seeking to develop sustainable

community gardens and green spaces.

“Gardening has continued to be a focus for individuals and communities throughout the
pandemic. As we enter into 2022, -which has been proclaimed the Year of the Garden,
Scotts Canada looks forward to providing more opportunities for communities to enjoy
the benefits that gardens and gardening provide.”

Karen Stephenson
‘Director Regulatory Affairs & Stakeholder Relations

Scotts Canada

Scotts Canada is proud to offer another year of Gro for Good grants to support green
space projects and the Year of the Garden initiative, spearheaded by the Canadian
Garden Council. Gardening has been shown to provide multiple benefits, such as,
encouraging healthy eating habits while learning how to grow your own food along
with the health and wellness benefits that come from being outdoors and interacting
with nature and other members of your community. Gardens have also been a
response to food insecurity in many neighbourhoods across Canada.

Scotts Canada is pleased to be offering this exciting grant opportunity to Canadian
communities in partnership with Communities in Bloom, Plant - Grow - Share a

Row and Nutrients for Life.

Gro for Good grants are valued at $2,500 (cash plus in-kind product donation) and will
be awarded to selected projects across Canada based on community impact, youth
involvement and sustainability. The applicants will need to demonstrate one or more
of the following benefits to the community: addressing health and wellness needs,
enhancing the environment and/or engaging with youth. Each recipient of a grant will
also have the opportunity to compete for one additional grant of $2,500 in cash that
will be awarded based on a social media contest hosted by Scotts Canada.

Due to the overwhelming popularity of the program, applications will be accepted
until February 28, 2022, at 11:59 p.m. EST or until the first 300 submissions are
received, whichever comes first. Gro for Good grants will be awarded as a
combination of cash and in-kind product donation. Projects must be completed in
2022.

For further details on the Gro for good program, please visit: groforgood.com
Questions can also be directed to communication@cib-cef.com

B DUTIERAER



FOUNDING SPONSOR OF:
PARTENAIRES FONDATEURS:

Year of the Garden 2 %22
Année du jardin o i b

i PLART-GROV
¢ é’k / SHARE & ROW
o NUTRIENTS % / NUTRIMENTS
campnuntiies 1 Collectivites FOR LIFE %] POUR LA VIE o
inBloom -§ en fleurs o UN BANG POUR
. CEUX 0¥1 DHT FAIA

Communities in Bloom - Collectivites en fleurs | 7856 Fifth Line South, Milton, ON L9T 2X8 Canada

Unsubscribe aboffice@albertabeach.com

Update Profile | Constant Contact Data Notice

Sent by communication@cib-cef.com powered by

O . Constant
Contact

Try email marketing for free today!



13,17

Alberta Beach Villaﬁe Office

Y

From: lan Butler <dssye@albertacf.com>
Sent: January 10, 2022 11:03 AM
Subject: Digital Economy Program

Hello Community Stakeholders and Partners,

My name is lan Butler, and | am reaching out to you today to introduce myself on behalf of Community
Futures Yellowhead East, as | am the new Digital Economy Specialist, filling the role of Digital Service Squad
(DSS) Member working within the Yellowhead East Region.

As you are aware, the DSS Member position is a grant position provided by the Government of Alberta in
partnership with Business Link and Digital Main Street to help our local small businesses start or grow their
digital presence in this difficult and changing environment through the Digital Economy Program (DEP).

My role as a DSS Member is to provide free one-on-one support to our local small business owners by
providing guidance on using digital tools and technologies to become a more successful business, by
increasing their online presence. The free one-on-one sessions with the owner can be done either digitally or
in-person depending on what the business owner prefers due to public health restrictions and what is more
comfortable for the owner. Examples of what | will be helping business owners with include but are not
limited to; creating/optimizing social media accounts & Google My Business listings, ensuring best Search
Engine Optimization practices are being applied, as well as teaching how to run ads via Instagram, Facebook

and/or Google Ads.

The DEP is completely free for all local small business owners that fall into the requirements listed by the
program. All costs are covered by the Alberta Government, Business Link and Digital Main Street. The only
costs any business may incur is if they choose to use a recommended service during the consultation, e.g.,
purchasing a program or choosing to run an Ad Campaign, but the assistance to get these programs set up
and running is provided as a free service.

As a community sponsor of the project, | would like to ask if you could provide me with a list of any small
businesses within your area, that you feel could benefit from the Free Digital Economy Services and Resources
that are available. Please feel free to forward those names and contact information directly to me, so that |
may in turn reach out directly to those businesses to provide them with more information about the program.
| can be reached at dssye@albertacf.com or businesses can automatically register for the onboarding process

at https://dep.businesslink.ca/#check-my-eligibility-form.

The website also contains all information regarding the requirements in order to be eligible to apply for the
program. If the business does fall into the criteria, they can then fill out the application at the end of the form

and will be contacted afterwards.

I appreciate your support on sharing the word about this valuable program as | am confident it will prove to
be a useful service to all small businesses in our community.

Happy New Year Stakeholders and Community Partners,

1



lan Buder | Digital Squad Service Member

Cemmunity Futures Yellowhead East
Unit #1, 5023 50 Avenue [Box 2185] Whitecourt AB | 780 706 3500 | 1 877 706 3500 |



aboffice@albertabeach.com

From: FCM Communiqué <communique@fcm.ca>

Sent: January 10, 2022 12:53 PM

To: aboffice@albertabeach.com

Subject: FCM Voice: Climate leadership course | Annual Conference: Save the date | Scholarship

application deadline | more

View email in browser

FCM NEWS | January 10, 2022 ¥ f in O ¢

e e e e —

e VOICE

Canada’s volce of locat government

Apply now: Climate leadership course for elected
officials



Are you an elected official looking to advance your climate change knowledge and skills? We
want to help you continue to develop as a climate leader. Apply to participate in our free online
Climate leadership course for elected officials in one of the following three specializations:-

o Municipal roles, pathways, governance, and strategies to achieve net zero greenhouse
gas emissions

o Building the case for integrated climate action

e Moving from planning to implementation

This course starts in Februéry 2022 and you are invited to select your specialization based on
your municipality’s stage of climate action. You'll hear from experts, discover lessons learned
and find out which tools can help you achieve your community’s sustainability objectives.

» LEARN MORE AND APPLY BY JANUARY 26

Upcoming deadline for scholarship applications

FCM offers a total of seven scholarships for young women in high school, CEGEP, university
and college. They are awarded to students who are active in their school’s community and
interested in the role of women in elected politics. This initiative supports FCM’s objective of
reaching gender parity in municipal councils across Canada. Please share this great opportunity
in your networks. The deadline for applications is January 21, 2022.

» LEARN MORE

What FCM has achieved for its members

Through unprecedented influence and access to key decision-makers in every federal party,
FCM is securing historic progress for municipalities of all sizes—from $4.3 billion in federal
emergency operating support through the Safe Restart Agreement to landmark new investments
in infrastructure, affordable housing, transit and rural transportation, universal broadband,
climate adaptation, and more. We're also elevating the role of local governments—from a
strengthened seat at the federal table to more direct tools that empower local leaders to build
better lives.

» LEARN MORE ABOUT WHAT FCM HAS ACHIEVED FOR {TS MEMBERS

_ EVENTS




o

Sneak peek at FCM’s municipal stream for the GLOBE Forum

FCM will present Local Solutions to Net-Zero, a special municipal stream at GLOBE Forum

2022-North America’s longest-running sustainable innovation summit. Our four sessions and
one panel will showcase municipal innovation at its best, featuring topics ranging from building
retrofits, zero-emission vehicles, community-scale energy, land-use and housing development,

and outcomes-based procurement. Take a look at our website now to learn more about our
session details. Register today for FCM's special municipal stream and receive a discounted

rate.

» LEARN MORE AND REGISTER

FCM’s 2022 annual conference: Save the date

Your favourite FCM event is back, in a unique hybrid format! Join us June 2-5 for FCM's 2022
Annual Conference and Trade Show—in beautiful Regina, or online from anywhere. Prepare to
be wowed by our fantastic program, enriching networking activities and exclusive online content
access. Registration will open in a few weeks, so stay tuned for that. For now, be sure to save
the date, because this is one event you won’t want to miss.

FCWs GMF Annual Report success story: Kootenays, BC

Transportation accounts for 61% of GHG emissions in the Kootenays. That's why local leaders
saw opportunity in a network of electric vehicle (EV) charging stations to reduce greenhouse gas
emissions and boost the use of EVs and EV tourism.

Working with GMF, the region built 13 direct current fast charging stations and 40 Level 2
stations. By 2030 the project is expected to save 11 million litres of gasoline annually.

» WATCH THE VIDEO CLIP TO LEARN MORE

Jan 10: Are you a
#CDNmuni elected official
looking to expand your
#ClimateChange

knowledge and skills? We
want to help you develop
as a climate leader. Learn
about our new, free course
and apply by January 26 to
participate:
https:/bit.ly/3teoHOv

Jan 5: Do you know a
young woman who has
demonstrated commitment
to her studies and the
political life of her
community? The
application period for
FCM'’s scholarships closes
on January 21. Tell
someone about it today!
https://bit.ly/3g5zM2p

Jan 6: FCM drove
landmark new investments
in public transit & rural
trans—incl a new
permanent transit fund that
will create jobs, support
economic growth, shorten
commutes & get Canada
closer to net-zero
emissions. FCM unites &



FEDERATION FEDERATION
| OF CANADIAN CANADIENNE DES
MUNICIPALITIES MUNICIPALITES

24 Clarence Street
Ottawa, Ontario K1N 5P3

T.613-241-5221 | F. 613-241-7440
fcm.ca

¥ f in O ¢

© 2022 Federation of Canadian Municipalities

Manage your preferences | Opt Out using TrueRemove™
View this email online.

This email was sent to aboffice@albertabeach.com.

To continue receiving our emails, add us to your address book.

empowers #CDNmuni. Join

today: fcm.ca/membership

Privacy Policy
View email in your browser

P

SR = ]



| 3. v

-

Alberta Beach Village Office

Nixon, Kelsey <kelsey.nixon@fortisalberta.com> on behalf of Stakeholder Relations

From:

Team <stakeholderrelations@fortisalberta.com>
Sent: December 23, 2021 3:02 PM
Cc: Smith, Nicole; Hunka, Dave
Subject: RE: Approved FortisAlberta 2022 Distribution Rates
Attachments: 2022 FortisAlberta Approved Rates - Muni Final.pdf

Good afternoon,
Attached please find a copy of the Approved FortisAlberta 2022 Distribution Rates letter.

Please feel free to contact your Stakeholder Relations Manager should you have any additional questions or require
additional information.

Thank you,

Kelsey

Kelsey Nixon ; Stakeholder Relations Advisor, Key Accounts
FortisAlberta | 100 Chippewa Road, Sherwood Park, T8A 4H4 | p: 780-464-8859 | c: 587-591-4716

FORTIS
ALBERTA

We are FortisAlberta. We deliver the electricity that empowers Albertans to succeed. We keep the power
on, not just because it's our job, but because we care about the people we serve. We are reliable, honest
and dedicated to our work because our employees, customers and communities matter to us.




FORTIS

ALBERTA

December 23, 2022

RE: Approved FortisAlberta 2022 Distribution Rates

As a follow up to our correspondence in September 2021, FortisAlberta has received approval from the
Alberta Utilities Commission (AUC) for its distribution rates, effective January 1, 2022. In addition, the
AUC has approved the Alberta Electric System Operator (AESO) 2022 tariff resulting in adjustments to
the Base Transmission Adjustment Rider, the Quarterly Transmission Adjustment Rider and Balancing
Pool Allocation. FortisAlberta collects and flows through all transmission and Balancing Pool costs billed

by the Alberta Electric System Operator (AESO) as approved by the AUC.

The attached charts illustrate the estimated percentages and average changes for each rate class based
on estimated consumption and demand between December 2021 and January 2022 on a distribution
rate only basis and a bundied bill basis from your retailer. The bundled bill percentages indicated on the
attached chart will vary slightly compared to the version you received in September, as it reflects the
transmission rate rider adjustments. Additionally, in January most quotation packages will now
breakdown project costs into three categories which are Construction (Labour, Equipment & Services),

Materials and Engineering (Project Management & Administrative).

We thank you for the opportunity to advise you of these updates. Please feel free to contact me or your

Stakeholder Relations Manager should you have any questions or require further information.

Sincerely,

- . P4
| Z.o / ";.«-'""
A8 _"g_‘[;uj Wiks ”""ﬁ

Dave Hunka

Manager, Municipalities

P: (780) 464-8311

C: (780) 868-7040

E: Dave.Hunka@FortisAlberta.com



2022 Approved Rates
Average Monthly Bill Impacts by Rate Class

DISTRIBUTION ONLY
Rate Class Consumption Demand %
Rate Description Usage Usage Dec 2021 Bill | Jan 2022 bill | § Difference | Change
300 kWh $32.15 $34.23 $2.08 6.5%
11| Residential 640 kWh $40.07 $43.61 $3.54 8.8%
1200 kWh $53.12 $59.07 $5.95 11.2%
900 kWh 5kVA $85.06 $84.09 -$0.97 -1.1%
Farm
21 | Breaker Billed) 1,400 kWh 10kVA $155.79 $163.10 $7.31 4.7%
7.500 KkWh 25 kVA $368.00 $467.62 $99.62 27.1%
700 kWh 10 kVA $155.79 $175.92 $20.13 12.9%
Farm $297.26 $334.24 $36.98 12.4%
22| e 4 Metered) | :000 KWh 20 kVA
15,000 kWh 60 KVA $863.13 $960.27 $97.14 11.3%
6,000 kWh 20 kW $788.22 $955.87 $167.65 21.3%
26 | FortisAlberta | 1) 510y un 33kW $1,338.94 $1,569.54 $230.60 17.2%
Irrigation
e -
*Seasonal bill 45,000 kWh 100 kW $4,053.98 $4,732.32 $678.34 16.7%
impact
Streetlighting
31 5,144 kWh 12,500 W | $2,327.79 $2,454.03 $126.24 5.4%
(Investment)
38 | Yard Lighting | 5,000 kWh 12.000 W _ | $1.462.13 $1,540.42 $78.29 5.4%
Rates 31 and 38 are based on 100 HPS Lights in assorted fixture wattages.
1,083 kWh S5KW $73.59 $81.57 $7.98 10.8%
41 g:‘:‘iife“""' 2,165 kWh 10 kW $130.52 $135.17 $4.65 3.6%
10,825 kWh 50 kW $585.96 $563.97 -$21.99 -3.8%
2,590 kWh | 75kwW $180.51 $190.07 $9.56 5.3%
44/45 ge'::i'c'g s 5,179 kWh 15 kW $336.72 $362.28 $25.56 7.6%
25.895 kWh 75 kW $1.517.52 $1.739.98 $222.46 14.7%
32,137 kWh 100 kW $589.40 $512.25 -$77.15 -13.1%
61 | General Service | 63,071 kWh 196 kW $940.88 $971.97 $31.09 3.3%
482,055 kWh 1500kW | $4.840.13 $7,198.73 $2.358.60 | 48.7%
824,585 kWh 2500 kW | $9,525.10 $8,843.73 -$681.37 7.2%
63 ;‘::fi‘;fe“““' 1,529,869 kWh | 4638 kW | $11,081.29 $9,659.21 $1,422.08 | -12.8%
3,298,338 kWh | 10,000 kW | $14,984.13 $11,704.42 $3,279.71 | -21.9%
65 gzz‘::::::;wn The Distribution component will increase from $39.17/day to $44.39/per day.

Service

The Transmission Component is the applicable rate of the AESO.




2022 Approved Rates
Average Monthly Bill Impacts by Rate Class
BUNDLED BILL Including Energy, Retail, and DT Rates & Riders

%

Rate Class Consumption Demand
Rate Description Usage Usage Dec 2021 Bili | Jan 2022 bill | $ Difference Change
300 kWh $84.56 $87.16 $2.60 3.1%
11 Residential 640 kWh $142.55 $147.11 $4.56 3.2%
1200 kWh $238.03 $245.89 $7.86 3.3%
900 kWh 5kVA $120.10 $119.66 -$0.44 -0.4%
Farm
21 (Breaker Billed) 1,400 kWh 10 kVA $365.92 $376.95 $11.03 3.0%
7.500 kWh 25 kVA $1.468.04 $1,587.70 $119.66 8.2%
700 kWh 10 kVA $264.07 $286.10 $22.03 8.3%
Farm
22 (Demand Metered) 3,000 kWh 20kVA $741.46 $786.50 $45.04 6.1%
15,000 kWh 60 kVA $3.059.59 $3,196.84 $137.25 4.5%
6.000 kWh 20 kW $1,885.54 $1,998.02 $112.48 6.0%
26 FortisAlberta
Irrigation 14,518 kWh 33 kW $4.036.60 $4.128.10 $91.50 2.3%
*Seasonal bill
impact 45.000 kWh 100 kW $12.091.65 $12,352.68 $260.96 2.2%
31 Streetlighting
(Investment) 5,144 kWh 12,500 W | $3,143.78 $3,248.47 $104.69 3.3%
38 Yard Lighting 5,000 kWh 12,000 W | $2.071.40 $2.122.97 $51.57 2.5%
Rates 31 and 38 are based on 100 HPS Lights in assorted fixture wattages.
1,083 kWh 5kW $247.45 $260.36 $13.91 5.6%
4 Small General
Service 2,165 kWh 10 kW $468.02 $483.76 $15.74 3.4%
10.825 kWh 50 kW $2,240.67 $2,271.04 $30.37 1.4%
2,590 kWh 7.5 kW $541.13 $552.45 $11.31 2.1%
44/45 Oil and Gas
Service 5,179 kWh 15 kW $1,046.48 $1.075.60 $29.12 2.8%
25,895 kWh 75 kW $5,019.69 $5.260.75 $241.06 4.8%
32.137 kWh 100 kW $5.265.59 $5,379.66 $114.06 2.2%
61 General Service | 63,071 kWh 196 kW $9,964.94 $10,378.19 $413.26 4.1%
482,055 kWh 1500 kW $73,723.22 $79,082.84 $5,359.63 7.3%
824.585 kWh 2500 kW $123.198.90 $126,649.57 $3.450.67 2.8%
63 | LarseGeneral | 530869 kWh | 4638kW | 521421076 | $220451.82 | $6.241.07 | 2.9%
3,298,338 kWh 10.000 kW | $452,804.15 $466,043.40 $13,239.25 2.9%
6 (Tj; ‘:l'l‘fe‘:’t':;“’“ The Distribution component will increase from $39.17/day to $44.3%/per day.
Servi The Transmission Component is the applicable rate of the AESO.
ervice
Riders Included: Retail/Energy Price Assumptions

Municipal Franchise Fee

Municipal assessment Rider (0.73% on July 1, 2021)
2021 Base TAR & 2022 Base TAR

2021 Q4 QTAR and 2022 Q1 QTAR

2021 BPAR and 2022 BPAR
Utility Deferral Adjustment Rider

Rates 11 through 44 — Jan 2021 to Dec 2021
Average EEAI RRT Rates

Rates 61 and 63 — November 2020 to October 2021
Average EPCOR Default Supply Rate




CUSTOMER CONTRIBUTIONS SCHEDULES **

Table 1
Maximum Investment Levels for Distribution Facilities
When the Investment Term is 15 years or more

Type of Service

Maximum Investment Level

Rate 11 Residential

$2,677 per service

Rate 11 Residential Development

$2,677 per service, less FortisAlberta’s costs of
metering and final connection

Rate 21 Farm and Rate 23 Grain Drying

$6,072 base investment, plus

$869 per kVA of Peak Demand
Rate 26 Irrigation $6,072 base investment, plus

$966 per kW of Peak Demand
Rate 38 Yard Lighting $864 per fixture

Rate 31 Streetlighting (Investment Option)

$3,125 per fixture

Rate 41 Small General Service

$6,072 base investment, plus
$966 per kW of Peak Demand

Rate 45 Qil and Gas Service

$6,072 base investment, plus
$966 per kW of Peak Demand

FortisAlberta invests as required per unmetered
to metered service conversion program.

Rate 61 General Service (less than or equal to 2
MW)

$6,072 base investment, plus
$966 per kW for the first 150 kW, plus
$121 for additional kW of Peak Demand

Rate 63 Large General Service (over 2 MW)
(Distribution Connected)

$109 per kW of Peak Demand, plus

$120 per metre of Customer Extension

** Alberta Utilities Commission (AUC) Decision 26817-D01-2021, Dec. 15, 2021.
Maximum Investment Levels are reduced if the expected Investment Term is less than 15 years.




(3, w

aboffice@albertabeach.com

From:
Sent:
To:

Bonnie Kawasaki <bonnie.kawasaki@crowsnestpass.com>

January 7, 2022 4:36 PM-

city.manager@airdrie.ca; administrator@beaumont.ab.ca; apeterson@brooks.ca;
311contactus@calgary.ca; admin@camrose.ca; info@chestermere.ca; City; 311
@edmonton.ca; info@fortsask.ca; CAO@cityofgp.com; mail@lacombe.ca;
info@leduc.ca; info@lloydminster.ca; mayor@medicinehat.ca;
legislativeservices@reddeer.ca; info@sprucegrove.org; information@stalbert.ca;
reception@wetaskiwin.ca; info@town jasper.ab.ca; main.office@laclabichecounty.com;
office@mackenziecounty.com; info@strathcona.ca; Mayor@rmwb.ca; md34
@mdacadia.ab.ca; info@athabascacounty.com; info@countybarrhead.ab.ca;
administration@beaver.ab.ca; biglakes@biglakescounty.ca; bighorn@mdbighorn.ca;
cao@birchhillscounty.com; info@md.bonnyville.ab.ca; bguyon@brazeau.ab.ca;
county@county.camrose.ab.ca; office@cardstoncounty.com;
info@clearhillscounty.ab.ca; corporateservices@clearwatercounty.ca;
cypress@cypress.ab.ca; mdinfo@mdfairview.ab.ca; county@flagstaff.ab.ca;
Ryan.Payne@FoothillsCountyAB.ca; info@fortymile.ab.ca; info@countygp.ab.ca;
Stacey.Wabick@mdgreenview.ab.ca; office@kneehillcounty.com; lsac@Isac.ca;
info@lacombecounty.com; info@lamontcounty.ca; duanec@leduc-county.com;
info@mdlsr.ca; mailbox@lethcounty.ca; info@minburncounty.ab.ca;
info@mvcounty.com; administration@newellmail.ca;
countyofnorthernlights@countyofnorthernlights.com; general@northernsunrise.net;
info@mdopportunity.ab.ca; msimpson@countypaintearth.ca;
inquiries@parklandcounty.com; info@mdpeace.com; info@mdpinchercreek.ab.ca;
ponokacounty@ponokacounty.com; mdprovost@mdprovost.ca;
admin@ranchland66.com; info@rdcounty.ca; questions@rockyview.ca;
admin@saddlehills.ab.ca; county@smokylakecounty.ab.ca; admin@mdsmokyriver.com;
mdsr133@mdspiritriver.ab.ca; countysp@county.stpaul.ab.ca; info@starlandcounty.com;
info@stettlercounty.ca; sturgeonmail@sturgeoncounty.ca; admin@mdtaber.ab.ca;
cao@thorhildcounty.com; sdary@thcounty.ab.ca; county24@telusplanet.net;
reception@vulcancounty.ab.ca; info@mdwainwright.ca; admin@warnercounty.ca;
info@westlockcounty.com; jbishop@county10.ca; admin@wheatlandcounty.ca; md26
@mdwillowcreek.com; gordon.frank@woodlands.ab.ca; info@yellowheadcounty.ab.ca;
town@athabasca.ca; comments@banff.ca; town@barrhead.ca;
admin@townofbashaw.com; town@bassano.ca; town@beaverlodge.ca;
info@townofbentley.ca; info@town.blackdiamond.ab.ca; info@blackfalds.com;
info@bonaccord.ca; admin@town.bonnyville.ab.ca; dave@bowisland.com;
info@bowden.ca; info@bruderheim.ca; info@calmar.ca; communications@canmore.ca;
info@cardston.ca; carlm@carstairs.ca; christopher@townofcastor.ca;
info@claresholm.ca; admin@coaldale.ca; main@coalhurst.ca; cochrane@cochrane.ca;
admin@town.coronation.ab.ca; town@crossfieldalberta.com; info@daysland.ca;
information@devon.ca; inquiries@didsbury.ca; info@draytonvalley.ca;
cao@drumheller.ca; info@eckville.com; civiccentre@edson.ca; town@elkpoint.ca;
reception@fairview.ca; admin@falher.ca; admin@fortmacleod.com;
communications@foxcreek.ca; gov@gibbons.ca; cao@grimshaw.ca; admin@hanna.ca;
town.office@hardisty.ca; town@highlevel.ca; reception@highprairie.ca;
legislativeservices@highriver.ca; eolsen@hinton.ca; reception@innisfail.ca;
irricana@irricana.com; tkillam@telusplanet.net; dawn.n@lamont.ca; main@legal.ca;
james@magrath.ca; info@manning.ca; admin@mayerthorpe.ca; cao@mclennan.ca;
main@milkriver.ca; millet@millet.ca; info@morinville.ca; info@mundare.ca;
cao@nanton.ca; admin@nobleford.ca; communications@okotoks.ca; admin@olds.ca;

1



To: administration@wildwillowenterprises.com; info@sylvansummervillages.ca;
info@sundancebeach.ca; svsunrisebeach@wildwillowenterprises.com;
bancroftkim@hotmail.com; office@sunsetpoint.ca; d.evans@xplornet.com;
admin@waiparous.ca; viviandriver@mcsnet.ca; svwestcove@outlook.com;
bancroftkim@hotmail.com; townoffice@stettler.net;
administration@wildwillowenterprises.com; mayor@lethbridge.ca

Subject: Re: Streamlining Foreign Physician and Nurse Assessments

Attachments: College of Physicians and Surgeons of Alberta - LOS City of Cold Lake - January 7,
2022.pdf; College & Association of Registered Nurses of Alberta - LOS to Fast Track

Immigrant Nurses - January 7, 2022.pdf

Good Afternoon,

Please find attached copies of correspondence from Mayor Blair Painter of the Municipality of Crowsnest Pass to be
shared with your Councils in hopes they too will extend their support to Streamlining Foreign Physician and Nurse

Assessments in Alberta.

Thank you for your kind consideration.

Respectfully,

OWSN EST PASS
](g {f/:"ih{é{/’ /{ “’mﬂ;ﬂ/ﬁy

Bonnie Kawasaki

Executive Assistant

Office of the Chief Administrative Officer
Office of Mayor and Council

Municipality of Crowsnest Pass

P.0. Box 600 | Crowsnest Pass, Alberta | TOK OEO
P 403 563-2204 F 403 563-5474

E bonnie.kawasaki@crowsnestpass.com




CR WSNESTP S
TH sy

January 7, 2022

Via Email: registrar@cpsa.ab.ca

College of Physicians and Surgeons of Alberta
2700, 10020 100 Street NW
Edmonton, AB T5J ON3

Attention: Dr. Scott McLeod, Registrar

Dear Dr. Mcleod:

Re: Letter of Support for City of Cold Lake and Streamlining Foreign Physician Assessments

The Municipality of Crowsnest Pass Council fully supports the request by the City of Cold Lake
to have the College of Physicians and Surgeons of Alberta consider streamlining the assessment
process for physicians from outside of Canada but wish to extend this consideration be given to
facilitate integration for those doctors in all communities in Alberta currently facing physician

shortages.

Our current health crisis has clearly demonstrated the need for additional doctors to support
and enhance caregivers that are overworked and stretched to capacity when there are many
immigrant physicians sitting on the sidelines forced to work in underemployed positions to

make ends meet.

We recognize that it is a great responsibility to ensure that foreign educated doctors are
qualified to Canadian standards, but it appears that the current process is too cumbersome and
that as a country we are losing out on this virtually untapped pool of skilled medical

professionals.

We thank you for your kind consideration and hope that we can all work together to find a
solution to this problem, or at the very least to make improvements to the current
accreditation process by removing the significant barriers to becoming certified in our province.

P.O. BOX 600 CROWSNEST PASS, ALBERTA TOK OEO p 403 562-8833 f 403-563-5474 crowsnestpass.com



Sincerely,

[t iz
Mayor Blair Painter
Municipality of Crowsnest Pass

403-563-0700
blair.painter@crowsnestpass.com

cc: The Honorable Jason Copping, Minister of Health
Alberta Municipalities
Rural Municipalities Association

P.O. BOX 600 CROWSNEST PASS, ALBERTA TOK OEO p 403 562-8833 f 403-563-5474 crowsnestpass.com



CR WSNEST PASS
¢/ , 7
Wty

January 7, 2022

Via Email: carna@nurses.ab.ca

College & Association of Registered Nurses of Alberta
11120 178 Street
Edmonton, AB T5S 1P2

Dear Council:

Re: Letter of Support for Fast Tracking Immigrant Nurses for Certification in Alberta

The Municipality of Crowsnest Pass Council respectfully requests that the College & Association
of Registered Nurses of Alberta consider fast tracking immigrant nurses to qualify to work in
Alberta in all communities currently facing nursing shortages.

Our current health crisis has clearly demonstrated the need for additional nurses to support
and enhance our current caregivers that are overworked and stretched to capacity when there
are many immigrant nurses sitting on the sidelines forced to work in underemployed positions

to make ends meet.

We recognize that it is a great responsibility to ensure that foreign educated nurses are
qualified to Canadian standards, but it appears that the current process is too cumbersome and
that as a country we are losing out on this virtually untapped pool of skilled medical
professionals.

We thank you for your kind consideration and hope that we can all work together to find a
solution to this problem, or at the very least to make improvements to the current
accreditation process.

P.0. BOX 600 CROWSNEST PASS, ALBERTA TOK OEQ p 403 562-8833 f 403-563-5474 crowsnestpass.com



Sincerely,

Sl fnZ
Mayor Blair Painter
Municipality of Crowsnest Pass

403-563-0700
blair.painter@crowsnestpass.com

cc: The Honorable Jason Copping, Minister of Health
Alberta Municipalities
Rural Municipalities Association

P.0. BOX 600 CROWSNEST PASS, ALBERTA TOK OEO p 403 562-8833 f 403-563-5474 crowsnestpass.com



| A, X

Alberta B:ach Village Office Ll Coonad:
&
From: Colin Buschman <cbuschman@npf-fpn.com>
Sent: January 4, 2022 10:49 AM
To: aboffice@albertabeach.com
Subject: REMINDER: KeepAlbertaRCMP Community Engagement Tour on the Proposed APPS
*REMINDER*

Dear Mayor Love and Alberta Beach Council,

I am reaching out to you to invite you to our upcoming Community Engagement Tour regarding the recently released
PricewaterhouseCoopers (PwC) APPS Transition Study and what this may mean for you and your community.

While the Government of Alberta (GoA) states that the report “found the concept was realistic, cost-effective and worth
further study” as well as puts “more frontline personnel in communities across Alberta at equal or lower cost”, we have
found the GoA Report to be overlooking and omitting vital details which will have a tremendous impact on

municipalities across Alberta.
As Premier Jason Kenney continues his push for a police transition Albertans don’t want, the NPF is travelling the

Province to discuss these issues directly with Mayors, Councillors, stakeholders, and all Albertans. We hope you will be
able to join us to share your unique perspectives, thoughts, and concerns. We look forward to having this conversation

with you and your community.
The KeepAlbertaRCMP Community Engagement Tour will be open to the public, please forward this message on to
those who may be interested in attending. Due to COVID-19 regulations, all venues are participating in the Restrictions

Exemption Program and as such, all participants must comply with those restrictions including the wearing of masks. As
well, we ask all participants to RSVP to ensure we stay within capacity limits and so that we can contact you should any

details change.

If you have any questions-or comments, please don’t hesitate to contact Colin Buschman, Western Government
Relations Advisor, at CBuschman@NPF-FPN.com.

Upcoming meetings in your area:

Sherwood Park

January 6, 2022
10:00am

Fort Saskatchewan
January 6, 2022
2:00pm

St. Albert

January 7, 2022
10:00am

Stony Plain
January 7, 2022
2:00pm



Westiock
January 10,2022
10:00am

r's

Athabasca
January 10, 2022

3:00pm

Fort McMurray
January 11, 2022

10:00am

Regards,

Colin Buschman
Western Government Relations Advisor | Conseiller, Relations Gouvernementales de I'ouest

National Police Federation | Fédération de la Police Nationale

(236) 233-8100
https://npf-fpn.com

NATIONAL FEDERATION & ©NPFFPN @ nationalpolicefederation

FEI;JE?!%TION agll’l%NAlf_'gc o (G NPF_FPN @ National Police Federation
T T e e

The mission of the National Police Federanan is to provnde strong, professional, fair and progressive representation to promote and enhance the rights of RCMP members.La mission de la Fédération de la
police nationale est de fournir une repr fort i le, juste et progressive afin de pramouvoir et faire avancer les droits des membres de la GRC.

This email may contain PRIVILEGED AND/OR CONF|DEN11AL INFORMATION intended only for the use of the addressee. If you are not the addressee or the person responsible for delivering it to the person to
whom it was addressed, you may not copy or deliver this to anyone else. If you receive this email by mistake, please immediately notify us.

-

Ce courriel peut contenir des informations CONFIDENTIELLES ET/QU PRIVILEGIEES excluslvement restreintes 3 lusage du/de la destinataire. Si vous n'étes ni le/la destinataire, ni la personne responsable pour
1a livraison au/a ta destinataire, il ne vous est pas permis de copier ou d'acherminer ceci 3 toute autre personne. Si vous avez regu ce courriel par erreur, nous vous serions reconnaissants de bien vouleir nous

faire part par téléphone ou courriel i




abofficé@albertabeach.com

%

From:
Sent:
To:

Jeff Edwards <jedwards@tofieldalberta.ca>

January 12, 2022 10:39 AM

311@edmonton.ca; 311contactus@calgary.ca; aboffice@albertabeach.com;
admin@boylealberta.com; admin@breton.ca; admin@camrose.ca; admin@clive.ca;
admin@coaldale.ca; admin@falher.ca; admin@fortmacleod.com; admin@ghostlake.ca;
admin@hanna.ca; admin@innisfree.ca; admin@mayerthorpe.ca; admin@myrnam.ca;
admin@nobleford.ca; admin@olds.ca; admin@parklandbeachsv.ca;
admin@rainbowlake.ca; admin@summervillageofgulllake.com;
admin@town.bonnyville.ab.ca; admin@town.coronation.ab.ca;
admin@townofbashaw.com; admin@townofvulcan.ca; admin@turnervalley.ca;
admin@villageofcarma.ca; admin@villageofclyde.ca; admin@villageofglendon.ca;
admin@villageofmilo.ca; admin@waiparous.ca; admin@warner.ca; admin@wembley.ca;
administration@villageofduchess.com; administration@villageofheisler.ca;
administration@whitecourt.ca; administration@wildwillowenterprises.com;
amiskvil@telusplanet.net; andrew@mcsnet.ca; apeterson@brooks.ca;
bancroftkim@hotmail.com; barnwell@barnwell.ca; barons@xplornet.com;
beiseker@beiseker.com; burnstick8 @gmail.com; busselman.czar@mcsnet.ca;
cao.arrowwood@gmail.com; cao@bawlf.com; cao@betulabeach.ca;
CAO@cityofgp.com; cao@delia.ca; cao@donnelly.ca; cao@drumbheller.ca;
cao@grimshaw.ca; cao@hinescreek.com; cao@hythe.ca; cao@itaska.ca;
cao@lakeview.ca; cao@linden.ca; cao@mclennan.ca; cao@nampa.ca; cao@nanton.ca;
cao@rosshaven.ca; cao@sedgewick.ca; cao@svnakamun.com; cao@town.vauxhall.ab.ca;
cao@townofprovost.ca; cao@village.donalda.ab.ca; cao@village longview.ab.ca;
cao@villageofalix.ca; cao@villageofalliance.ca; cao@villageofbitternlake.ca;
cao@villageofcarbon.com; cao@villageofchampion.ca; cao@villageofstandard.ca;
carlm@carstairs.ca; carrie.kinahan@glenwood.ca; chipmanab@mcsnet.ca;
christine.b@lamont.ca; christopher@townofcastor.ca; city.manager@airdrie.ca;
city@coldlake.com; civiccentre@edson.ca; clerk@acme.ca; clerk@berwyn.ca;
clerk@townofspiritriver.ca; cochrane@cochrane.ca; comments@banff.ca;
communications@foxcreek.ca; communications@okotoks.ca; contact@raymond.ca;
d.evans@xplornet.com; dave@bowisland.com; elnoraab@gmail.com;
emily@milestonemunicipalservices.ca; eolsen@hinton.ca; Erin Suchy;
generalinfo@rimbey.com; girouxvi@serbernet.com; gov@gibbons.ca;
halkirk@syban.net; hughendencao@xplornet.com; info@blackfalds.com;
info@bonaccord.ca; info@bowden.ca; info@bruderheim.ca; info@calmar.ca;
info@cardston.ca; info@chestermere.ca; info@claresholm.ca; info@consort.ca;
info@daysland.ca; info@draytonvalley.ca; info@eckville.com; info@edgerton.ca;
info@fortsask.ca; info@irma.ca; info@leduc.ca; info@lloydminster.ca;
info@lougheed.ca; info@manning.ca; info@mannville.com; info@morinville.ca;
info@mundare.ca; info@onoway.ca; info@peaceriver.ca; info@picturebutte.ca;
info@rochonsands.net; info@ryley.ca; info@silverbeach.ca; info@sprucegrove.org;
info@stavely.ca; info@stonyplain.com; info@strathcona.ca; info@sundancebeach.ca;
info@sylvansummervillages.ca; info@threehills.ca; info@town.blackdiamond.ab.ca;
info@town jasper.ab.ca; info@townofbentley.ca; info@townofpenhold.ca;
info@townofswanhills.com; info@townoftwohills.com; info@valleyview.ca;
info@villageofbigvalley.ca; info@villageofcaroline.com; info@villageofchauvin.ca;
info@vokitscoty.ca; inffo@westlock.ca; information@devon.ca; information@stalbert.ca;
information@svofficepl.com; inquiries@didsbury.ca; inquiry@cremona.ca;
irricana@irricana.com; james@magrath.ca; legislativeservices@highriver.ca;
legislativeservices@reddeer.ca; mail@lacombe.ca; main.office@laclabichecounty.com;

1



To: main@coalhurst.ca; main@legal.ca; main@milkriver.ca; marwayne@mcsnet.ca;
Mayor@beaumont.ab.ca; mayor@medicinehat.ca; Mayor@rmwb.ca; millet@millet.ca;
morrin@netago.ca; munson@netago.ca; office@hillspring.ca;
office@mackenziecounty.com; office@stirling.ca; office@sunsetpoint.ca;
office@villageofhaylakes.com; office@villageofhussar.ca; online@canmore.ca;
pelicanarrows@gmail.com; reception@crowsnestpass.com; reception@fairview.ca;
reception@forestburg.ca; reception@highprairie.ca; reception@pinchercreek.ca;
reception@sexsmith.ca; reception@wetaskiwin.ca; receptionist@wainwright.ca;
redcliff@redcliff.ca; redwater@redwater.ca; rosalindvillage@xplornet.com;
rosemary.admin@eidnet.org; rycroft@rycroft.ca; svbbeach@gmail.com;
svcastle@telus.net; svhorseshoebay@gmail.com;
svislandlake@wildwillowenterprises.com; svpointalison@outlook.com;
svsandyb@xplornet.ca; svseba@telusplanet.net;
svsunrisebeach@wildwillowenterprises.com; svwestcove@outlook.com;
tkillam@telusplanet.net; tomaszyk@mcsnet.ca; town.office@hardisty.ca;
town@athabasca.ca; town@barrhead.ca; town@bassano.ca; town@beaverlodge.ca;
town@crossfieldalberta.com; town@elkpoint.ca; town@highlevel.ca; town@ponoka.ca;
town@rockymtnhouse.com; town@slavelake.ca; town@smokylake.ca; town@taber.ca;
townhall@innisfail.ca; townhall@town.stpaul.ab.ca; townmail@sundre.com;
townoffice@stettler.net; townoffice@townofoyen.com; townofvermilion@vermilion.ca;
tsl@sylvanlake.ca; tsloboda@thorsby.ca; utilities@townoftrochu.ca;
vegtown@vegreville.com; vholden@telusplanet.net; vilcoutt@telus.net;
village@delburne.ca; village@rockyford.ca; village@warburg.ca;
villageoffice@springlakealberta.com; villageoflomond@gmail.com;
villageofpv@mcsnet.ca; villageofveteran@gmail.com; vilna@mcsnet.ca;
vilocow@shaw.ca; viviandriver@mcsnet.ca; viedberg@syban.net;
vigdmost@telusplanet.net; voe14@villageofempress.com; waskvillage@mcsnet.ca;
webadmin@strathmore.ca; webinfo@viking.ca; ytown@netago.ca

Subject: Adolescent Vaccine Provision - Town of Tofield

Attachments: doc03644620220112114623.pdf

Good morning,

The attached is being provided on behalf of Mayor and Council. Could | kind ask that the attached be shared with your
Mayor and Councils, please.

Respectfully,

Jeit Edwards,CLLGM
Assistant CAO

Town of Tofield

Box 30 Tofield; AB

TOB 4]0 5407 - 50 Street
780-662-3269 F
780-662-3929 F
www.tofieldalberta.ca
jedwards@tofieldalberta.ca




P SR

ofield

Honour the Past. Build the Futuwre,

This email and any files transmitted with it are confidential and intended solely for the use of the individual or entity to
whom they are addressed. If you have received this email in error please notify the system manager.This message
contains confidential information and is intended only for the individual named. If you are notthe named addressee you

should not disseminate, distribute or copy this e-mail.



st sy st G

>
PO Box 30 5407 50th Street
Tofield, Alberta TOB 440

. P 780 662 3269
@ 'g e | F 780 662 3929
z = E tofieldadmin@tofieldalberta.ca

Honour the Past. Build the Future. W www.tofieldalberta.ca

January 13, 2022

Honorable Jason Kenney
Premier of Alberta
Office of the Premier
307 Legislature Building
10800 - 97 Avenue
Edmonton, AB

T5K 2B6

Dear Premier,

Re: Rural Alberta — Adolescent Vaccine Provision

Premier Kenney, since the availability of vaccines has been provided to Albertans, the message from
yourself, the Chief Medical Officer of Health, and the Health Minister has remained consistent. This
message has been that all eligible individuals should receive the first available vaccine, and now, this
availability has extended to our youth. During the first availability of vaccine, rural Alberta felt that they
were being slighted, or ignored in not having vaccine provision to those who were unable to travel, or
not wanting to leave the comforts of their own community, to truly do the right thing and become
vaccinated. Many across rural Alberta, Tofield included reached out to advocate and make our voices
heard in having this service provided ih our communities through our very capable means, such as, our

pharmacies and competent pharmacists.

Bluntly, your government is ignoring rural Alberta, and creating barriers and hindrances for vaccine
provision. Members of our community wanting to have their children vaccinated are being forced to
drive between 50 and 70 kilometers one way to have this service provided. On top of this true
inconvenience, the weather elements and poor road conditions are adding a further issue to what is
already a stressful time for these parents. The decision of many is to not contend with theses barriers,

which is resulting in a lower vaccination rate in our rural locations.

The path forward from our vantage point appears clear, provide vaccine to our rural pharmacies to
vaccinate our youth. Globally, we know that the way back to a normal life requires vaccination. in not
having this ability in rural Alberta, the pandemic and its challenges to our health care system, economy

and Albertans mental health will continue.



Honorable Jason Kenney
Premier of Alberta
Page 2

Premier Kenney, please do not continue to ignore rural Alberta. We in the outlying centres have
suffered deeply, and this stance only stands to hurt Alberta as a province on a longer-term basis. As a
Council and a community, we implore your government to take a stance and advocate for change.

ebora Dueck
Mayor
mayor@tofieldalberta.ca

Cc.C

The Honorable Jason Copping, Minister of Health
Dr. Deena Hinshaw, Chief Medical Officer of Health
Damien Kurek, MP

Jackie Lovely, MLA

Alberta Municipalities

Rural Municipalities of Alberta

Darren Erickson, Tofield Pharmacy

Tofield Mercury

Vegreville News Advertiser



\'3,Z

Alberta Beach Village Office

From: tori@wildwillowenterprises.com
Sent: January 7, 2022 11:05 AM
To: Wendy Wildman; aboffice@albertabeach.com; bconinx@onoway.ca;

angeladuncan@albertabeach.com; svwestcove@outlook.com; woronukg706
@gmail.com; allan.gamble@parklandcounty.com;

robert. ncgowan@parklandcounty.com; lolsvik@Isac.ca; mprimeau@lsac.ca;
don.svyellowstone@gmail.com; duane.kootenay@ansn.ca; publicworks@ansn.ca;
melindapotts@live.ca; paul2703@icloud.com; robinrain@live.ca; rhondapaul36
@hotmail.com; gennyb_pfn@outlook.com; cao@rosshaven.ca; svseba@telusplanet.net;
svcastle@telus.net; cao@svnakamun.com; svsandyb@xplornet.ca;
svsunrisebeach@wildwillowenterprises.com; office@sunsetpoint.ca;
d.evans@xplornet.com; cao@lakeview.ca; emily@milestonemunicipalservices.ca;
office.svyellowstone@gmail.com

Cc: ddm@kronprinzconsulting.ca; johnvand@telusplanet.net
Subject: Notice of Orthophosphate Additives in the EPCOR System beginning December 2022
Attachments: EPCOR - Orthophosphate - Lead in Water Treatment - Web Copy (1).docx; Letter

(Commercial) Orthophosphate Background (WILD 2022 to'Members).pdf; WILD Water
- Letter to Members - EPCOR Orthophosphate Addition 2022 - Commercial Notice.pdf

Good Morning WILD Water Commission Members,

Attached is information regarding the Orthophosphate additive that will be become standard in our water supply
system by December 2022. Please reach out to our office if you have any questions regarding this information.

Thanks,

WILD Water Commission



WEST INTER LAKE DISTRICT (WILD)
REGIONAL WATER SERVICES COMMISSION
Box 8 Alberta Beach, AB. TOE 0A0
Ph: 780-967-0271 Fax: 780-967-0431
Email: wildwatercommission@gmail.com

January 6, 2022

TO: ALL COMMISSION MEMBERS
(Sent by E-Mail)

Dear Member,

Re: WILD Water Commission — Notice of Orthophosphate Additives in the EPCOR
System Beginning December 2022

On January 3", 2022, the WILD Water Commission was informed by our upstream water supplier
(the Capital Regional Parkland Water Services Commission) that beginning in December 2022 the
addition of orthophosphate (a lead inhibitor) to our water supply will become standard. This
change has been initiated by and through our source water supplier, EPCOR. The purpose of this
letter is simply to inform our stakeholders and users of this change, and to allow time for you to
evaluate and adjust for any impacts it may have on your organization.

Detailed background on orthophosphates, including a sample correspondence and material
package members may wish to post on their websites, has been enclosed to this letter and we
encourage you to share it with stakeholders in your service area. This round of notice is intended
for commercial, industrial, or food processing operations as these operations may face a greater
impact (possible need to retrofit/upgrade equipment, etc.). There is not as significant an expected
impact to the average residential household or consumer, but additional messaging for this
consumer group is anticipated in a second notice which we will provide once made available to

us.

If you have any questions regarding this letter, who to share this information with, or what the
impacts of orthophosphates in your water supply may be please reach out to our office to discuss

further.

Regards,

Dwight Darren Moskalyk

Commission Manager

WILD Water Commission

Encl:  Letter (Commercial) Orthophosphate Background (WILD 2022 to Members)
EPCOR -Orthophosphate — Lead in Water Treatment — Web Copy (1)

Page1of1



Orthophosphate - Lead in Water Treatment - Web Copy

Title Tag EPCOR and Orthophosphate For Corrosion Control | EPCOR
Meta EPCOR is adding Orthophosphate to our water treatment process.
(max 140 Orthophosphate is a corrosion inhibitor and helps prevent and control
characters) lead in water.

H1 Adding Orthophosphate For Corrosion Control And Lead Prevention

Focus Keyword

orthophosphate corrosion inhibitor
orthophosphate for corrosion control
orthophosphate in water

orthophosphate in drinking water
orthophosphate in drinking water health effects
orthophosphate in wastewater
orthophosphate water treatment

what is orthophosphate in water

epcor orthophosphate

orthophosphate and lead pipes
orthophosphate concentration in water
orthophosphate limit in water

sources of orthophosphate in water

what is orthophosphate used for in water treatment
anti corrosion additives for water

corrosion inhibitor for water

anti corrosion additive for water

drinking water corrosion control treatment
water based corrosion inhibitor

alberta drinking water corrosion prevention
prevention of water line corrosion

water treatment methods to prevent corrosion
amount of lead in drinking water

lead in water

lead in drinking water

lead in my water

Related
Keywords

health canada
pipe corrosion
water supply
water testing
prevent corrosion
lead pipes
water system
level of lead
reduce lead
amounts of lead
lead exposures
source of lead




remove lead

tap water

public health
Region Alberta (specifically - Edmonton)
Target Homeowners, Businesses that rely on Edmonton’s water for
Audience manufacturing, food processing, petrochemical production as well as

commercial heating and cooling
Word Count 955 (target: 785)

Adding Orthophosphate For Corrosion Control And
Lead Prevention

We care about the health and wellbeing of our customers, and we take our commitment to

providing safe, reliable drinking water very seriously. We are protecting our customers from
water pipe corrosion and lead in drinking water by adding anti corrosion additives for water
including orthophosphate for corrosion control to our water treatment process.

What is Orthophosphate Used For In Water Treatment?

Orthophosphate is a safe, tasteless, odorless substance, naturally present in foods as
phosphate that forms a protective coating inside our city’s water infrastructure and inside
household plumbing systems. Orthophosphate is a corrosion inhibitor for water service lines,
and a proven water treatment method to prevent corrosion and reduce the amount of lead in

drinking water.

As part of EPCOR’s enhanced Lead Mitigation Program, EPCOR will be adding orthophosphate
to our water treatment process in December 2022. Phosphate is a safe additive found naturally
in foods such as bread, cheese, fruit and nuts. In fact, you’d have to drink 104 glasses of water
with orthophosphate added to match the same amount of phosphorus found in one banana.

EPCOR has been managing lead levels since 2008 by removing household lead water service
that showed high levels of lead; now we are supplementing this with orthophosphate due to
other sources of lead that homeowners may not be aware: of, like lead solder in the household
plumbing or lead fixtures in taps. We expect that the addition of orthophosphate will aid in the
prevention of water line corrosion, lower lead levels, and achieve compliance with Health
Canada’s lead concentration recommendations.

The addition of Orthophosphate in drinking water as a lead inhibitor was approved by City
Council and City Administration in March 2019, and is the industry standard for reducing lead in
water systems used by many municipalities throughout North America including Toronto,
Hamilton, Winnipeg, Halifax, New York City and Washington D.C.



Frequently Asked Questions

Q: Why do we need to add a lead inhibitor if only a few homes in Edmonton

have lead pipes and service lines?

A: Lead pipes and service lines are not the only source of lead; our sampling research has
shown that lead present in in-home plumbing, old solder and brass fixtures also have the
potential to exceed Health Canada’s proposed guideline.

Q: Are there any health effects related to orthophosphate?

A: Adding a lead inhibitor (orthophosphate) has no negative effects on health. It is commonly
used by water utilities across North America and the United Kingdom to prevent lead from
entering into drinking water. Phosphate is naturally present in food and is a common additive to
beverages. In fact, you would have to drink 104 glasses of tap water to match the phosphorus in

one banana.

Q: Is there a difference between orthophosphate and phosphate?

A: Orthophosphate is a member of the phosphate family. Orthophosphates are small molecules,
formed from the smallest and most basic form of phosphorus and are added to processed foods

and naturally present in many foods.

Q: Do | need to do anything after orthophosphate is added?

A: No, residential customers can continue to use the water as they normally would. There is no
action necessary once orthophosphate is added. The water will remain safe to drink.

Commercial customers that use Edmonton’s water for manufacturing or petrochemical
production may need to make adjustments to their water processes.

Orthophosphate Addition for Commercial Customers

The addition of Orthophosphate concentration in the water supply may require businesses that
rely on Edmonton’s water for manufacturing, food processing, petrochemical production as well
as commercial heating and cooling to make adjustments to their own water processes.

Orthophosphate will be added to Edmonton’s water at the water treatment plants beginning in
December 2022. During implementation, the concentration of orthophosphate will begin at 0.9
mg/L. EPCOR will monitor and, over time, optimize the orthophosphate dosing and
concentration. We expect the implementation process to take approximately one year where
orthophosphate concentrations may fluctuate. We recommend businesses in the manufacturing,
food processing, petrochemical production as well as commercial heating sectors review your
process requirements to determine if your business may be impacted by the addition of
orthophosphate. Areas where your business may be impacted could include:



Production and Water Treatment

Orthophosphate may affect reverse osmosis systems. EPCOR recommends that you contact
your process equipment consultants to complete an assessment in advance of December 2022
to determine if you will need to make any required adjustments prior to orthophosphate

implementation.

Cooling Towers

Orthophosphate in the water may change the type and amount of precipitate that deposits on
commercial heat exchangers. Companies may need to adjust their chemical treatment to
account for the change in phosphate levels. It is recommended that companies contact their
heating and cooling supplier, water treatment chemical provider or water process consultant to
discuss the need for adjustment to your heating and cooling system.

Boilers

The impact of orthophosphate on boilers is expected to be minimal. Many customers already
add phosphate to precipitate calcium or as a tracer in their boiler system. For this reason,
companies already adding phosphate may benefit from the addition of orthophosphate.
Companies that already add phosphate may need to adjust their dosage levels accordingly or
apply for an overstrength permit for discharge of their wastewater.

There may be other processes within your business that we have not identified that may be
impacted by the addition of orthophosphate. We recommend that you discuss these changes
with a water process consultant or industry association to determine if there is an impact to your

water process.

Looking for more information:

You can also reach out to our Orthophosphate Program Representative if you have any
questions regarding the orthophosphate treatment process: orthophosphate@epcor.com.




Stakeholders of the West Inter Lake District (WILD) Regional Water Services Commission:

DRINKING WATER
CHEMISTRY CHANGES
COMING DECEMBER 2022

TO REDUCE LEAD, EPCOR WILL BE ADDING ORTHOPHOSPHATE
TO EDMIONTON’S TREATED WATER EFFECTIVE DECEMBER 2022.

EPCOR cares about the health and wellbeing of our customers, and we take our commitment to providing
safe, reliable drinking water very seriously. As one of our commercial customers, we want to make you aware
of an upcoming change to Edmonton’s drinking water chemistry. As part of EPCOR’s Enhanced Lead
Mitigation Program, orthophosphate will be added to treated water starting in December 2022. This may
require businesses that use water for manufacturing, food processing, petrochemical production, as well as
commercial heating and cooling, to make adjustments to their processes.

Orthophosphate is being added to reduce the release of lead into drinking water from all sources, including
lead service lines and plumbing components. Itis the industry standard for treating lead corrosionin
municipal drinking water all over the world. Orthophosphate is a tasteless, odourless substance that creates
a protective barrier on plumbing surfaces. Approximately half of medium and large utilities in the United
States and nearly all of the utilities in the United Kingdom rely on a phosphate-based lead corrosion inhibitor
to reduce lead in their systems. Canadian cities such as Toronto, Winnipeg, Hamilton, Halifax, and Saint John
have also seen positive results by adding orthophosphate to their drinking water.

WHY IS EPCOR ADDING ORTHOPHOSPHATE TO THE WATER?

InMarch 2019, Health Canada released an updated guideline for Canadian Drinking Water Quality that
established a new maximum acceptable concentration (MAC) of lead in the water. The MAC has been
reduced from 10 pg/L to5 g/L and monitoring has been moved from the distribution system to the
consumer’s

tap. As part of EPCOR’s Enhanced Lead Mitigation Strategy, the City of Edmonton approved the addition
of orthophosphate as a lead inhibitor to protect residents from releases of lead in the water. The use of
orthophosphate has also been endorsed by Alberta Health Services and our regulator Alberta Environment

and Parks.

WHAT IS THE TIMELINE FOR IMPLEMENTATION?

Orthophosphate will be added to Edmonton’s water at the Rossdale Water Treatment Plant and E.L. Smith
Water Treatment Plant beginning in December 2022. The concentration of orthophosphate will begin at
0.9 mg/L as P. and EPCOR will monitor and, over time, optimize the concentration. Over approximately one
year, orthophosphate concentrations may fluctuate. EPCOR anticipates that after the implementation and
optimization phase, orthophosphate concentrations will remain stable, with possible slight adjustments

from season to season.



HOW CAN | PREPARE MY BUSINESS FOR THIS CHANGE?

EPCOR is providing advanced notice of these changes to allow businesses adequate time to identify
potential impacts on their processes and equipment. Some business areas that may be affected include:

Production and Water Treatment

= The addition of orthophosphate may affect reverse osmosis and other water treatment systems.
EPCOR recommends that you contact your process equipment consultants or suppliers to complete
an assessment in advance of December 2022 to determine if you will need to make any required
adjustments prior to orthophosphate implementation.

Heat Exchangers and Cooling Towers

» Orthophosphate in the water may change the type and amount of precipitate that deposits on
commercial heat exchangers and cooling towers. Companies may need to adjust their chemical
treatment to account for the change in phosphate levels. It is recommended that companies
contact their heating and cooling supplier, water treatment chemical provider or process consultant
to discuss the need for adjustment to your heating and cooling system.

Boilers
« The impact of orthophosphate on boilers is expected to be minimal. Many customers already add
phosphate to precipitate calcium and/or as a tracer in their boiler system. For this reason, companies
already adding phosphate may benefit from the implementation of EPCOR’s Enhanced Lead Mitigation
Strategy. Companies that already add phosphate may need to adjust their dosage levels accordingly
or apply for an overstrength permit for discharge of their wastewater. You can
apply for an overstrength permit through EPCOR Drainage at epcor.com.

There may be other processes within your business that we have not identified that may be impacted
by the addition of orthophosphate to the municipal drinking water. We recommend that you discuss these
changes with a consultant to determine if there is an impact to your water process.

IMPACT TO CUSTOMERS PAYING WASTEWATER OVERSTRENGTH
SURCHARGE FOR TOTAL PHOSPHORUS

EPCOR recognizes that this change to water chemistry may impact the total phosphorus level measuredin
samples collected for the overstrength surcharge program. Once the orthophosphate program has been
implemented, the measured concentrations in your discharged water will be reduced by the concentration
that is added to the municipal drinking water to determine the overstrength surcharge.

The intent is to have no net financial impact to our customers.

For more information on EPCOR’s Lead Mitigation Strategy, please visit epcor.com/lead.

If you have any questions or concerns please reach out to us via email at wildwatercommission@gmail.com

Regards,

Administration
West Inter Lake District (WILD)
Regional Water Services Commission



Alberta Beach Village Office

From: Cathy Heron <president@abmunis.ca>

Sent: January 14, 2022 10:49 AM

To: Kathy Skwarchuk

Subject: Important Webinar Registration Notice - Alberta Municipalities review of the Alberta
Provincial Police Service (APPS) report

Attachments: ABmunis - Analysis of PwC Report Alberta Provincial Police Service (APPS) Transition.pdf

Hello Mayors, Councillors and CAQ's,

Alberta Municipalities is hosting a webinar for members on Wednesday, January 19 from 6:00 pm to 8:00 pm, to
review and discuss the Alberta Provincial Police Service (APPS) that is being proposed by the Alberta provincial
government. This webinar will prepare members for the upcoming provincial meetings with the Department of
Justice and Solicitor General (JSG), ensuring that members are aware of the details from the
PriceWaterhouseCoopers (PWC) Transition Report and what information gaps exist. We will also ensure members
are equipped with questions that JSG must eventually answer with regards to an APPS.

JSG administration recently met with the Alberta Municipalities Board to provide a “dry run” through their
presentation. It caused many concerns which we will discuss in more detail next week at our webinar.

Also, to prepare for this session, we contracted Global Public Affairs to provide a detailed analysis of the APPS
transition report developed by PWC. Global will present their findings during the webinar and we will then use the
remaining time to connect with members regarding the outstanding questions and concerns.

Attached to this email is a synopsis and analysis of the PWC Transition Report to the APPS and preliminary
questions for your review prior to the webinar. Based on what we hear during the webinar and JSG sessions, Alberta
Municipalities intends to draft a Request for Decision on an official position on policing in Alberta. This position
development and ratification will be the significant focus on at our Spring Municipal Leaders’ Caucus in Edmonton

(March 9 and 10).

To register for this important discussion, please click on the link below:

When: Jan 19, 2022 06:00 PM Edmonton
Topic: Alberta Municipalities Meeting on Provincial Policing - January 12, 2022

Link to Registration Page:
https://zoom.us/meeting/register/tiwkd-vorTwtEtXheb6CnY3kgOqSdLQj03e-

After registering you will receive a confirmation email containing information about joining. If you have any
questions, please email advocacy@abmunis.ca. We look forward to connecting.

Thank you,

Cathy Heron | President

Mayos, City of St Albert



Analysis of

PwC Report
Alberta Provincial
Police Service
(APPS) Transition

January 19, 2022

i ,Alberta
= = Municipalities
Strength

In Members




2 | Alberta Municipalities Analysis of PwC Report APPS Transition

Executive Summary

In November of 2019, Premier Jason Kenney struck up the Fair
Deal Panel, with the mandate of consulting with Albertans to
gather input on how best to define and secure a fair deal for
Alberta within the country. In May of 2020, the panel submitted
their final report to the provincial government with a number

of recommendations. These included areas of focus such as
addressing the future of equalization, the possibilities of an Alberta
Pension Plan, and an issue impacting all municipalities in the
province - exploring an Alberta Provincial Police Service (APPS).

In October of 2021, the Government of Alberta released the
independent report developed by PwC that studied the feasibility
of replacing the RCMP with the APPS, including the operational
needs, processes and potential transition costs. With an outline
on service delivery options and proposed governance models, the
PwC Report does not provide a formal stance or recommendation
on a decision, but lays out a potential framework and rollout
timeline.

Since the possibility of an APPS was announced, municipalities
in Alberta have looked to engage with the ministries of Municipal
Affairs and Justice and Solicitor General to be a voice at the
table. Municipalities ranging in size have a vested interest in the
future of their iocal law enforcement and community safety and
are looking to provide their feedback and input into this process.
As municipalities began to take in the PwC Report, a number of
questions began to arise on the direction the province was going,

While the PwC Report provided insights into APPS governance,
costs and timelines, there were certain questions that were still
unasked that are vital to the process. Stakeholders involved with
the APPS discussion have been narrowly focused on the cost
consideration discussion. Both Premier Kenney and Justice and
Soliitor General Minister Kaycee Madu have addressed cost
concerns in public forums, assuring that there will be a net zero
impact on municipalities. The Official Opposition Atberta NDP
have also made cost considerations a main area of focus for

their criticisms, openly stating their support for the RCMP and
their work within the province. Municipalities, through numerous
surveys and in public engagement opportunities have expressed
their concermn with potential costs being downloaded onto them
and the certain level of mistrust of the province to uphold the net
zero commitment. While APPS costs are an important piece of the
equation, there are a number of other gaps that should be on the
radar for stakeholders. These include governance structure service
level metrics that require more clarity before a decision is made.
This analysis highlights those areas of concern.

Given the reality that this is a topic of transformational change
and we haven't seen a provingial police force stood up in more
than 100 years - by bringing solutions to the table with provincial
counterparts, municipalities across the province are in a unigque
position to have meaningful impacts on the conversation of future
policing in Alberta.

PwC Report’s recommended service delivery model focuses on community policing and the ability to share resources, data,

and intelligence across all police services and non-policing partner organizations. The PwC Report states that if Alberta were to
adopt the APPS, the province would lose $170 million in federal funding but increase the number of frontline officers and civilian
specialists. Additional costs would include $32 million for real estate leases, repairs, utilities, professional services, furnishings,
and maintenance. Administration and other costs are estimated at $72 million.

Enhanced Community Input & Accountability to Citizens

Stronger and more formatized local governance measures with
representation from rural, urban, and Indigenous communities
and supported by local Police commissions will give communities
a voice in what services are delivered, how services are delivered
and how police performance will be measured at a local level.

Improved Service Levels Across Rural Alberta, indigenous
Communities, & Mgnicipalities

The proposed model will result in an increased number of frontline
members of the APPS deployed in Alberta from 3,097 under

the current model to 3,218 in the recommended model while
reducing operating costs. The total staffing will increase to 4,189
from 4,030 as of June 2020.

improved Efficiency, Integration, and Value for Money

The PwC Report suggests APPS can build integration points
directly into the service delivery model and embed them into the
organization with formal governance and dedicated resources.

Fit for Alberta Inncvations

The PwC Report says that incorporating innovative, evidence-
based approaches to challenges facing Albertan communities
- including rural policing, mental health, opioid responses and
policing in Indigenous communities - is a key part of creating a
modern fit for Alberta provincial police service.



Alberta Municipalities Analysis of PwC Report APPS Transition | 3

Alberta Municipalities (ABmunis)

Policing Principles and identified
alighnment and gaps

ABmunis hosted the 2021 President’s Summit on Policing as two virtual sessions on February 3 and 17,
2021. Attendees of the webinars indicated that they were in favour of improvements to RCMP governance
and service levels, but the majority disagreed that an independent APPS would better meet their
communities’ needs than the current model. After deliberation, ABmunis chose to hold off on announcing a
policy position related to an APPS foliowing the Summit until the province released the PwC APPS Transition
Report. In preparation for this announcement and any subsequent advocacy, the ABmunis Board of
Directors adopted a set of principles for an APPS should one be transitioned to.

The principles include three pillars - police governance and oversight, police service levels and policing
costs. Upon further analysis and comparison between ABmunis' provincial police service principles and the
PwC Report, there are areas of alighment but also gaps. These gaps turn into areas of concern for ABmunis
for any transition to an APPS and further create numerous questions that must be asked by ABmunis and
answered by the Alberta provincial government.

In addition to these information gaps in the PwC report, there are many important issues that the PwC
Report never does address, such as:

* Proposed changes to policing does little to impact the lack of resources for the Alberta prosecution and
judicial systems, which remains the largest barrier to Alberta’s “catch and release” problem.

¢ Why hasn't the provincial government already implemented many of the PwC suggested policing
improvements, under its current policing arrangements with the RCMP, including:

* ntegration of health and family services.
* Effective performance metrics.
» Effective police governance and independent commission.

+ Establishing Alberta policing priorities, what would be different in the APPS model compared to the
RCMP arrangement? And why?

o Although Alberta policing costs may decrease by $24 million or 3 per cent with an APPS, how is the
provincial government going to address the $170 million of lost funding from the federal government.

* How is the provincial government going to fund the $366 million of APPS one-time transition costs?



4 | Alberta Municipalities Analysis of PwC Report APPS Transition

R
-4*‘”'

yoioshe Dedichag Dol

1. Police governance and oversight

a. An APPS must ensure that all municipalities have meaningful input into developing local policing
priorities.

b. Governance and oversight bodies for an APPS must include municipal representation at local, regional,
and provincial levels.

c. An APPS must provide regular reporting on policing priorities and outcomes to the municipalities it serves.

Alignment

The PwC Report outlines a future operating state model that focuses on Enhanced Community Input &
Accountability to Citizens - a direct correlation to the ABmunis principle of ensuring an APPS model allows
municipalities to bring meaningful input into developing local policing priorities. Aspects of this future operating
state model focus include:

e Prioritizing community policing with local resources who are recruited and representative of their
communities, with a focus on proactive problem solving and ongoing community engagement.

« Local Police Commissions to increase accountability to local community priorities and service needs.

¢ Rethinking how performance is measured by moving from a broad national focus to a highly tailored
local community focus. This can be best achieved by developing performance metrics directly with the
communities being served to truly connect the needs of the community.

With a focus on the ABmunis principle on governance and oversight bodies, the PwC Report recommends a
governance structure that includes Commission-led Decision Rights.

« Commission set priorities on quantity and quality of services required. Political intervention into operations
is minimized but collaboration to identify priorities and performance metrics.

« Oversight and decision authority is distributed across several executives (e.g. Commission Directors) who
are representative of the citizens/communities.

+ Agency is accountable to communities through board representation and additional local governance
structures.

+ Performance is monitored against service levels, which are tailored to customer need.

» Complemented by Local Police Commissions that are in place to collaborate with local detachments in
determining how policing is provided in their local community and to agree on performance measures.

Gaps

While the PWC Report touches on the need to develop and make use of police commission and
committees under governance structure, it does little to consider structures that already exist.

At a local level, communities already set up their own police committees or commissions to review

performance, set goals, carry out community engagement and seek input that would result in
improved service delivery and crime reduction.




Alrmtinis Folieing Pringipl

2. Police service levels

a. An APPS must establish and deliver a minimum standard of policing infrastructure, supervision, administration,
and front-line services necessary to respond to calls for service and provide adequate proactive policing in all

Alberta municipalities.

Alberta Municipalities Analysis of PwC Report APPS Transition | 5

b. This minimum standard must exceed current RCMP performance.

¢. The GOA must create, with input from municipalities, metrics to demonstrate that the minimum standard is
being met or exceeded in all Alberta municipalities.

d. The GOA must publicly share reporting on APPS performance.

Alignment

An ABmunis principle focus on metrics to demonstrate the minimum standard is reflected in the governance model
recommendation on Performance Metrics and Locally Determined-Priorities - in which the framework suggests local
detachments and Police Commissions should collaborate to establish performance metrics and measures for service
in their local area. The PwC Report goes as far as to outline specific metrics as well, focusing on dimensions of police
work which provide a solid foundation for defining performance metrics for individuals, units and the organization to
drive continuous improvement and accountability of outcomes.

These dimensions are:

Public confidence and trust in
police services.

Engagement with the community
and police community
partnerships.

Reduction in Crime & Victimization.

Offenders called to account
(through prosecution, restorative
justice, alternative measures etc.).

Reduced fear & enhanced sense of
personal security.

Civility in public spaces.

Use of authority or force fairly with
appropriate oversight from civilians
and communities.

Effectiveness and efficiency of use
of financial resources.

Gaps

When it comes to the ABmunis principle of a
requirement of the GOA to publicly share reporting on
APPS performance, there is an identified gap. The PwC
Report outlines the work of the Transition Management
Office (TMO) within the transition roadmap as one

of the nine key elements. The goal of the TMO is to
oversee and manage the transition project, escalate
risks and issues and provide critical reporting to
leadership and key stakeholders. However, there's little
additional information on reporting requirements with
no commitment to public reporting.

When it comes to Improved Service Levels Across Rural
Alberta, Indigenous Communities, & Municipalities -
the proposed model will result in an increased number
of frontline members of the APPS deployed in Alberta
from 3,097 under the current model to 3,218 in the
recommended model while reducing operating costs.
The total staffing will increase to 4,189 from 4,030 as
of June 2020. The PwC Report states that rethinking
what resources are needed and how those resources
are deployed to be more responsive to service calls
across Alberta will allow the APPS to increase the
number of regular members in communities across
Alberta and be more flexible in meeting the needs of
each specific community,



6 | Alberta Municipalities Analysis of PwC Report APPS Transition

3. Policing costs

a. Municipalities must not bear any of the costs associated with implementing and transitioning to a provincial
police service.

b. Police funding must be based on the principles of fairness, transparency, and predictability.

¢. The GOA must fill the funding gap associated with the loss of federal funding for using RCMP services.
d. Municipal policing costs for an APPS must not exceed the current RCMP policing costs.

e. All municipalities must pay an equitable share of policing costs for the minimum standard of policing.

f. Municipalities must retain the ability to negotiate contracts with an APPS. Municipalities requesting contract
enhancements, e.g. additional dedicated officers or staff, would be responsible for paying the additional cost of

providing these.

Alignment

Identified in the PWC Report under a future state operating model is a key element to Improved Efficiency, Integration,
and Value for Money. This is in alignment with the ABmunis principle of a policing funding model passed on fairness,
transparency, and predictability. This key element outlines a focus on integrating other services to maximize Alberta’s
resources through efficient and cost-effective partnerships, as well as:

» Embedded operational competencies and + Leveraging existing expertise and infrastructure
integrations aligned with other provincially delivered in Alberta to provide lab services, specialized
services including health care, family and community operations, training, and civilian expertise specialist
services, mental health supports, education, and fields such as financial crime or cyber-crime to
addictions treatment. allow members of the police to focus on proactive

. ) o i community policing and improving service levels.
+ Integrating with other police services in the province
with shared data, real time communications, shared o Utilizing existing government of Alberta technology,

training facilities and standards, and responses to infrastructure and processes to maintain economies

reduce duplication of investigations and expanding of scale, reduce infrastructure investment costs and

the role of ALERT in Alberta. be more efficient in-service delivery for enabling
functions.

Gaps
Many stakeholders are not convinced that the costing outlined in the PwC Report is accurate as presented.
» Aclear example of this is the lack of detail as it pertains to capital costs, with questions such as how will

pensions for the existing RCMP members transition over to APPS and at what cost, how will current non-
billable costs and the current federal funding be absorbed. This includes & lack of consideration for recently

agreed upon pay increases for RCMP officers.

In the past, programming and services provided by the province that started out as a minimal cost to
municipalities became an increasing burden to many municipalities as funding never increased and further
costing and service expectations were downloaded with no recourse or input. The PwC Report does not
address these past instances or have commitments in place to ensure they do not occur again.

The RCMP have also highlighted gaps with consolidated services and non-billable costs - such as
human resource management, corporate management, communications are paid through the divisional
administration charge, which allows these costs to be consolidated and shared amongst all contract partners.




®

otential

nibens ;V”,r]_;n.:jj;):)”2}:}";‘ alisis ol PN RANBEAPPS dransition

o N L Fe

i ;R pERE |
. !: i! :_}M..l %{?ﬁgggﬁ FoYg ‘.‘“ﬁféﬁ_ﬁ“;"‘f:;‘

fic

7

HiDhE

|3
H

The Ministry of Justice and Solicitor General will be touring the province, presenting the findings and outcomes of the PwC Report.
Given the number of information gaps and lack of transparency in the PwC Report, it is important that municipal leaders look for

answers to the following questions:

Financiai

Given that the province has stated that there will be no net
financial impact to municipalities, how will the increase in costs
be covered, and how will you guarantee that municipalities will
not shoulder a greater burden in the future?

Considering the loss of federal grants, how will funding for

a new police service be structured, and will the provincial
government l‘ook at changing how PPSA and/or MPSA fund
policing?

What will be done to achieve reduced operating costs while the
overall staffing levels are going up?

How will cost over runs during the transition process be
mitigated?

Logistics

How many officers do you anticipate will transition from the
RCMP in Alberta to a new APPS and how did you come up with
those numbers?

How will the new APPS work with the RCMP on cross-
jurisdictional issues and current joint ventures?

Considering that many police services are having troubles with
recruitment, are you confident that you can recruit enough
members for the transition and why? Do you have a backup
plan?

When will details on training programs be shared? Info such

Engagement and Options

What work has been done to evaluate the ability of the RCMP
to adjust to meet the core values, innovations, and outcomes
the GoA is seeking?

What is the province’s engagement plan for first nations and
indigenous communities/people?

What conversations have been had with standalone police

services regarding shared training facilities and other
services? Are those services amicable to the idea?

Accountability

The PwC Report says that there will be continuous evidence-
based improvements to service. How wilt this be achieved and
measured?

When it comes to service levels metrics and reporting, how are
the proposed service level metrics different from existing ones
and how will it be publicly shared?

Will the province commit to holding a referendum before a final

Have training costs been included in the forecasting, especially
since many RCMP officers do not transition over to provincial
police services and there is extensive training that needs to be

completed?

The PwC Report notes 65 new FTES of health, family and social
work professionals. Will they be those who have roles in the
various systems or are these NEW FTEs that will fall under the
umbrella of the APPS?

When considering economies of scale, will the APPS be able to
purchase goods and services at the same or better cost than
the RCMP?

Has the province considered insurance and liability costs for
potential class-action lawsuits?

as - where will training be provided, who will lead training
programs, will new APPS training compliment training already
available or will it be an entirely new program, will training

be available to those just beginning their policing education
journey as standalone training?

Will the creation of an APPS create barriers for municipalities
that may consider a transition to their own municipal police
force? Do the cost/benefit projections account for the
possibility of some municipalities exploring municipal police
forces in place of APPS?

When it comes to the balance of power, would existing Local
Police Commissions relinquish or lose powers to the newly
established Provincial Police Commission (PPC)?

When the PwC Report discusses priorities being set by a local
police commission, there are no clearly defined roles and
guidelines for the different commissions. Are the broader goals
entrenched through the PPC and mandated downward?

Will municipalities over 5,000 in population still have MPSA
arrangements?

decision is made, and what is the timeline for that?

What role will municipalities have in setting APPS priorities and
direction?

The provincial narrative has evolved to now identifying that
the federal government has indicated that it wants to have the
RCMP exit community policing. If so, what conversations has
the provincial government had with its federal counterparts?



k .Albe.rt,a ..
= = Municipalities
Strength

In Members

300, 8616 51 Avenue
Edmonton, AB TGE 6E6

780.433.4431 = 310.MUNI

abmunis.ca



